Pecyn Dogfen Gyhoeddus

C\";Gﬂﬂ' .
e i1y Flint
I i Swyddog Cyswilit:
Eﬁ!!ﬂrtigbnl re Maureen Potter 01352 702322

maureen.potter@flintshire.gov.uk

At: Cyng lan Dunbar (Cadeirydd)

Y Cynghorwyr: Sian Braun, David Cox, Jean Davies, Ron Davies, Adele Davies-
Cooke, Rosetta Dolphin, Mared Eastwood, George Hardcastle, Ray Hughes,
Dennis Hutchinson, Ted Palmer, Mike Reece, Paul Shotton a David Wisinger

Dydd lau, 7 Mawrth 2019
Annwyl Gynghorydd,
Fe’ch gwahoddir i fynychu cyfarfod Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu Cymunedau a
Menter a fydd yn cael ei gynnal am 10.00 am Dydd Mercher, 13eg Mawrth, 2019 yn
Ystafell Bwyllgor Delyn, Neuadd y Sir, Yr Wyddgrug CH7 6NA i ystyried yr eitemau
canlynol

RHAGLEN

1 YMDDIHEURIADAU
Pwrpas: | dderbyn unrhyw ymddiheuriadau.

2 DATGAN CYSYLLTIAD (GAN GYNNWYS DATGANIADAU CHWIPIO)

Pwrpas: | dderbyn unrhyw ddatganiad o gysylltiad a chynghori’r Aelodau
yn unol a hynny.

3 COFNODION (Tudalennau 3 - 8)

Pwrpas: | gadarnhau, fel cofnod cywir gofnodion y cyfarfod ar 18
Chwefror 2019.

4  ADRODDIAD DIWEDDARIAD YN DILYN ADRODDIAD ARCHWILIO
MEWNOL GRANT CYFLEUSTERAU ANABL 2017 (Tudalennau 9 - 142)

Adroddiad Prif Swyddog (Tai ac Asedau) - Dirprwy Arweinydd y Cyngor Aelod
a'r Cabinet dros Dai

Pwrpas: Rhoi diweddariad ar y cynnydd o ran y cynllun gweithredu rheoli
gwasanaeth.



ADRODDIAD MONITRO CHWARTER 3 CYNLLUN Y CYNGOR AR GYFER
2018/19 (Tudalennau 143 - 172)

Adroddiad Prif Swyddog (Tai ac Asedau), Prif Swyddog (Cynllunio,
Amgylchedd ac Economi) - Aelod y Cabinet dros Ddatblygu Economaidd,
Dirprwy Arweinydd y Cyngor Aelod a'r Cabinet dros Dai

Pwrpas: Adolygu’r cynnydd wrth gyflawni gweithgareddau, lefelau
perfformiad a lefelau risg presennol fel y nodwyd yng Nghynllun
y Cyngor 2018/19.

RHAGLEN GWAITH I'R DYFODOL (Tudalennau 173 - 180)

Adroddiad Hwylusydd Trosolwg a Chraffu yr Cymuned a Menter

Pwrpas: Ystyried y flaenraglen waith Pwyllgor Craffu & Trosolwg menter
& cymunedol.

Yn gywir

Gk

Robert Robins
Rheolwr Gwasanaethau Democrataidd



55.

56.

57.

Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 3

COMMUNITY & ENTERPRISE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
18 FEBRUARY 2019

Minutes of the meeting of the Community & Enterprise Overview & Scrutiny Committee
of Flintshire County Council held in the Delyn Committee Room, County Hall, Mold on
Wednesday 18 February, 2019

PRESENT: Councillor lan Dunbar (Chairman)
Councillors: Ron Davies, Rosetta Dolphin, George Hardcastle, Ray Hughes, Dennis
Hutchinson, Mike Reece, Paul Shotton and David Wisinger

SUBSTITUTION: Councillor David Hughes (for Ted Palmer)

APOLOGY: Councillor Jean Davies

ALSO PRESENT: Councillors: Helen Brown, Patrick Heesom and Christine Jones
attended as observers

CONTRIBUTORS: Councillor Bernie Attridge, Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for
Housing; Chief Officer (Housing & Assets); Team Leader — Income; Revenues Manager
and Housing Strategy Manager

IN_ ATTENDANCE: Community & Enterprise Overview & Scrutiny Facilitator and
Democratic Services Officer

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

None were received.
MINUTES
The minutes of the meeting held on 23 January 2019 were submitted.

Minute number 51: Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Budget 2019/20 — Councillor
Shotton asked if a copy of the area based programme for the Welsh Housing Quality
Standard (WHQS) was available for Members and also if arrangements had been made
for a drop-in session for Members. The Facilitator explained that she had spoken to the
Capital Works Team Manager who was in the process of compiling the information
requested by Members at the last meeting.

RESOLVED:
That the minutes be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

HOUSING STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

The Chief Officer (Housing & Assets) introduced a report which outlined the
Housing Strategy and draft Action Plan for 2019-2024. The Housing Strategy and draft
Action Plan set out the vision for how the Council, with its partners, would deliver

Tudalen 3



affordable housing needs, provide relevant support to residents and ensured the creation
of sustainable homes.

The Chief Officer outlined the number of achievements of the previous Housing
Strategy, as detailed within the report and explained that the current Strategy would build
on the previous achievements within the context of the current challenges faced, such
as, welfare reform, the increase in ‘hidden’ homelessness and limited resources. The
report summarised the 3 priorities identified with key areas for action within each priority.

A workshop was due to be held in February 2019 with key stakeholders, the
Council’s Housing Association Partners and other groups, to review the action plan, so
as to: ensure the actions identified under each of the priorities were comprehensive,
deliverable and affordable; identify any gaps in terms of the actions listed and identify
outcomes/outputs and lead organisations. The final version of the Housing Strategy and
Action Plan would be available in Spring 2019.

Councillor Shotton commended the officers for the report. He commented on the
social enterprise in Anglesey which were providing modular buildings and asked whether
consideration would be given to building similar homes in order to speed up the house
build programme and meet the growing demand. The Chief Officer responded that
consideration was being given to a number of different house building concepts currently
on the market.

Councillor Wisinger commented on the need to improve access to the private
rented sector, and asked how local landlords were being encouraged to rent out their
properties. Councillor Attridge recognised the difficulties in engaging with local landlords
and outlined his concerns that a greater number of landlords were not accepting
applications from people in receipt of Universal Credit. The Housing Strategy Manager
advised that a meeting with local landlord was being planned to better understand their
concerns and improve the Council’s working relationship with them.

John Ennis, Chair of the Tenant’s Federation, informed the Committee that he had
attended a conference in Cardiff which had discussed alternative building methods and
asked if the Council had received any feedback from this conference. The Chief Officer
said that Welsh Government were currently considering alternative building options and
that the Council were awaiting information on grant funding being made available for this.

Following a suggestion from Councillor Hughes, the Chief Officer agreed to
provide the Committee with a report on the concept and options available in using
modular homes to increase the supply of Council properties, to a future meeting.

In response to concerns raised by Councillor Hutchinson regarding timber framed
housing and increased fire risk, the Chief Officer advised that he did not concur with the
views, noting that standards of fire safety were equal to those in traditionally constructed
homes and constructed in compliance of current Building Regulations.

RESOLVED:

(@) That the Committee support the Housing Strategy and draft Action Plan for
2019/2024; and

Tudalen 4



58.

(b)  That a report on the concept and options available in using modular homes to
increase the supply of Council properties be submitted to a future meeting of the
Committee.

HOUSING RENT INCOME

The Revenues Manager introduced a report which provided a further operational
update on the latest position for rent income collection following the recent report to the
Committee in November 2018. Despite the ongoing challenges of increasing numbers
of tenants migrating away from Housing Benefit to the Universal Credit (UC) system, the
latest collection position showed that by implementing measures through increased
resources, early intervention and adopting a ‘rent first’ approach, collection of rent was
starting to stabilise with total rent arrears reducing from £2.22m to £2.14m.

To mitigate the financial challenges for the Council, the work of the Housing
Intervention Teams continued and additional resources were being deployed to ensure
tenants who fell into arrears received help and support at an early stage through a ‘fast
tracked’ approach. A copy of the latest rent arrears position for those tenants in receipt
of UC and Housing Benefit was circulated to the Committee.

The Revenues Manager explained that to ensure Council resources were targeted
to those tenants who need most help to ensure rent was paid on time, a further initiative
was being implemented to improve the supporting software systems that guide the work
of Rent Enforcement Officers. Feasibility work had been undertaken with a software
supplier whose ‘Rent Sense’ solution was rapidly becoming the housing industry standard
for analysing payment variations, risk and escalating which tenants to contact and when.
The software used algorithms to analyse payment patterns, highlight risk and provided
predictive intelligence to support a more focused and targeted approach to rent arrears
recovery work.

The development of this software would modernise the work in the Rent service
and help the service to more intelligently focus on those tenants who were more at risk
of falling into arrears, free up internal resource capacity which meant that housing
interventions could be put in place quickly and before arrears escalated.

Councillor Hardcastle thanked the Revenues Manager for the report and update.
He said that he had recently requested information on current Council Tax arrears which
had been provided by the Revenues Manager and which showed current arrears of
£3.3m and asked if an increase in Council Tax would have a knock on affect to rent
arrears. The Revenues Manager explained that the £3.3m arrears would continually
reduce as residents in Flintshire had a number of different days within the month that they
could opt to pay their Council Tax. He commented that the Council remained the best
performing Council in collecting Council Tax with a collection rate of over 99%, which was
above the welsh average of 98%.

Councillor Hardcastle also referred to two emergency cases which he had dealt
with within his ward over the weekend and said that the helpline for the out of hour’s
service was based in London. Whilst the service he received had been very good, he
asked if the service could be brought back in house in order to reduce costs for the

Tudalen 5



59.

Council. Councillor Attridge explained that the organisation had been appointed to take
calls following a procurement exercise. He said that he often used the service which he
felt was an improvement on the previous service and provided better value for money.

In response to a question from Councillor Hutchinson, the Revenues Manager
explained the intervention options available to the Council and that the work undertaken
to assist vulnerable residents with complex needs could be intensive. Councillor
Hutchinson thanked the officers for the transparent report.

Councillor Shotton commended officers for the assistant and advice given to
vulnerable tenants and asked that his thanks be passed to all officers involved. He
commented on the recent concessions made by the Secretary of State for Work and
Pensions around UC which he felt showed there were problems with the current system.

Councillor Dolphin raised concerns around the length of time tenants had to wait
to move to managed payments and the arrears which build up during this time. The
Revenues Manager agreed with the concerns and said that he would like to see this time
reduced.

In response to a question from Councillor Wisinger, Councillor Attridge explained
that the collection of rent was done in-house by the Rent Enforcement Officers and there
had been a great improvement in the service which had been previously provided by an
external company.

RESOLVED:

(@)  Thatthe latest financial position for rent arrears in 2018-19, which shows collection
of rent was starting to stabilise, be noted; and

(b)  That the measures being taken to improve rent collection during 2019-20,
through the development of specialised software to support a targeted approach
to rent recovery, be endorsed.

FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

The Facilitator presented the current Forward Work Programme for consideration
and the following changes were agreed:

e The specialist housing report be moved back from March to the meeting on 1st
May.

e That a report on the concept and options available in using modular homes to
increase the supply of Council properties be submitted to a future meeting of the
Committee

RESOLVED:

(@)  That the Forward Work Programme be noted; and

Tudalen 6



60.

(b)  That the Facilitator, in consultation with the Chair of the Committee, be authorised
to vary the Forward Work Programme between meetings, as the need arises.

MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS IN ATTENDANCE

There was one member of the press and one member of the public in attendance.

(The meeting started at 10.00 am and ended at 11.17 am)

Chairman

Tudalen 7



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 4

r" Sir y Fflint
-y . .
Flintshire

COMMUNITY AND ENTERPRISE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting Wednesday, 13t March 2019

Report Subject Update Report following the Disabled Facilities Grant
Internal Audit Report 2017

Cabinet Member Deputy Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for
Housing

Report Author Chief Officer (Housing and Assets)

Type of Report Operational

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Following the report to Scrutiny on the findings of the Internal Audit Report which
was issued in May 2018, this report provides an update on progress and
management actions taken to address the issues raised.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1

That members note the content of the report and the action taken to date.

2

Members support the ongoing work in the service to improve service
delivery to our customers.

Tudalen 9




REPORT DETAILS

1.00

EXPLAINING THE DISABLED FACILITIES GRANT INTERNAL AUDIT
REPORT

1.01

A Disabled Facility Grant (DFG) is a mandatory grant to help individuals
living with a disability with the cost of adapting their homes to enable them
to continue living at their residence with the maximum amount of
independence.

1.02

The administration of DFG is carried out within the Housing and Asset
portfolio following a referral from an Occupational Therapist once the
appropriate considerations have determined that the best option for the
individual is to have an adaptation to the property they live in.

1.03

DFG is available to owner occupiers and private tenants, for Local Authority
tenants and tenants in social housing there are separate arrangements in
place with their housing provider.

1.04

The maximum amount of grant available in Wales is £36,000

1.05

Where the application is for a child, or the applicant is in receipt of certain
qualifying benefits, there is no means test and the cost of the adaptation up
to the maximum grant will awarded.

1.06

For other applications the amount of the grant will vary from zero to
maximum grant depending on the cost of the approved works and the
financial circumstances of the applicant.

A means test will be carried out to establish, based on the financial
circumstances of the applicant, whether the applicant will be required to
make a financial contribution to the adaptation costs.

1.07

As part of the 2016/17 internal audit scheduled programme an audit of the
DFG service was undertaken with the following brief:

e Compliance with relevant policies, procedures and regulations;

e Administration of the DFG scheme;

e Third party service level agreements and protocols; and

e Performance monitoring

1.08

The Internal Audit report was issued in May 2018 (appendix 1) and
concluded that an urgent system revision was required with key controls
absent or rarely applied and, as a result, a limited (red) assurance level was
given.

1.09

In order to ensure there was an adequate and urgent improvement to the
delivery of the DFG an oversight board was established in July 2018.

1.10

Since then work has been ongoing to address and implement the
recommendations contained within the audit report and to review service
delivery in order to make improvements.

1.11

An updated action plan is attached at appendix 2 and provides information

Tudalen 10




and details the progress made to date.

Some of the improvements and changes are detailed below:

1.12

In May 2018 the financial assessment element of the DFG process was
integrated into the benefits service in order to enable the cross referencing
of data already held to speed up processes and enhance the overall service
delivery.
In late Autumn 2018 the remainder of the service transferred to the Benefits
Manager

1.13

To help understand how other Local Authorities manage the process and in
an attempt to learn from others, Denbighshire County Council invited the
team to visit them to understand their processes and approach to DFG
service delivery.

This has led to a significant amount of work being carried out between SPOA
(single point of access), Social Services Occupational Therapy teams and
the benefits service, to streamline the process prior to the adaptation
request being made to ensure that as much information and evidence is
captured at the outset to prevent duplication and customers being asked for
information several times over.

1.14

Processes within the services have been mapped and streamlined and
procedures for process and quality assurance have now been developed
and are in place.

1.15

The performance monitoring of contractors has been strengthened and a
framework for measuring this has now been introduced. All contractors
have been informed that there are now key indicators by which they will be
measured.

1.16

DFG work was suspended in Autumn 2017 due to budget pressures and the
cases were put on hold until April 2018.

This has had an impact on overall performance reporting for 2018/19 as
some of those cases were on hold for as long as 4 months.

This backlog of work has largely been completed, however, there are still a
few cases ongoing due to the size and complexity of the adaptation required.

1.17

Due to the revision of processes and the launch of a new contractor
framework during the year we have been in a position to do a direct
comparison between new and old ways of working (based on data April to
December 2018):

Tudalen 11




Average days to deliver DFG's

200

Valueworks average 151 Previous system average Total average to date 312
370

This should provide an element of assurance that moving forward into the
new financial year performance should significantly improve when the
legacy cases are all complete.

1.18 | Work will continue into 2019/20 to further improve service delivery times and
quality and bring the service into line with the recommendations following
the Wales Audit Office Housing Adaptations Report and the Welsh
Government Housing Adaptations service standards.

A copy of both of these reports are attached for information at Appendix 3
and Appendix 4.

2.00 | RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01 | None associated with this report

3.00 | CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 | An Equality Impact Assessment will be required during Spring 2019 when
the current policy is revised.

4.00 | RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 | The current risk register for DFG is attached at appendix 5.

5.00 | APPENDICES

5.01 | Appendix 1 — Internal Audit Report May 2018

Appendix 2 — Audit Action Plan

Appendix 3 — Wales Audit Office Housing Adaptations Report February
2018

Appendix 4 — Welsh Government Housing Adaptations Service Standards
February 2018

Appendix 5 - DFG risk register February 2019

Tudalen 12




6.00 | LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
6.01 | https://www.audit.wales/publication/housing-adaptations
Contact Officer: Jen Griffiths — Benefits Manager
Telephone: 01352 702929
E-mail: jen.griffiths@flintshire.gov.uk
7.00 | GLOSSARY OF TERMS
7.01 | Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG) — A statutory grant of up to £36,000 to

help individuals living with a disability with the cost of adapting their homes
to enable them to continue living at their residence with the maximum
amount of independence.

DFG Top Up Grant — a discretionary grant which can be awarded where
the cost of the adaptation exceeds the £36,000 grant limit up to an amount
of £39,000

DFG Top Up Loan — a discretionary loan, secured against the value of the
property, that can be issued to meet the costs of the adaptation in excess of
the DFG Grant cap and the DFG top up grant

Disabled Facilities Relocation Grant — a discretionary grant of up to
£20,000 to cover the costs of a disabled person’s move to a more
appropriate property.

Land Charges — these allow the Council to register interest in a property so
that should the property be sold or transferred to another person, the Council
has the ability, once the appropriate conditions are met, to reclaim the value
of the charge.

Means Test — A review of a person’s financial circumstances to determine
eligibility for assistance.

Tudalen 13



https://www.audit.wales/publication/housing-adaptations

Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



uojuido upny

Page 23
Tudalen 15

HpNY [BuIdlu] dJiysiulj4

| xipuaddy



4

(uaa19) (1aquy)
MO wnipan

(poy) ybIH Ajuongd

‘pajuawa|dwl
a( 0} suonoe paaibe jo Ajuoud pue Jaquinu ay) sybiybiy mojaq ajqe) ay L

'S|0JJuC aAiloayse Jo ajenbape JO HoB| B (UOISN|OU0D
S20JN0SAI JO
asn 1o )s09 Auessadsuun pue jueoyiubis e je jpw Bureq
ase Jo ‘1ow Buieqg Jou aie saAioalqo sseooldwRisASe  papjun - poy
1SIX3 JOU S0P uonewlojul jJuswabeuew Aoy
patdde Ajaiel 1o JusSqe ale S|0JU0D ASM .
{Buimo||o}
ay} jo aiow Jo 3u0) painbal uolsiadl welsAs Jusbin

uoneuedx3 :90URINSSY

:S[9A9| S%URINSSE JNO SlIEYSp Modal ay) Jo ¥ xipuaddy
‘pamalrsl ease su) uiypm pabeuew Buieq ale sysu A[ANDalE MOY Uo
uoluido aoUBINSSE [[RJAA0 U )M Juswabeuew apiaoid am Lodas yoea U

-uouido upny

Bunsixa s,)uealjdde ay) j0 anjea ay} usamyaq deb Aijqepioye ayy Buibpuq
SE [|[om SB SS0IAIDS JO UOIJOBUU0Y puB S)SOD |[BAOWSI SB Yons sasuadxe
slonod uesb siy) -Auadoid asjeudoidde siow e 0} asow suosiad
palgesip e Jo sasuadxa 8y} JA0D 0) S|gejleAE S| JUBIC) UONEJ0|9Y Salj|ioe ]
pajqesiq e ‘sduspisal Juaund sjuesdde ay) je sigennsun ale pasnbal
suoneldepe sy} aisym ‘Ajjeuomppy -AnsiBay pue sy je Auadosd auy
jsurebe abieyd [epueuy e se pass)sibal s jJunowe ueo| sy) pue $J91dnIKo
Jaumo o) papinosd Ajuo s| ueo| sIyl HOEF JO Nw| Alojnjels Sy} pasoxe
suonejdepe ay} 10} syiom pannbal ay} aleym SSOUBISWNDLAD [euol)daoxs
Ul paiapisuod aq | ueo] dn do| Aleuonaiasiq sanoed pajqesiq v

‘000°9€F Si SaleM
Ul a|qeAed juelb wnwixew ayj, ‘}S02 ay} Jo Juad Jad gQ| O} 018Z wouy Aea
Aew paiayo s|geied Juesb JO JUNOWE 3y} JUIWISSASSE SIY) JO SWON0 BY)
uo Buipuadaq -yoeuag BuisnoH Jo/pue uoponpay Xe] |1ounod jo Jdiesss
ul s1 Jueoydde ynpe ayy assym pue sjueddde pyo jo uondeoxs ay) E:s
suonesljdde uo N0 palled aq |IM JS9) SUEBSW Y 'SSIUBISWNILD _m_ocmc_.x/_ m_
sueodde ue ajqesidde asaym pue sylom paacidde ay) Jo 1S00 3y} U0 @ -
puadsap |m Juelb jo Junowe sy 7sidesay | euonednasO ue woil |eusad w {3
e Buimo||o) wes) uoiesauasbay siounos syl Aq pauuopad st 94Q 92Ul joa. ©
uoljelsiuILpE 9y | "eouapusdsapul JO JUNCWE WNWIXEW 34} YIIM 3oUspIsal .w
J1ayy 18 Buiall anuiuod 0) Way) dqeus o) sawoy sey) Bundepe Jjo 1so0o 8y} |—
yum Apgesip e ypm Buia sienpiaipur disy o} Jueib Auojepuew e sl 94Q v

‘Buloyuow asuewIOpad e

pue ‘sjooojoid pue sjusweslfe |aas] 2ainas salped pay) e

‘awieyas 940 JO UoesSIuWpyY e

‘suonenBas pue sainpasoid ‘sajoljod Jueasial yum aouedwo) e
‘paJapisuod pue
pamalaas Ipne ayl "/ 1/91L0Z 10} Ue|d [enuuy Jpny [eulsiu| paaoidde sy
J0 Hed se uayepspun sem (94Q) JuelS sani|ive] pajgesiQ syl Jo Jpne uy
:odoog pue uononpolju|

:Alewwng aAjnNoaxg |

sjuel) sanoe pajgesig — Hoday Hpny jeussju|



38ed|g

yjogq u] -suopefisaaul psjejal oM} 0} 8Np JJOMSWEL, PBaUORUSLUBIcE
ay} N0 (|01 0} S|geun SEM BJIAIBS Byl  omawel sy} jo ued
w0} S10J0BIJUOD BUIU JO [BJ0} ¥ “loyddng ay) jo suonebiiqo su) pue SYI0MA
3y} Jo uoisiaold 8y} 10} SUOHIPUOD PUB SWIS) UlBW By} ‘syiom Buuspio
10} 2inpasoJid ay} N0 189S YJomawels iUl “/1L0Z Aenigad ui pajuawssidul
8q 0} anp pue pasiasp sem ylomawelq uoneydepy ©4q @2yl "Asuow
10} Bn|eA JaAllp pue sajessawl AJiaaep aonpal 0} Japlo ul asueuuopad
JoBNUOD pue 3DIABS JO MBIASI disljoy ay) o) Bupelss spuswanoidwl
jouod a0} sapunuoddo Jo sequnu e payBiybly sey meinal ayl

‘QJBINDIE PUB 1B} ST ,S)IOUN0) JaYlo YIm uosuedwos elep
souewlopad aINsSUS ©) JUBWEINSEAU |4 [Buolieu o4 3\ uo asuepinb
pue Aue pajsanbal aaey {10UNoOn Syl pue Jojedipul sdueulopad sy}
Jo Aoenbape ay) uc Bunjnsuod Jo ssa20id ay) Ul S1 JUSWIUISADL) US|9AA SUL
‘sajeasaw} Alaaep Bugoedwn snyl pue xaidwod alow ABuiseaioul ale 0
palinbal syiom 40 9y} JO SINjeU BY) JBY) payiluapl os|e sey 321A19S Y Lo\

)

Tu%lalen 17

‘uonoejsyes
Jaulolsno |lesaac pue Aaalep 2o1nes  Jo Juawebeuew poddns o
9AI103Y49 Jou S| } pue souewiopad ©4Q Jopuow 0} 821ASS aY) Ag pasiyn
Jojestpur asueuopad Ajuo sy st SiUy Auaung ‘3ne|oA sem LL/9L0eZ J0)
aouewuopad Auspenb Jsramoy ©4(] J0) JOJESIPU| SOUBWIONS [BUCHEN
oy} Aq pajosyas se Jedh snolaaad auyp Jaac pasocudun pey ssueunopsd
90IA9S B} pemoys /1/910¢ Joj ejep adsuewlopad Apeak ||essAQ

Pa

*Anp Aojnjels S| sj@aw IounoD
3y} pue papunyapun Jou s| a21AI19s aUy) ainsus o) Bupjoel; 196png aaocidw
0] apew aq 0} ale sjuswaiueyuy -pieoq swwelboid jossy |epded
By} BIA PRUSPISUOD 3q pInom yiom uoiejdepe Aouablowsa Auy “suofnedijdde
Aouabiawa-uou auod)sod 0] apeuwl Jaje| Sem UQISIDAP ¥ "Sased Xajdwod
Ul 8sSEaloul 8y) puE S)S02 UONONASUCD Ui asealoul Jueuoneyul o) Bunejal
suoldope Jo s)s09 Buisu ay) 0} snp papiwqgns usaq pey anssaid 19bpng
B ‘MOIASI 9y} JO Sw By} 3y ‘uol|iw |3 sem jebpnq ©4Q 81/.102 8yl

‘paseyaind aq 0} Auadoid ay) pue swoy

sjuel9) saniioe pajqesiq — Hoday Jipny [eusaju)



‘Jpne 3y} 1o
awn sy e Buidojoasp |Ins a1em sassaoold pue swajsAs au) jo abpamouy
SIY ‘3|04 Ul 3wy siy 0} anq “210Z Anp ul pajulodde Ajuaoal sem oym PEDT(0 o
awweJsboid uonelausbay ay) AQ peouswWLLIOD JIPNE Sy} SIUIS MaIASL JIBpUNCN
Apuanuno ale sassasoid ©4F aY) Jo swos eyl pabpsimouwyoe aq pinoys @~
1| "2A0QE pauoiUaW pue MalAal sy} noybnolyl psynuep juswsAcidu = @
10} seale swos 0} pa| sey wes) uonejdepe oy uypm suopsodll ©
uado jo Jaquwinu B yIm pauiquiod Siy) pue Jesk jse| ay} J8A0 301AI8S 3y}

uIyIm a1njongs Juswsbeuew ay) 0} sebueyd Jo JBquINU B U2aq 3ABY 318y |

Tud

‘Juswaalbe YIo0matel mau
ay) Jopun 61/810Z JO Z pue | s:apenb ul paiapisuod aq s gL//10g bulnp
paliajep S9SED D4 9SOY) MBIASI 3Y} Ul PpayuSpl UOILEIO|E HJOM 10}
ssaooud ay} 0} Bunejal anss! BullapUS) aY) SSAIPPE [IM SIY) SE YIoMmIel
yiom uoneldepe ayy Bunuswaldwn Ayny jo ssascoid By} Ul S| 0IAI9S BY |

"NIOM © 4 SNOLIBA 8Uj} JO} JApUS} 0} SI0)0BIU0D asay) Buniaul Apuaiung
sI 92198 2y pouad wusiut siW Buung  “podad SIYl LIYIMm papnjoul ueaq
aAeY @saly) pue payjuapt alam saanoesd Buppom anosdwi 03 seunuoddo
BUIOS JOADMOY JOMSUE O] 9SED OU SEM 219U) SBM M3IAS1 81} JO SW0oIN0
sy ‘secuejsul Yoq U] -uoneulwexs juspuadspul |ewssixa Bulaleoal
1SHy 3yl Upm Ajjeussjul pajonpuod a1am suonebnsaaul ay) saoueisul

sjuel sanljioe pajgesiq — Hoday PNy BuISiu|



Aiamjsp 40 uonesyuapP! 8Y) YIM JSISSE O} Jusioyns jou si Aisaliep 940g
30 soueuncpad Jopuow 0} adiAtas Byl Aq pasin Jolesipl esueunopad
[euopeu Jua1nd ay) ‘os|y "ajep o0} dn pue a)adwos Jou si puads 186png
pue ssaifoid uoneoydde oen o} pasign }eayspealds ©4q |yl .
‘agsuewlopad
10J9B1JUOD M3IAS] 0] paulejulew jou S| uojewlojul Juswabfieue .
-Bunsa)
ay} ybnosyy paynuapl usag aaey Alaalep $s220id Ul SSIOUSISISLUOU]
'$839001d O x8|dwod ay} yuwm Guiesp ul yeis meu }sisse o} aoe|d
ui Jou si sassasold 94 JuaLNO By} 1o} SaINPa0.d pajuBWINoQ .
‘sjuswiannbal ¥4QoO aininy pue Joy uolosiold ejed
usun2 ayl ypm juerdwiod jou ase uuoy uofieddde ay) uiyum psulepLoo
saonou Aoeaud ayy ‘Ajeuomppy -uonedydde aui jo Aupgeploye sy}
SS9SSE 0] PaNss] S| YdIym a)ep Jo jno si wioy uonesyidde ©4g au; uyum
Ip212 xXe} Buppom pue Jpaid xel pIys Joy unowe Aupqibiye awooui .
‘ueon dn do | Aleuonaiosiq saDES Pajgesiq oyl
JOJ WiNWIUIW 3U) Mojaq pue Juwip AIoJnjels 4Q aU} SPasaxa JUNOWE 3Jom
ay} a1aym suonedljdde ym [eap 0} pauyap uaaq Jou sey ssasold .
‘93A19S B} uyIm uciielado ul sasjoeud
juauno 0} paubie Ajn} jou osje s1 Aoljod 8yl ‘GLOZ U pamsiasl ise|
sem Adjjod Juawaaoudw) pue femaudy BuisSnoH J0JosS SleAld a3yl .
‘oWl aJe ueo|
dn do] sopyioeq pajqesiq ay) pue jueio uonedoldy sanijioed palgesig
ueis) ssiine] pajgestg S} JO SUOIPUCD BUt S]JedISUoWap 0} S|0JuU0d ‘Aanep
PaJiWi| Sle U9y} ‘OS|y "SUORIPUCD juelS) sauiceq pajgesiq |y sed 54 Y} 19A0 Jybisiano apiaoid o} Asusnbais paalbe syt Jad se pjay bureq
se Apadoud auy Jsuiebe paseld Buiaq sAemje Jou ale sabieyd pue o 3le sbugasw pleog swwelbold suonelsusbay pue BuisnoH ayl .
'sso%0.d JuaLnd ay) "}S9) SUBaW pue BUSLD |BIDUBLY JUSLIND 3Y) UO paseq suoneddde
Japun pajejol aie 1apus) 0} pajiAUl SICJOBNUCD SINSUS 0} SJOJU0D pajiwly 940 3y jo |eacudde ayy poddns 0} a|geese Sem 32UapPIAT .
ale a1y} Ajleuoippy ‘ua)euspun jou si ssasoid Juelb pua o) pua |ny ‘suoneadde o4q paaoidde |[e 1oy a|gejieae
ay} 0} Bunejal yejs Aq pae|dulod yiom ayj 1o Jybisiaro Juswabeuepy e alom eay feuonednoo Aq papiugns swuioy jeual uogeydepy .
juawaaociduw] Jayling Joj sealy lI2M pabeuepy sealy

Page 27

:sbuipuld Artewwng g

sjuel9) salliioe pajqesiq — Hoday Ipny [euiaju)

Tudalen 19



adegd|s

"Jud1|9 3y} o} Juas Buidg sAem|e JouU a1e SUORNGLIU0D

walo pue junowe Juelb Buipnpui s1BNRS| |eAacidde  jueig)
"AauowW 1o} aNjeA S1BNSUCWISP 0} M3IAS) 10}

a|qe(IeA. JOU SEM JuBLIRaIBY YJOMSWEI SIS YIT YeUuuels ayl
"uopesyidde 944

e J0 auioep auy) voddns 0} ajge|ieAe sAem|e Jou SI Bjep S8} SUESI

‘pelep pue paubis usaq pey suopnesdde ueot dn do] 94 jle ON
"SONSSI

juswaAcudii] Jayund 10} sealy

sjueI9 sanioe ps|qesiq — Hoday Ipny [eusau|

oo]
N
@
=)
©
o

1A\ pabeuey seaty

Tudalen 20




aded| ¢

"SJOJOBJUOD JO UONIDISS 10 UONE}O. Sy} ybnosy
pue jomawel uojeldepy ©4g 2y Buisyyn Aq Asuow
10} 9NjBA UIB}GO JOU S30P [IDUNCY 3y} Jey} ¥su e sasod sy,

‘Ajonnoays pajelado sjonuos ainsus o) siabeuew uaamiaq
JSAOPUEY B JO uofejjioe) auy) pajuanald pue sanss| asouy)
10 y1ogq 0} pawnquiuoo sy -Jabeuep uonelauabsy auy Jo
ainuedsap ay) Jaye syjuow xis 1sod o} paubisse sem pes
swwelbolq uoneisualbisy v "JUBSEA Sulewal 8|0) 8U) pue
Iaunos) ay) ya] Jebeuey ucnesauabay ay) /102 Aenuer u|

‘pa2nposuR) si Bulopuow
asuedwos pue o} passype Buieq s| ssaooid ay) se
Buo| se ylomaulel) 54 Mau Ay} jo uojeuawa|dwl ayl yim
passalppe a4 |\m Jane] ay} pasiuboosal st ) Loz 20uls 0}
palaype uaaq jou pey pue 23a|dwosul aq 0} puno) Sem siu}
G020 N¥n | ‘Ss@201d Juauind ay} jo ped se Japus) O} PajiAul SI0)BIUOD
Jo uonejlod oy yorap 0) 22eld ul Buuoluow  SISYAA

‘Asuoul ‘ssanaid uoneao)e

1o} anjea pue puads jabpng Buuoyuous | Juelb pus o} pus ay) o} Buneas yeis Aq peis|dwod iom
1SUm Sauaisype |einpasold aleiSUOCWap | 9y} JO usyeuspun Jou st Jybisisao juswebeuew ‘aonoeid
0} Bulojuow SNONUUOS pue Mlomawel | ajeudosddeu; paynuspl jou sey manal a8y} ybnouyyy
94Qg Mau ay) jo uonelawsdui |n4
"ssaoold uoneldepe ue Ul paMoau; safels Jo Quolew
n ‘ssa1b0.ud pue aouendwod | ay) 10} s|qisuodsal die WoOym Wea} ayY) UIyIm SIsujo

_ wa)sAs Jopuowl 0] S9SEd  |enplaipul | Aay ase asay] Ajuanbasuon “YGEF JO UOKINPaAl B SBY Wed)

gL0z Ael L | mopnpy ydasor | Jo ssedoid meiae) pajuawnoop ajebisu) | suonejdepe sy unpim s1s0o Buyjels aul ‘21/910Z ddUIS

UaYAA OYAA uonoy paaiby suonesljdw) pue sbuipul4

Iammhomm‘so._m __

BB 3} JO S2AN22Ig0 ayl Bumaiyse Ul sysu Juesyubis o] ainsodxs ploAe o} Uoloe salinbay HHA .........

‘Aousiowse jeucnesado aaosd JO [0U02 BoUEYUS 0] PABEINOIUD UORIY

12qWy) Wnipsy

P e R

18U SJE MBIARJ JSPUN BAJE BY] JO $BAIRIGO Byl 1By} aInsus 0) aaneladul SI uonaYy

Ue|d UoNoY €

sjuess) saljioe pajqesiq — Hoday Ipny [eusaup

uonduasaqg

Tudalen 21



aded|g

810Z Ael L€

g10g aunr Qg

81L0zg AInr 0¢
Uaym

mopxniy ydesor

molxny ydasor

1211EAA IIEIN
OUM

99020 NdN

"Iy 14 Uo papiooal
pue pasn sjoJuod ss800.d | 2InsSud

0} 99e(d ut Ind aq 0} $94Q Ife 10} I8! 308UD

‘palinbal alaym ‘saipadosd
weagjel oy Jsuiebe paoceld usaq
aney sabieyos pue| ainsus 0} paja|dwos
ueaq aAey yoym ueo dn dol 949
pue s34 e 40 paje|dwos aq 0} M3IA] Y

‘Malnal Aoljod ypm
aul| ul ueo dn do) Aseuonaiosi sanyioeS
pajqesi] oYyl Ppue Juel9 uonEd0IRY
sanioed pagesiq  welo  ssnioey
pejqesia Sy Jo} pejejndns  suoppuod
ay) AlueA 0} paonponul 2g 0} S|oNUoD

uoloy paalby

pue sjuswsalinbas asay) ajendns jou saop wuoy uoneodde
Juelb 8y ‘pPalUBA q 0} PasU SUOPUOD JueIh asay) I1S|IUM

‘uonewoul sy} Joayo o} averd
ur Jou s1 sseooud vy "piedas S| ueO| a8y} |UN 39uUBINSU
sbuiping Ag pasenod aq isnw Apadosd ay) jey) si
SUOINPUO2 UBOD| Y} 40 3UO - Leo| dn do) Aeuoneiosiq .
‘(papleme usaq JoAs aAel ¢ AJUo) [Bululw S| sjuel
uonEoOR) JO BWDIOA 3} pabpamowde s1 ) -Apadoud
ayy Jo aseyoind ay) o) Joud pieme Buieq Juelf ay) o} anp
Kjobie| si siyy payosyo Buiaq si sy} SjR)SUOWSP 0} S|4 Uo
20USPIAR OU S| 2194} Jeyy) paynuapl sey Bunsa) -Jussaid
spiezey | Aobajeo ou aaey isnw Apadosd paseyoind
ay} 1ey) s ueIb 2y} Jo UORIPUOD B - JUBIC) UOEIORY .
suonipuos Buimojjos sy} 128w 0)
aoe|d Ul aJe S|oUOD paJW payiuapl sey Bupsal jJaw aue
suonpuoa ueoq dn do) Aleuonauosiq sanioed pojqesiq
pue jueio uopedojey salioed pajqesiq el Aoed
pa|qesiq] || 24Nsua 0} S[oIIUoD pajil| 3le 818y} ‘AjleuoclippyY

%2013 Buyejo) sasadoid aansedsal ay) jsuiebe
paoe|d useq jou pey sabueys pue| sased [|g Ul payuap!
sem )l ‘suojesijdde g jo ajdwes e wol4 “Igjsues) Ayadoid
10 9jeS B Jo JuaA3 ay) ul predas s| ueot dn doj 8y} ainsua
0} Asibas pue| ay} e Auedosd ay) Jsuiebe abieyo |eoueuy
e sg palslsibas osie si unowe ueo dn doi 940 aul

"000'01 3 J0 JuswiAedas wnwixew e o} dn
‘000'S3 aA0qe Juelb Aue 10} 2)ep uonejdwod sy} Jo siesh QL
UIyIMm a0 0} sasooyd Jueolidde ayy i Jueld Jo JuswAeds)
ay; st eib ©4g ay) 1o suolpuod ay) jo sup ‘ueo dn
do} 94Q pue juel) sapoed pajgesiq sy} Joj SuoHIpuod
sy ul pajeindns se uonaddwo YoM Jo aw ay) ye Apadosd
ay suiebe peoeld Buieq sAemje jou ase sabieys pue

suonesldw| pue sbuipui4

sjueln salioe pajqesiq — Hodey upny [ewsju|

Tudalen 22



adedle

810Z Aeiy L€

mopxniy ydasor

SG020 Ndn

‘sjuawaiinbal |efa) pue Axojenfial
JUB.UND |8 YIM Bul| Ul St} INSUS 0} WO
uoneoydde sy} jo pale|dwos aq 0} malnsl

si ejep |euosiad Jo uoisiacud 8y} Jsyleym pue ‘uohewloul |

[euosiad ay)} 10} pouad uonusldl By} ‘uonewsoul ms:,.
Buissaooid o) siseq jeba) ay) ‘uoneuwlo Jizy) Buissasoad |

aq |IM 10UnoD a8y Moy pue Aym uo Juedldde au) asiape
10U saop U Ajleosads "HdJo 3JnN} pue 1oy U0199)0.d
Ble uaund ypm Jendwos jou s uopeddde jueioy
sanjioeq pajgesiq sy} uo sdfjou Aoeaud ay) ‘Ajjeuchippy

‘BLISJID }021100U| DY) 0) 2np pauljpap ag Aew sjuesldde
1ey: ysu e sasod siyy -Aypqibie sujuwl)sp o) pasn pue
6501 3 Aq pajejsiopun st junowe Aupqibie ayy ‘Ajleoyoads
"9Jep Jo N0 S wio) uonediidde 54Q syl LIYIM NP3ID Xe)
Bunjiom pue JIpald xe} pliyo Joj junowre Ajiqibije swoow ay |

8lL0c 8unr ¢

13]|EM IBIN

82020 NdN

‘sauljepIinb mau uiyim
$9SED 959y} afeuew 0] UOIDIISIP SABY [IMm
sIaoO  "(MEF JO UNOWER UBO| WNWIUIN)
ueo dn dol Aeuonsiosiq  sapoeq
pajqesiq sy} molaq ale Ing junowe (Hgg)
welb © 4 sy} pasoxa Ydlym SoSED JUBID
Ulim [BBP 0} MOY U0 paulyap aq o) ssasoid

"pabuajieys oq ) pjnoys |
louncd 2y Joj pedun uopendas jepuaiod B pue spaau
Sjualp 0) yoeosdde jJuslsisuosul ue 0} pes| Aew siy} ‘siseq
ased AQ 9SED B U0 pamalral ale sased asayl ybnouyy

‘anjeA
ueo dn do) Aleuona10sig saniioey pajgesiq ay) Mojaq si
pue junolwe 54 a8y} Spaaaxa JJom a|qibije ay) Jo anjea ay}
alsym SJUI[D UM [ESP O} paulyap uaaq Jou sey ssa00.id v

8L0¢ aunr og

J31IEAA IIEIN

2020 NN

‘Roljod 343 Jo uonoes
S|y} aoeida) 0y paacidde pue psojesid
aq [ euawo Aqibie ym Aewwns
swwelboud adwis v abueyd sawweiBold
Buipuny se Apusnbay sabueys yiom
10 awwelboid yoes Jo S[Iejop SU} ‘foromoH
‘pabueysun suirewss auod Adod aiy)

"uonIpuod
SIY} JO JUSISSSSSE JO JuBLIAINSEBW Y] aje}l|ioe} 0} ssaoo.d
ou S| asey) Apusuns ‘sieak ¢ Jo pouad e 10} sduapisal
urew iy se uesidde ayy Ag paidnooo aq 1snw Auadoud

B} 2JOUM JUBID) UONEI0[RY 94 SuUl JO UORIPUOd 8U} SI |
Siy} Jo ajdurexa uy "991A9s ay] ulyum uonesado u) ssonoeid |

Jua.no 0} ubife jou saop osje Aaljod dy)l ‘GLOZ auni 0 Aq
MBIADI JO) BNp Sem pue aJep Jo o S| L1104 Juawaaosduw|
pue |emousy BuisnoH 10109S 2jBAlld WaLND 9yl

OUM

uoloy paaiby

‘JuawissINqUIal ¥aas 1o aoueldwos
20J0Jus 0] }NoYNpP 2q Aew ) asuanbasucd e Sy "SUOIIPUOD
pue swia) asay) 0} alsype 0} Aiqisuodsal sjuedndde ay)

suoine2idw] pue sbuipui4

—_—

sjueis) senjioe4 pajqesiq — Hoday Ipny [eussiu

Tudlen 23




afed|pT

uonoy paalby

0} sajep Jobue) ‘suljweans o) Jdwaye ue ul | ©4Q |4} Ul pIjoSsyss usaq jou pey panosdde useq |
810 ke L€ | MOXNIN YdISOT | ssan01d Juaiing au} jo maIA2) By BUIMOjo4 | Pey yaiym suoneandde auios jey) paynuapl Bupse) sidwes |
'$52004d Ul sjuelb ||e JO maIAIBAD ‘uonoales Bunss) ajdwes ay) 10} SIseq
ajeunooe ue Buipinoid se |jom se pabeuew | oy} pewloy IS SIYL wBisAs JHV 14 8yl woly pajessuab
pue papodal Aj@jeinooe s| puads jefpng | sem yoiym so4q pencidde |e jo s e ym paplaoid
ainsue 0} aaueuy Aq papinosd uonewojul | a1am Jipne [eussju| “puads jabpnq pue ssasbosd uones)dde
8y} uIm Joayspesalds ©4Q usamiaq | xoel) 0} pasiin S| Yyoiym Jsayspesds 94Q ayi Ul pejosyal |
8L0Z Al L£ mopxnpy ydesor | pejsidwon aq 0) uonelipuodss Auop | aie pascidde ussq aaey yoiym suoneandde ©4qQ (1 1oN | (v) 8
‘paacidun Alaaap aoinues
pue paaaiyoe s| Asuow Jo} anjea Jayiaym Bupenjeas pue
6,020 NXN | S1809 uoneliea ul spual) BuiBiawa ‘souewiopad 10J04JU0D
Jood Bulfnuapi ul isiIsse pinom sjuawanoidwl |onuod
wis)shs Juswabeuew ‘Apqedes Buiodal poddns jou saop wejsAs
S]OBJUOD  SJIOUNDD U} 'SIOBOJd  9sn | ase|d Jusund ay) se padojpasp Apusnbasqns usaq aaey N
0} |ejuajod ay) pue s)eayspealsds |enuewl | S)Payspealds |enuely 019 ‘ASAINS uONdESIIES JBWOISND ]
Jo} paau oyl 3Jeuuya o} sjuswalnbas | ‘uonaldwod 40 S$S|EISOWIN ‘SISOD PUE MIOM JO UOHELEBA
wasAs  oebnseaul  0)  Juswsebeuel | Buipnjoul asuewlopad J0j0EIUOD (B JO yDISiano apiaocld
souewuopdad Jojpesuod uo podal 0} | 0} paulejulew jou SI uoneuuojul juswabeuew Jsasmoy L
810z AelN LS MOJXN|N ydasor | padojensp aq 0) uohewuoy juswabeuely | ‘siseq ased Ag 9SeD B UO PaJojuOW 8Je SI0JoeNuoD | w2
22020 NdN (=
‘payelp ‘possanosd suoneddde
aq o0} sessaooud 94 (|e Joy (suoponnsul | 940 SNOUBA Yl 10} PaUIE}a) UOHEJUSWNDOP pue
NSIP) sasnpasoud psjuawnsoq] | yoeosdde ul saloua)sisUODU 0} pa| Sey siyl 939 ‘sjuswied
‘SISPJO JO UOHELBA ‘UONEBIUSWINDIOP }S8} sueaw ‘Buuspua)l
‘pauljwesal}s aq pINoo ss9001d BU) 10 SpEW | SB YoNs $9ssa90id 94 SNoUeA 2y} uo aouepinb spiaocid
aq UEeD sjuswanoidw a1aym seale Anuspl | 0} aoeld ul Jjou ase sainpadold pslusWwNoog  “ssadoid SR
8L0zZ Aely L€ mopxnpy ydasor | o) pajejdwos aq pinoys malaal ssedold v | ©4Q Wwaund ay) uiyym sebels pg Apuauno ase asayl | (V) 9
"saul 0} Joalgns aq Aew
[IoUNos ay) sk ABpy Ul HdAO JO uononposul ay) yum sojessb
aq | 9ouerdwos-uou jo pouncd syl o} ausnbasuod
ay] -uswannbal |enoenuod Jo Aojmels e jo Yed

suone2ijdw| pue sbuipui4

sjuelo seoe pajqesig — Hodey ipny [ews)

Tudalen 24



s8ed |11

810z Aei L€

Moxn ydesor

‘uopeaddy uein
sanl|loe 4 pe|qesi(] B Jo SUllDap 3} 32UapIAg
0] S| UO psulelal aq 0] ejep 1s9] suesp

9yl uas sAemje Jou SI |NYSSOIINSUN UDAG DAeY Aay |

wesjdde ay; asiApe 0] Jope| aUII9p Y "SlgejieA. ejep }so)

suesuw ay) aAey jou pip (%0€) € ‘paysa} suopeoydde | Jo |
g|dwes e JO "uonedl|ddy Juels) senljioe pe|qesiq o auldap |
ay poddns o} ajqejieAe sAemie Jou SI EJep 1S3) Suea |

810C Aely L€

mopny ydasor

09020 Nun

‘Jueib ay; jo suoypuoo pue
SULI8} 9Y) 0} Jasn 921MBs ay) Aq Juawoaaibe
9ouUSpIAe 0} Sd%uUElsul ||lB ul padinbai
aq o} wlio} uopeodde o4q pewedwod vy

uelb
a4} JO SUONIPUCY puUE Suwd) ay) o) paalbe sey jueondde
B} 22UBPIAS 0] BIGE 29 J0U ABWI [IDUNOD BY) ‘Yons sy

wueadde ay; Aq palep pue paubis
uaaq Jjou pey (%08) ¥ ‘paisa) suogedndde g ayl JO "paIss)
ajdwes aiom suoneoydde g ‘sueodn do ©4q /1L Jojelol e
wol4 "s)9jdwod siam suogesljdde ueo] dn doy 944 ||e 10N

8102 Aely L

810Z eyl L€

8102 AW LE

UM

moxnpy ydasop

mopxnpy ydesor

mopxnp ydasor

OUM

86020 NdN

‘fianiep ©4a
lojluow o} paysijqeisa aq 0} s|dX [eussiu|

‘sjuawaacsdwl
ssasosd U0} sanunuoddo pue Aeep
1o} suQseal puelsiapun 0} paAsIyde udaq
JO0U 8ABY SYS 219UM SISED JO MIIASY

'Sy1S paaibe 1suiebez Aanep jo ssauboud
MBIAD) 0] pajelauab aq o) Bulpodal Alyiuop

‘sdajs sseo0.d ||e 0) paubisse ag
uonoy paaiby

‘sjuawanoldw sseooud
ao1ntes Auapl pue pusds 1obpng abeuew ‘sdouewsopad
aoInes ainseaw o) Ajunpoddo ue Buissiw S| adIARS By

‘Jsujefie painseauws ag
uay} ues AJaalap yaiym o) ssaocud Aamjep ay) jo dais yoses
Joj pauyap uasq Jou aAeY sewel) swin pasibe ‘A|leuoippy

"uooBISIESSIP Jawosnd o) Buygnguiuos pue Assalep |
8o1M9s Ul Aeap o) Buipes) senss! jo uoneoyyuspl ayy |

UUM JSISSE 0} SIOJEDIpUI [BUIA)U| OU D18 2I9Lj} PUB JUIIYNS
J0U s AlaAllep 94 Jo adueulopad JOJUOW O} 90IAI9S
ayy Ag pasipn Jojeoipul @ouewdopad [EUORBU JUSLIND

ay| "ssa%0.d ay) Jo ofiels yoes je suonesldde Jo swinjoA |
3y} sjelsuowap o) ajqe|ieae jou si Buipoday "o4q e Janep |

0] ssao0id JuaLIND aY) uIYyum sdo1s $Z Afualind ase alay)

‘JuV1d puB dZd :890Inos
UIBW g Wouy pajoedxa ejep yum pajeindod si j9ayspeaids
siyl -ssaiboid uoneandde yoel o) ajenbape jou aie WASAS

2Je]4 UBLNG dY) se pes swweibold uonessusbay ayy |

Aq paonpoaul Apuasal sem Jaayspealds siyl 1eayspesids
suonesljduw] pue sbuipuiq

sjuels) saniioe psjgesiq — woday Npny (eusdtu]

Tudalen 25



adedlzrt

1£0¢0 NN

'saInpadoid HdD S.)12UnoD aul Yim aul|
ul Aoenbape loj pamainal aq 0} Juswaaibe

‘sainpaoosd YdD yum auj|
ui Jou Jo 9jep Jo Jno aq Aew Juawesibe Jusuno sy} ‘yons sy

"AauoW JO} SNJeA ajeljsucwWwap o} Ipny o} papiaoid 89 jou
pIN02 19B)U05 3y} jo Adod e ‘Ajoyine Jayioue Ag pamnsoid
Juswsalby yomawel4 e jo Led s| sadlaeg U yeuuelS

gL0zZ fe L€ MopXNiy ydesor | yiomawel4  S83ISS Wi YBUUBIS | 9Y) Joj JOBNUOD Y} Jey) PauLyuod usaq sey U ISIUAA
o o uawAedal Jo SULIB) By}

pue eadde sy} yum pasuie usag pey UonNQUILOD Jeym

£90Z0 NYN | ®2UspIAS 0} Sjgeun si IDUNCY By} ‘BINdsIP B JO JUSAS a3y} uj

‘Junowe paaibe ay) yym 1eps) jeaosdde yuesb

Juelb 2y} JO SUONIPUOD PUE SWLIB) | B} JUSS Jou Sem (9| |) uo ‘payss) suonedidde 6 jo ajdwes

sy} pue ajgesndde i uoNgUIUOd JUSID | B JO "SIY) JO YINSSI B SB SpEW US3q JoU peY suonngLuod

" qunowe [eacidde juelf ayp JO WO O} | DIDUM PBYNUSPI USB( SARY SIIUE)SUI ou YBnoyye Jueddde

810z e L€ | MOXN ydasor | jusio ay) 0} Jues aq o} 1a19| jeacidde 54Q | 0} Juss sAemie Jou S| JSPd| jJunowe pue |eaoidde juels)

19020 NdN

uo3oy pasiby

“sulpap auy 10y |

uoseal ay; Buipnou jueddde ay) 0] pajEdUNWIWIOD USaq |
sey uoIsioep 94 B a5udpiAe 0} djgeun aq Asw [19Unod
suonesijduw) pue sBuipuiy

belavee : frlinr

-oz..

| P . W,

Tudalen 26

sjuei) sapyioed pajgesiq — Hoday upny [euisju|



aded|er

‘8102 udy | woly wes| speusg

‘paiinbal
yom 8y} Jo) Aed 0) sueall a8y} SABY OUM S|ENPIAIPUI O} Paiayo 8q
Aeuwl sjuelo) sanioe pejqesiq ‘eouanbasuod e sy “Iesh |eloueuly oY)
J0 BuiuuiBaq ay} wol weas} suauag BuisnoH syl AQ pajonpuod aq mou
i uoneandde ayy poddns 0] papiacid uogewlcul [BiouBUlR 94 aU) 4O
uonepliea ay) pasiape aasy a9IAas 8y | Juesldde o4 e Ag pepiaoad

BuisnoH ay) Ag paje|dwos aqg [m uonepljea ejep uoneddde 64 ay| | uonewlojul |eloueuy ay) ajepljea Ajuapuadapul Jou S80p [I2UN0YD) Ay Z n_N_
:uonsabbngy =

AP

‘JueIg sy} jo suohipuod o ©

pue suus] ypm Aldwoo O} apew Sjuswpuswe pue palojuowWw aq 0} 5)) =)

94Q 03 10edwi /A3UOLU JO} BNjEA PUE N0 P3J|0] 3 0} HJOMSWEL MU aY | n.m _W

gULTETEY
JaAalaym seale pue SadIAISS JBYJ0 WOl S)SOD OS|E pue S)sod Juoisly
Jsuiefe pa)yewyosuaq pue pasAjeue aq | asay) esud Joeiuod
wol suojjeueA Aue pue syJom pala|dwiod JO 1SOD By} ‘SI0)0BIIU0D
0] pajedojle YIOM JO Spi0d3l P3|IB}Sp UIBJUIBW [IM 3D1A8S BYL

‘s}sanbas ©4q Jo Jaquinu sable| e YNy 0] AjIge ,s|1ounos) st uo oedu
ue sAey |Im s1s00 Jaybiy ay) pue Asuow IOy snjeA sjelnsuowsp o)
3|ge 2q Jou Aeuw [IDUNOCY AU} JBY) YSU B S| 818Y) ‘SISB] UOB)0l B UO YIOM
Buneaojje Ag -anysjul4 ybnosyy yiom uoneidepe jo uolsiaold sy Joj
JusWwaalby yiomawel4 uoneydepy © 4 mau 2y} Jo Led se si0Penuod
panoidde snouea ay) usamiaq JSoo Ul uopeuea juedyiubis e s alsy]

l

juswiwon Juswabeuep

:Aauoly 1o} anjep

suonsabbng/sbulpuld W4A

"payuapl uaaq aAey Juawanosdwi Jayuny Jo} Ayunuoddo o seale pue palapISuod Usaq sey Aauow Joy anjea
‘uoIuIdo JIPNE [|BISAO SY} UIYJIM PIPN[AUl US3Q JOU SBY YDIYM JNg passnosip uaaq sey Buipuy v
:9J9UYM Seale 350y Jo siabeuepy wiosul 0} I uonoas siy} Jo asodind sy

Sjusliwod Jipny [euolippy v

Sjueld) salioe pejgesiq — oday Jpny [eusau|



ad8ed|vT

Page 36
Tudalen 28

Jabeuepy uonelsusbay

moxny ydasor

uonesauabay pue asudisju] -1ebeuey a2M9S I9lIeM lieIN
JuawuoliAug pue Buuue|d — 1800 1BIuD MOLIE] MBIPUY
aAnoax3g JayD NaIaAg U0

suonoy pesiby Jo uonejuswaidw) ay) 1o 9|qiIsuodssy 19O S|qRIUN0DY

MOlle Malpuy

1817 uonnquisia §

sjuelS sanioed pajgesiq — Wodey Ipny [Buidjyl




afed|sT

uoneue|dxy

“9aYJILUIWIOY) JIPNY U} 0} paodal aq {Im S)IPNE douURINSSE PajiLIT JO dWog Woy sBuipuiq "palojiuoW aq | suoide paalbe Jo uonejuawsldui

"S|0JJUOD DAIISYS IO d)enbape JO }OB| B UOISNIUOD)
"S82JN0SaJ JO 8sN 10 }S02 Alessadauun pue Jesyiubis e je Jaw Buiag ale 1o ‘Jow Bulaq jou aie saAoalqo ssa204d / WSISAS ®
}SIXD Jou saop uonewlojul Juswabeuew Asy) . paywi
$8550] Jayjo / [eioueuy Jueayiubis (Joj jegualod ay) 10) Jo aouapiAg . - pay
paldde Ajaiel 1o Jussge ale sjonuod Ay .
(Buimo)joy ayj Jo alow Jo auo) padinbal uojsiAal wWalsAs Juabin
"aAljoaaul 10 alenbapeu A|jelaualb ale s|onuod A8y U0ISN[DUO)
'S82JN0S3 JO 9SN JO 1500 Alessadauun ue Je jaw Buisq aie Jo J1aw Buiag jou aie sannoalqo ssaooud 7 waishg .
algel2iun $1 Inq SISIXS UoelLIo Juawabeuew Aoy . awes — | O
$S0] JaU)0 / |etoueuly (104 jeuajod 8y} 10) JO DIUSPIAT o | poyisaquy | N
Aj@anoaya pue Apjus)sisuod pajjdde Jou aie 1o ; pue payijuspl SYSU |[e SSaippe 0} (1.} INq ISIX2 S|0Jjuod A2y o N~ <
(Buimojlo} sy} jo aiow 10 3uo} palinbal JUSLIUOIIAUS joNUOD Ul JuawaAosdwl Juesyubig Gl
‘Maaloays Gunelado Ajeiaualb sjouod A2y uoIsSnjauo) .ﬁ%
sjusuisnipe Joujw AjaAljE|S] SWOS YIM paasiyoe 1a)jeq aq pinod saanoalqo Asy| * | ajqeuoseay (U 5
JUSWIUOIIAUD |OJJUOD 3Y) 8JUBYUS P[NOM S|0JJUOS JO UOIPPE IO JUSWauYal aWwog ° - uoarnl =
1edwi Jueosyubis Aue Jo souapiag ou ybnoy) uogedldde Ul SSIVUBISISUODU] IO f PUB SSSSAUNESM BJE 318UJ INg ISIXa S|0IU0D AdY) . laquy
{Buimoijo} a3 Jo aiow Jo auo) pasinbal Bujuny auy swos jng aoejd vl sjonuon Loy
"80IA188 10 Uoouny
‘'ssaooud ‘Wa)sAs oy} Jo saARoalqo A3y auj Jealep 0} Alaaioays Bunelado ase pue paubisap A[@lenbape usaq aAeY $|0JJU02 A8 UOISN[OUOD
ajgelal uoneulou| o
papsenbajes sjassy ¢ | jenueisqng
sainpadsoud pue suonenbai yjueasiar yum souedwon) . - usalg
Jauuew aAnoays 1so02 pue snewbeld e Ul pasaiyde SaAasiqO .
Ajaanosys pue Apuajsisuod paljdde aie pue Jsixa s|01juod Ay .
{Bumojjo) ay} Jo Jsow Jo |je) adejd uj sjosuod bBuons

aouRINSSY

oy} uo ssaiboid -upne ay) wouy sbuipuy ay) U paseq Si pue Jpne ay) Jo uona|dwiod ay) BuMo||0) PISSISSE SI )| ‘PONIPNE BIJE QY UIYIM S|OJU0D
1O SSBUBANDALD pue Aoenbape SU) UO SI9PIOUSYE}S JSLIO |[B pue Juswabeuew 0) sAIB Ued IpNY [BUISJUL JBY) S2UBINSSE JO [9A3] AU} SI uouido JIpne ay )|

:uojuidQ Jpny — v xipuaddy

sjuels) se|ioe pajgesiq — Hoday upny [euldu|




This page is intentionally left blank

Tudalen 30



TE usjepn

Action
number

2024

Finding Detail

The current Private Sector Housing Renewal and Improvement
Policy is out of date and was due for review by 30 June 2015.
The policy also does not align to current practices in operation
within the service. An example of this is the condition of the
DFG Relocation Grant where the property must be occupied
by the applicant as their main residence for a period of 5
years. Currently there is no process to facilitate the
measurement or assessment of this condition.

Agreed Action

The policy context remains unchanged.
However, the details of each programme of
work changes frequently as funding
programmes change. A simple programme
summary with eligibility criteria will be
created and approved to replace this
section of the policy.

Update

Policy to be adjusted in line
with the welsh government
guidance. Date to be
extended until 31 March 2019.




2079

Contractors are monitored on a case by case basis, however
management information is not maintained to provide
oversight of all contractor performance including variation of
work and costs, timescales for completion, customer
satisfaction survey, etc. Manual spreadsheets have been
subsequently developed as the current Flare system does not
support reporting capability.

Control improvements would assist in identifying poor
contractor performance, emerging trends in variation costs
and evaluating whether value for money is achieved and
service delivery improved.

1. Management information to be
developed to report on contractor
performance.

2. Management to investigate system
requirements to eliminate the need for
manual spreadsheets and the potential to
use Proactis, the Councils’ contracts
management system.

Self assessment checklist to
be developed. Date to be
extended until the end of
March.




2058

Not all DFG applications which have been approved are
reflected in the DFG spreadsheet which is utilised to track
application progress and budget spend. Internal audit were
provided with a list of all approved DFGs which was generated
from the FLARE system. This list formed the basis for the
sample testing selection.

There are currently 24 steps within the current process to
deliver a DFG. Reporting is not available to demonstrate the
volume of applications at each stage of the process. The
current national performance indicator utilised by the service
to monitor performance of DFG delivery is not sufficient and
there are no internal indicators to assist with the identification
of issues leading to delay in service delivery and contributing
to customer dissatisfaction. Additionally, agreed time frames
have not been defined for each step of the delivery process
for which delivery can then be measured against.

1. Monthly reconciliation to be completed
between DFG spreadsheet with the
information provided by finance to ensure
budget spend is accurately reported and
managed as well as providing an accurate
overview of all grants in process.
2.Following the review of the current
process in an attempt to streamline, target
dates to be assigned to all process steps.

3. Monthly reporting to be generated to
review progress of delivery against agreed
SLAs.

4. Review of cases where SLAs have not
been achieved to understand reasons for
delay and opportunities for process
improvements.

5. Internal KPIs to be established to monitor
DFG delivery.

Further options for recording
and tracking performance and
management information are
being explored on the basis
that the current IT system is
due to be changed. Extension
of date requested for the 31st
of March 2019.




Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



22 February 2018

Archwilydd Cyffredinol Cymru
Auditor General for Wales

Housing Adaptations

=

WALES AUDIT OFFICE
SWYDDFA ARCHWILIO CYMRU

Tudalen 35

g |



| have prepared and published this report in accordance with the
Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004.

The Wales Audit Office study team was managed by Nick Selwyn and comprised Steve Frank,
Gareth Jones, Euros Lake, Duncan Mackenzie, Sara Leahy and Sara Woollatt under the
direction of Jane Holownia

Huw Vaughan Thomas
Auditor General for Wales
Wales Audit Office
24 Cathedral Road
Cardiff
CF11 9LJ

The Auditor General is independent of the National Assembly and government. He examines

and certifies the accounts of the Welsh Government and its sponsored and related public bodies,
including NHS bodies. He also has the power to report to the National Assembly on the economy,
efficiency and effectiveness with which those organisations have used, and may improve the use of,
their resources in discharging their functions.

The Auditor General also audits local government bodies in Wales, conducts local government
value for money studies and inspects for compliance with the requirements of the Local Government
(Wales) Measure 2009.

The Auditor General undertakes his work using staff and other resources provided by the Wales Audit
Office, which is a statutory board established for that purpose and to monitor and advise the Auditor
General.

© Auditor General for Wales 2017

You may re-use this publication (not including logos) free of charge in any format or medium. If
you re-use it, your re-use must be accurate and must not be in a misleading context. The material
must be acknowledged as Auditor General for Wales copyright and you must give the title of this
publication. Where we have identified any third party copyright material you will need to obtain
permission from the copyright holders concerned before re-use.

For further information, or if you require any of our publications in an alternative format and/

or language, please contact us by telephone on 029 2032 0500, or email info@audit.wales. We
welcome telephone calls in Welsh and English. You can also write to us in either Welsh or English
and we will respond in the language you have used. Corresponding in Welsh will not lead to a delay.

Mae’r ddogfen hon hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg.

Tudalen 36

Housing Adaptations



Tudalen 37

Housing Adaptations



Contents

User satisfaction with housing adaptations masks a hugely
complicated, reactive and inequitable system that is not
delivering for all those who may need it, and public bodies
are not taking opportunities to improve value for money

Summary of our findings

Recommendations

The current system for delivering adaptations reinforces
inequalities for some disabled and older people, and
addressing need is complicated by the different sources of
funding

National and local policy choices have resulted in an overly
complicated system which reinforces, rather than addresses,
inequality in provision of adaptations

Adaptations are delivered by a large number of organisations
who annually assist around 32,000 people, but spending on
adaptations in real terms is static and delivery complicated by
the different sources of funding

Provision of adaptations to people with similar needs is
inequitable because of inconsistencies in how delivery
organisations provide services

Adaptations are not always effectively promoted to all people
who would benefit

There is a considerable variation in the application,
assessment and approval processes that can create delays
in disabled and older people receiving an adaptation

Delivery organisations take a wide variety of approaches to the
engagement and management of building works and these
are not always efficient or effective

Tudalen 38

Housing Adaptations

17

18

22

27

29

36

45



Public bodies are generally clear on the benefits of adaptations,
but partnership working is ineffective to address need

Census data and population projections suggest demand for
adaptations will continue to increase

Public bodies are mostly clear on the importance of
adaptations in supporting independence, but organisations
continue to plan in silos with limited focus on collaboration or
integration

Public bodies have a limited understanding of the longer term
wellbeing benefits of housing adaptations and there remains
significant scope to reform the system to measure and improve
equality and wellbeing

Recipients of adaptations that we surveyed are very satisfied
with their adaptations

Weaknesses in oversight of performance reinforce the
inequalities of the system caused by the different sources of
funding

Performance management focuses too much on individual
organisation inputs and outputs rather than improving
outcomes and the preventative benefits of adaptations

Tudalen 39

52

53

56

67

68

69

74

Housing Adaptations



Appendices
Appendix 1: Study Methodology

Appendix 2: Definition of housing associations and Care and
Repair agencies

Appendix 3: The five different public funding routes for
adaptations in Wales

Appendix 4: Total projected population aged 65 and over
unable to manage at least one domestic task on their own

Appendix 5: Projected population aged 65 and over with
mobility problems

Appendix 6: The views of local authority managers on the
effectiveness of partnership arrangements between their

local authority and other organisations delivering housing
adaptations

Appendix 7: The views of housing association managers on
the effectiveness of partnership arrangements between their
housing association and other organisations delivering
housing adaptations

Appendix 8: The views of Care and Repair managers on the
effectiveness of partnership arrangements between their
organisation and others organisations delivering housing
adaptations

Tudalen 40

Housing Adaptations

79

81

82

84

86

88

90

92



Summary report

User satisfaction with housing adaptations masks a hugely
complicated, reactive and inequitable system that is not
delivering for all those who may need it, and public bodies
are not taking opportunities to improve value for money

1 With an expanding population of older people, public bodies — Welsh
Government, local authorities and housing associations — need to ensure
they provide housing for older and disabled people to both to allow them
to live a healthy and active lifestyle, but to also continue to contribute
to society and the economy. Part of achieving this is to ensure both the
development of new specialist housing, such as SMART homes', and also
making better use of the existing housing stock through adaptations.

2 Adaptations are intended to change disabling environments in order to
restore or enable independent living, privacy, confidence and dignity for
individuals and their families. Adaptations are not just about the provision
of equipment or modifying a dwelling, but providing an individualised
solution to the problems of people experiencing a disabling environment?.
Adaptations can range from relatively inexpensive items such as ramps
and handrails to largescale extensions with specialist equipment. A
suitable, well-adapted home can make the difference to someone’s ability
to live well and independently. Adaptations offer an efficient and effective
way of making the best use of resources in the current climate of financial
constraints.

3 Increasingly, adaptations are recognised as key to delivering better
outcomes for health services as opposed to solely being the domain of
housing and social care. In meeting the future challenges of a rapidly
ageing society and in addressing any potential care gap that could
arise, adaptations will increasingly be an important contribution in
complementing personal care. To achieve the necessary improvement
requires public bodies to work seamlessly and provide joined-up services
that respond to need and deliver timely, cost effective solutions.

1 Smart Homes use electronic networking technology to integrate various devices and
appliances found in most homes, plus building environment systems more common in
offices, so that the entire home can be controlled centrally or remotely in its entirety. This
technology offers the prospect of significant improvements in the living standards of older
and disabled people who, without automated support, would be reliant on home care.

2 This approach is often referred to as reflecting the.ls&ctljalarpéthel ﬂfflsablhty.

Housing Adaptations



4 This review has focussed on assessing whether public bodies with
responsibilities for delivering housing adaptations in Wales have an
effective strategic approach to housing adaptations that delivers value
for money and assures the continued wellbeing of older and disabled
people. Our study methods are set out in Appendix 1. These include
audit fieldwork at five local authorities and four housing associations;

a commissioned survey of citizens who have received adaptations; a
detailed analysis of data and expenditure on current services; website and
document reviews; and interviews with a range of national organisations.
Based on the findings of this review, the Auditor General has concluded
that user satisfaction with housing adaptations masks a hugely
complicated, reactive and inequitable system that is not delivering for all
those who may need it, and public bodies are not taking opportunities to
improve value for money.

Summary of our findings

5  Roughly 70 organisations deliver adaptations in Wales, every year
collectively spending approximately £60 million and assisting over 32,000
people. The funding arrangements for adaptations is complex and has
helped to create an inefficient delivery system. One of the consequences
of this complexity is that people with similar needs often receive very
different standards of service simply because of where they live and which
public body provides the adaptation.

6 The majority of public bodies with responsibility for adaptations — local
authorities, housing associations and Care and Repair agencies (‘delivery
organisations’) — have seen demand for adaptations increase in recent
years and expect this trend to continue. Census data?® highlights that a
higher proportion of the Welsh population consider themselves to be in
poor health than is the case in England. Welsh Government projections*
anticipate that the number of people in Wales who will experience mobility
problems and difficulties undertaking daily domestic tasks will increase
significantly in the next 20 years.

3 Office for National Statistics, General Health in England and Wales: 2011 and
comparison with 2001, January 2013
4 Taken from Daffodil, a web-based system developed by the Institute of Public Care for the
Welsh Government which pulls together in one place the information needed to plan care,
support and housing services over the nex4-20 rs for ghildren, adults and older people.
i ’ Tudaien 42

8 Housing Adaptations



10

The speed and efficiency of the provision of adaptations can make the
difference between disabled or older people staying in the comfort and
security of their own homes or moving into specialist or residential care.
However, assessment processes are neither streamlined nor efficient

and often contribute to delays. The lack of co-ordination between delivery
organisations, interruptions due to problems arising from the unavailability
of staff or funding, and poor standards of communication characterise the
experience of a small number of service users.

Most public bodies recognise how adaptations can reduce the risk of

falls and other accidents in the home and prevent hospital admissions

and speed up discharge. However, health professionals often find the
different local-authority and housing-association systems for administering,
approving and delivering adaptations difficult to navigate. Complex
delivery arrangements reduce the opportunities for health bodies to make
better use of adaptations.

Given the wide number of routes available to access adaptations, delivery
organisations need to ensure they have robust systems to deal effectively
and quickly with applications. However, many authorities and housing
associations do not have application processes that consistently and
effectively meet the needs of people. Accessible information in a range

of appropriate formats, such as large fonts for visually impaired users or
audio versions for people with hearing difficulties, is often unavailable.

Delivery organisations must balance carrying out building works quickly to
meet the needs and wishes of the disabled or older person, and ensuring
value for money in terms of cost and quality. Most local authorities,
housing associations and Care and Repair agencies have established
appropriate processes to oversee and manage performance of those
carrying out building work, most usually through regular meetings

and dialogue in respect of individual grants. However, few delivery
organisations are working strategically with contractors to streamline and
improve performance, and current arrangements for contracting builders
have some shortcomings. In addition, delivery organisations do not
always have effective arrangements to monitor, review and evaluate the
performance of builders and contractors in delivering individual grants.

Tudalen 43

Housing Adaptations



11 Whilst public bodies are clear on the role of their housing-adaptation
services in changing the home environment to enable or restore
independent living, there are opportunities to better address needs and
avoid and reduce demand and costs in health and social care services.
Few delivery organisations have comprehensive and integrated Housing
Renewal Polices that link decisions on investment with better use of
existing adapted housing. Policies are often property focussed rather client
focussed, and rarely make the strategic link to other organisations and the
wider needs of disabled and older people.

12 Delivery organisations do not always take a ‘whole resources’ view of
their adaptations work and consider the availability and use of all monies
from all delivery organisations within an area. Only seven local authorities
pool funds with Care and Repair and no pooling of funding takes place
between local authorities and housing associations. A small number
of local authorities have developed integrated approaches to housing
adaptations drawing together grants, building surveyors and Occupational
Therapists into single teams. However, too many organisations work in
isolation focussing on their individual responsibilities, rather than working
collaboratively to better address people’s housing and health needs.

13 Nevertheless, approximately three-quarters of people we surveyed
who recently received housing adaptations have a positive experience
with their housing adaptations. Just over 90% are satisfied with the
time taken to deliver their adaptations, and the majority felt the work to
their home allowed them to undertake everyday tasks, improving both
their confidence and independence. Generally, owner-occupiers are
more satisfied than those who rent from housing associations, but most
disabled and older people we surveyed had little influence or choice in the
adaptations made to their home.

5 By whole resources, we mean all the resources available for all public bodies providing
adaptations in a defined local-authority arega.
"“Fudalen 44

10 Housing Adaptations



14 Accountability and transparency in delivery of adaptations have long been
poor®. Despite the different sources of funding for housing adaptations,
only performance in respect of local-authority Disabled Facilities Grants
is publicly reported. However, by only reporting performance on Disabled
Facilities Grants, the Welsh Government is currently only publishing
data that covers 55% of all expenditure on adaptations and 14% of
those disabled and older people who receive adaptations. The Welsh
Government collates some performance data from housing associations
and Care and Repair agencies but does not make this information
available to the public. Weaknesses in current oversight arrangements
mean that effective scrutiny to understand the efficiency and impact of
the ‘whole’ adaptation system is not possible. This makes it difficult to
judge how well organisations are performing and the positive impact of
adaptations on disabled and older people’s lives.

15 The Welsh Government is seeking to address some of these gaps by
introducing new systems to monitor and report performance in delivering
housing adaptations (the ‘Enable’ review). Whilst this addresses some
of the long-standing weaknesses in current arrangements, gaps remain.
Monitoring continues to focus too much on the mechanics of delivering
adaptations and not enough on impact, wellbeing and the wider benefits
of each public body’s investment. Despite highlighting equality as a key
policy objective, we found that few delivery organisations collect and
evaluate a sufficient range of data to demonstrate and ensure fair access
to services.

6 For example, Welsh Government, Review of Housing Adaptations including Disabled
Facilities Grants — Wales: A Report by Chris Jones For the Housing Directorate, March
2005; and Welsh Government Social Research (on the Shelter Cymru website), A Review of

Independent Living Adaptations, January 2015Tuda|en 45

Housing Adaptations



Recommendations

16 Our work has identified a series of recommendations for improvement and

these are set out below.

Recommendations for improvement

Recommendations

12

R1

R2

There are many sources of funding and policies for adaptations, which results in
disabled and older people receiving very different standards of service (paragraphs 1.5
to 1.9). To address these discrepancies we recommend that the Welsh Government
set standards for all adaptations to ensure disabled and older people receive the
same standard of service irrespective of where they live, who their landlord is
and whether they own their own home.

Most public bodies are clear on how their work on adaptations can positively impact on
disabled and older people, and have set suitable aims that provide focus for action. For
adaptations, having the right strategic goals also establishes a clear basis for decision-
making on who should be prioritised for services and how and where to use resources.
However, we found that current policy arrangements have a number of deficiencies
and public bodies are not maximising the benefit of their investment (paragraphs 3.8

to 3.15). We recommend that local authorities work with partner agencies (health
bodies, housing associations and Care and Repair) to strengthen their strategic
focus for the provision of adaptations by:

» setting appropriate strategic objectives for adaptations that focus on wellbeing
and independence;

* improving the quality of information on the demand for adaptations by using a
wide range of data to assess need including drawing on and using information
from partners who work in the local-authority area; and

* linking the system for managing and delivering adaptations with adapted
housing policies and registers to make best use of already adapted homes.

Tudalen 46

Housing Adaptations



Recommendations

R3

R4

R5

Ensuring that all those who might need an adaptation have all the information they
need in order to apply for and receive an adaptation is important. Good-quality and
accessible information is therefore essential for delivery organisations to demonstrate
fair access and transparency. However, we identified weaknesses in the quality and
coverage of public information relating to housing adaptations (paragraphs 2.6 to 2.15).
We recommend that delivery organisations provide information on housing
adaptations in both Welsh and English, and accessible formats including braille,
large fonts, audio versions and other languages. Information should be promoted
widely via a range of media including social media, websites and published
information, and also through key partners. Preferably, information should

be produced jointly and policies aligned between delivery bodies to improve
coverage and usage.

Given the wide number of routes into services, delivery organisations need to ensure
they have robust systems to deal effectively and quickly with applications. However, we
found that the processes used by delivery organisations vary widely and often create
difficulties for disabled and older people seeking assistance (paragraphs 2.16 to 2.19).
We recommend that delivery organisations streamline applications by creating
single comprehensive application forms covering all organisations within a local-
authority area that are available via partners and online.

Delivery of adaptations can be delayed by a variety of factors (paragraphs 2.20 to
2.33). To improve timeliness in delivery we recommend that:

* the Welsh Government reviews whether local authorities should continue to
use the means test for Disabled Facilities Grants (DFGs);

* local authorities provide or use home improvement agency services to support
disabled and older people to progress their DFG applications efficiently;

* delivery organsiations work with planning authorities to fast track and
stremaline adaptations that require approvals;

* delivery organisations use Trusted Assessors to undertake less complex
adaptation assessments; and

* the Welsh Government streamlines its approval processes for Physical
Adaptation Grants (PAGs).

Tudalen 47

Housing Adaptations



Recommendations

R6 Most local authorities, housing associations and Care and Repair agencies have
established processes to appoint, oversee and manage builder and/or contractor
performance. However, we found wide variations in how delivery organisations arrange,
contract and deliver building works (paragraphs 2.37 to 2.44). We recommend that
delivery organisations:

14

* introduce formal systems for accrediting contractors to undertake
adaptations. These should include:

standards of customer care such as keeping to appointments, keeping the
site tidy, controlling noise etc;

vetting of financial standing, tax and VAT status;
promoting good health and safety practices;
requiring the use of warranty schemes;
ensuring that adequate insurance is held; and
requiring references.

* use framework agreements and partnered contracts to deliver adaptations.

* address weaknesses in the contracting of adaptations, updating Schedule of
Rates used to tender work and undertaking competitive tendering to support
value for money in contracting.

* develop effective systems to manage and evaluate contractor performance by:

setting an appropriate range of information to judge performance and
delivery of works covering timeliness of work; quality of work; applicant/
tenant feedback; cost of work (including variations); health and safety
record; and customer feedback;

regularly reporting and evaluating performance to identify opportunities to
improve services; and

providing formal feedback to contractors on their performance covering key
issues such as client satisfaction, level and acceptability of variations, right
first-time work, post-inspection assessment and completion within budget
and on time.

Tudalen 48

Housing Adaptations



Recommendations

R7

R8

Maximising impact and value for money in provision of adaptations requires effective
joint working between housing organisations and health and social care services to
ensure the needs of often very vulnerable people can be met, and their quality of

life improved. However, our findings highlight that delivery organisations continue to
have a limited strategic focus on adaptations, concentrating on organisational specific
responses rather than how best collectively to meet the needs of disabled or older
people (paragraphs 3.16 to 3.21). We recommend that local authorities work with
partner agencies (health bodies, housing associations and Care and Repair) to
develop and improve joint working to maximise both take-up and the benefits
of adaptations in supporting independence by pooling of resources, co-locating
staff and creating integrated delivery teams.

Most public bodies recognise the value of adaptations in reducing the risk of falls,
preventing hospital admissions and speeding up discharge from hospital. However, the
importance of adaptations is not always reflected in local partnership arrangements
and outside of Occupational Therapists, health professionals noted that the different
local-authority and housing-association systems for administering, approving and
delivering adaptations are difficult to navigate (paragraphs 3.22 to 3.24). To enhance
take-up and usage of adaptations with health bodies we recommend that delivery
organisations jointly agree and publish joint service standards for delivery of
adaptations within each local-authority area. The service standards should
clearly set out how each agency approaches delivery of adaptations and how
they will provide services to ensure people know what they are entitled to
receive. Service Standards should:

* be written in plain accessible language;
* be precise about what people can and cannot expect to receive;
* be produced collaboratively to cover all adaptations services within an area;

* set out the eligibility for the different funding streams, application and
assessment processes, timescales and review processes; and

» offer the viable options and alternatives for adaptations including linking with
adapted housing registers to maximise use of already adapted homes.

Tudalen 49

Housing Adaptations 15



Recommendations

R9 Having the right performance indicators and regularly reporting performance against
these are important for public bodies to manage operational performance, identify
areas of improvement and evaluating the positive impact of services. We found that
the current range of performance indicator data is extremely limited and not sufficient
to enable a full evaluation of performance (paragraphs 4.5 to 4.20). To effectively
manage performance and be able to judge the impact of adaptations, we
recommend that the Welsh Government and delivery organisations:

» set appropriate measures to judge both the effectiveness and efficiency of the
different systems for delivering adaptations and the impact on wellbeing and
independence of those who receive adaptations;

* ensure delivery organisations report against their responsibilities in respect of
the Equalities Act 2010;

* ensure performance information captures the work of all delivery
organisations — local authorities, housing associations and Care and Repair
agencies; and

e annually publish performance for all delivery organisations to enable a whole
systems view of delivery and impact to support improvement to be taken.

Tudalen 50

16 Housing Adaptations



Part 1

The current system for delivering
adaptations reinforces inequalities for
some disabled and older people, and
addressing need is complicated by the
different sources of funding

Tudalen 51




1.1

1.2

People who need a housing adaptation can access the funding for such
adaptations based on their housing tenure. The key organisations who
deliver housing adaptations in Wales are as follows:

» 22 local authorities;
« 22 traditional housing associations;

* 11 Large Scale Voluntary Stock Transfer (LSVT) housing associations;
and

» 13 Care and Repair agencies.

(Appendix 2 sets out the definitions for housing associations, LSVT
associations and Care and Repair agencies and their coverage in Wales).

As well as different delivery organisations with responsibilities for providing
adaptations, the funding programmes used vary widely. In this section of
the report, we consider the complexity of current funding arrangements,
the levels of expenditure and the numbers of people assisted, highlighting
some significant inequities in how adaptations are paid for and made
available.

National and local policy choices have resulted in an
overly complicated system which reinforces, rather than
addresses, inequality in provision of adaptations

1.3

18

In total, there are five different funding streams used by delivery
organisations, as well as monies invested by individual people who require
an adaptation. The different funding streams are as follows (Appendix 3
summarises the major policy elements of each of these funding streams):

» Disabled Facilities Grants (DFGs) for owner occupiers, private rented
tenants/landlords and some social housing tenants

* Physical Adaptation Grants (PAGs) for tenants of traditional and
community based housing associations

» Rapid Response Adaptation Programme for owner occupiers and
private rented tenants/landlords

» Adaptations for local-authority and LSVT housing-association tenants
funded from their maintenance programmes

+ Adaptations for some housing-association tenants funded by their
landlord from their maintenance programme to supplement PAGs

Tudalen 52

Housing Adaptations



1.4

In Exhibit 1 below, we set out who is eligible for receipt of funding under
each of the different funding schemes and the current coverage across
Wales.

Tudalen 53

Housing Adaptations



20

Exhibit 1: current provision of adaptations by funding, tenure and landlord in

Wales in 2015-16 and 2016-17

Housing Revenue
Account funding )
of adaptations to Physical Rapid Response
Disabled local-authority Adaptation Adaptation Landlord use of
Tenure Faciliies Grants housing’ Grants Programme OWN resources
& <
\
i \
N, S
Owner O o @)
occupier (provided by all 22 (provided in all 22
authorities) authorities)
Tenant of a O ®
local .
authority (providedin2of  (provided by all 11 ® ®

11 local-authority

areas)

local authorities)

Tenant of an
LSVT

housing Provided in 6 of 11 (provided by all 11
association local-authority areas LSVT
associations)

Tenant of

traditional . . . . .

gzsslc?gﬁ on (provided by all 22 (provided in 10 of 22
housing associations) housing associations)

Tenant of a

private . . —

rented

landlord Provided in 20 of 22 . . (provided in all 22 Not collected

local-authority areas authorities)

Source: Wales Audit Office survey of local authorities, housing associations and Care
and Repair agencies.

7 Local authorities are required to record all income and expenditure in relation to a local
authority’s own direct provision of housing—rvHHélr&HoBng Revenue Account.

Housing Adaptations



1.5 The complexities of the current funding regime with different grants,
funding sources and recipients are partly a reflection of the choices taken
and judgements made on how public bodies will address and meet the
needs of disabled or older people. These are policy decisions set out in
legislation, in terms of who is eligible to receive funding for DFGs, the
Welsh Government policy in respect of PAGs and the Rapid Response
Adaptations Programme, and also the delivery organisations responsible
for delivering adaptations where elements of local discretion exist.
Previous reviews of housing adaptations® highlight that the infrequency
of Welsh Government guidance to local authorities, since the Regulatory
Reform Order 2002, has led to a stark variation in local determination and
service provision. The result is a wide variation in systems, policies and
approaches across Wales that is resulting in disabled and older people
receiving very different services depending upon where they live, who
delivers the adaptation, and whether they own or rent their home.

1.6  We found that 18 of the 22 authorities have revised their DFG policies and
delivery systems to reflect the flexibilities provided by the 2002 Regulatory
Reform Order. For instance, through our fieldwork we identified that local
authorities have used the 2002 Regulatory Reform Order to fast-track
processes for adaptations valued at less than £5,000 with no means test.
Powys County Council for instance operates low-value and less-complex
adaptation schemes in partnership with Care and Repair agencies to
speed up and streamline delivery of minor works. In addition, six of the
11 local authorities who have transferred their social-housing stock to a
housing association, and two of the 11 local authorities who retain their
social housing stock, permit applications for DFG funding from these
social-housing landlords. In these cases, the LSVT and local-authority
landlord are required to comply with the local authority’s Housing Renewal
Policy standards. Twenty of the 22 local authorities also fund DFG
adaptations to private-rented properties.

1.7 In addition, a number of local authorities deal with adaptation works very
differently for local-authority tenants and for homeowners. For example,
we found different systems in place for engaging with builders, specifying
works, overseeing the performance of contractors and the speed of
delivery for works to local-authority housing tenants and owner-occupiers
receiving DFGs, despite officers working within the same teams (see
Part 3 below for further details). Because organisations lack measurable
service standards for adaptations, disabled and older people with similar
needs often receive a very different quality of service.

8 For example, Welsh Government, Review of Housing Adaptations including Disabled
Facilities Grants — Wales: A Report by Chris Jones For the Housing Directorate, March
2005; and Welsh Government Social Research (on the Shelter Cymru website), A Review of
Independent Living Adaptations, January 201

? “Tudalen 55

Housing Adaptations



1.8

1.9

Occupational Therapists who responded to our survey noted particular
weaknesses in respect of adaptations delivered by stock-transfer housing
associations. They noted inconsistencies and gaps in the range, detail,
and quality of information and advice, particularly regarding entitlement
and changes to eligibility criteria. In particular, a small number of stock-
transfer associations encourage disabled or older people who need
housing adaptations to move to an adapted property (which may not
always be immediately available), or remain in their existing home and
wait until a suitable adapted property becomes available.

The current configuration of delivery and eligibility for housing adaptations
means that people’s access to adaptations depends upon their tenancy
status and the local-authority area they live in, rather than on need. A
further confusion is that whilst the legislation determines the work of local
authorities in respect of delivering DFGs and Welsh Government guidance
to housing associations about the delivery of PAGs, the adaptations

to a local authority’s own housing stock can take place outside of the
legislation and PAG guidance does not apply to the 11 LSVT housing
associations. Each of the local-authority and LSVT landlords determine
the adaptations work undertaken to their rented housing and how they
will deliver adaptations for their tenants, although they can also apply for
DFGs as well. The main consequence of these policy decisions is that
people with similar needs receive a different response.

Adaptations are delivered by a large number of
organisations who annually assist around 32,000 people,
but spending on adaptations in real terms is static and
delivery is complicated by the different sources of funding

1.10 Funding for housing adaptations comes from a number of different

sources, including the Welsh Government, landlords’ own resources and
local-authority capital programmes. Exhibit 2 overleaf shows that whilst
the amount of funding invested in adaptations has marginally increased,
rising from £58.7 million in 2013-14 to £60.3 million in 2015-16, in real
terms, expenditure remains static. In addition, some health bodies are
funding adaption work. Cardiff and Vale University Health Board provided
£1,255,196 in 2016-17 towards the cost of adaptations work undertaken
by local authorities in their area. In addition, Abertawe Bro Morgannwg
University and Cwm Taf health boards provided monies to Care and
Repair; £249,679 in the former case and £36,571 in the latter case.®
Outside of this funding, no other health body provides resources to support
adaptation work in their community.

9 Information collated as part of the Wales Nrd&&éffférr]evgg of discharge planning.

22

Housing Adaptations



1.11 All delivery organisations providing funds for adaptations have increased
how many people receive adaptations in the last three years, with the
number of people assisted rising by 11.7%, from 28,594 in 2013-14 to
31,941 in 2015-16. The bulk of people assisted receive minor adaptations
provided by Care and Repair rather than larger refurbishments to their
home. The Rapid Response Adaptations programme delivered by Care
and Repair accounts for roughly 50% of all works undertaken in any
single year. Our research shows that there are a large number of delivery
organisations with responsibilities for funding housing adaptations with
68 different bodies providing adaptations using five different sources of
funding. There are significant variations in the different sources of funding.
Local-authority funding of DFGs has remained static; traditional housing-
association funding and local-authority spending on their own housing
stock has increased; LSVT associations and Care and Repair funding has
decreased.

Tudalen 57

Housing Adaptations



Exhibit 2: cash and real-terms expenditure on adaptations, the basis for
delivery organisations’ funding and number of households assisted by delivery
organisations between 2013-14 and 2015-16

The exhibit shows that funding of adaptations is complex with a large number
of organisations with responsibilities for delivering work who operate largely
independent of each other. The amount spent in real terms has remained static
and delivery bodies are assisting more people.

Percentage
change
over three
Source of funding 201314 201415 201516 years
Disabled Amount spent in £32,700,271 £32,726,068  £33,502,054 2.4%
Facilities Grants cash terms
taken from the
local-authority Amount spent in £33,408,191  £32,950,461  £33,502,054 0.3%
Capital budget real terms
Numbers assisted 4,393 4,306 4,454 1.4%
Local-authority Amount spent in £9,728,758 £9,357,702 £10,224,936 51%
Housing Revenue | cashterms
Account funding
for adaptations Amount spent in £10,137,819 £9,609,963  £10,224,936 0.8%
to local-authority | realterms
housing
Numbers assisted 3,847 3,702 4,138 7.5%
Traditional Amount spent in £6,259,088 £7,176,503 £7,900,051 26.2%
housing cash terms
associations
Physical Amount spent in £6,394,589 £7,225,710 £7,900,051 23.5%
Adaptation real terms
Grants provided
by the Welsh Numbers assisted 1,422 1,407 1,686 18.5%
Government
Tudalen 58
24 Housing Adaptations



Percentage

change
over three
Source of funding 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 years
Traditional Amount spent in £129,726 £179,735 £224,482 73%
housing cash terms
associations’
owh resources Amount spent in £130,616 £180,968 £224,482 71.8%
used to fund real terms
adaptation works
Numbers assisted 541 608 586 8.4%
Large Scale Amount spent in £7,809,577 £6,890,873 £6,460,578 -17.2%
Voluntary cash terms
Transfer housing
associations — Amount spent in £7,978,644 £6,938,121 £6,460,578 -19%
own resources real terms
used to fund
adaptations Numbers assisted 4,386 4,396 4,656 6.1%
Rapid Response Amount spent in £2,074,312 £2,023,800 £2,036,727 -1.8%
Adaptation cash terms
Programme
provided by Amount spent in £2119,218  £2,037,676  £2,036,727 -3.9%
the Welsh real terms
Government
Numbers assisted 14,005 17,739 16,421 17.2%
Total Amount spent in £58,701,732 £58,354,681 £60,348,828 2.8%
cash terms
Amount spentin £60,169,077 £58,942,899 £60,348,828 0.3%
real terms
Numbers assisted 28,594 32,158 31,941 1.7%
Source: Wales Audit Office analysis of Council Revenue Outturn data; data submitted
by housing associations to the Welsh Government; Care and Repair spend data from
the Welsh Government; and individual organisation returns as part of a Wales Audit
Office survey. Housing-association data includes returns from 10 of the 11 Large
Scale Voluntary Transfer housing associations. Only 10 of the 22 traditional housing
associations who receive Physical Adaptation Grants provided data on how much of
their own money is invested in adaptation works.
Tudalen 59
Housing Adaptations 25



1.12

1.13

26

Some of the funding streams are governed by legislation and/or

Welsh Government policies whilst money invested by some delivery
organisations — LSVT housing associations and local-authority social-
housing landlord services — are left to these landlords to determine how
to spend. In 2015-16, LSVT associations and local-authority housing
landlords invested circa £16 million from their own resources, accounting
for 27% of all funding on adaptations in Wales that year. These resources
are not subject to Welsh Government oversight, approval or the policy
compliance requirements of PAGs, or the statutory framework governing
DFGs.

The result of this convoluted system of funding is that disabled and older
people are receiving different services because of where they live and
who their landlord/local authority is rather than what their needs are.

We recognise that local choice is important, and delivery organisations’
policies should reflect the wider needs of the community they operate in
and the people who receive their services. However, the wide variation
in funding means that it is not unusual for people with similar needs to
receive very different standards of service simply because of the policy
choice of the agency they have to deal with.

Tudalen 60

Housing Adaptations



Part 2

Provision of adaptations to people with
similar needs is inequitable because
of inconsistencies in how delivery
organisations provide services




2.1 Delivering adaptations brings together a wide partnership of public
bodies including local-authority housing and social services departments;
health bodies; Care and Repair; the Welsh Government; and housing
associations. Policies and procedures for dealing with requests for
adaptations should be sufficiently flexible to encourage usage and take-up.
When people apply for a housing adaptation, there are a number of steps
to the application process. Exhibit 3 sets the main stages for adaptations
we have identified from our review.

Exhibit 3: the key stages of the adaptations process

Identification by the individual, Seeking information about
their family or professional of what housing adaptations may : :

the need for support for be available either by the App;oach t|° eltlhertnogtsw}g

everyday living tasks that individual in need of an proviger-or qcta authonty for
could be addressed through a adaptation, their family or SESEERe

housing adaptation through a support organisation
)
’-------------------

4

Occupational Therapist
assessment of what works are
‘necessary and appropriate’ to

meet the disabled or older
person’s needs

Assessment of the property for
adaptation (usually by a
building surveyor) of what is
‘reasonable and practicable’

Application and approval
processes of the delivery
organisation

)

’-------------------

4

Approval of the Welsh Appointment of contractors to
Government (for Physical undertake building works and

Completion of the test of

resources (for owner

occupiers only) Adaptations Grant only) the installation of equipment

Source: Wales Audit Office interviews and review of delivery organisations’
documentation and policies.

Tudalen 62

28 Housing Adaptations



2.2

2.3

Delivery arrangements can, however, vary widely depending upon

where the disabled or older person lives in Wales; and whether they own
their home or rent from a private landlord, housing association or local
authority. As well as many different sources of funding, the intricate system
of assessments and approvals can also add time to the delivery of an
adaptation. Given the complexities of the adaptation system, it is important
that public bodies seek to streamline delivery wherever possible to:

+ avoid a disabled or older person’s condition deteriorating;
» decrease the risk of accidents or falls;
» reduce stress on carers;

» diminish the risk of re-admission from an unsatisfactory discharge; and/
or

* minimise a delayed discharge.

In this section of the report, we consider how delivery organisations
provide the main stages of adaptations — promotion, information,
application, assessment, approval and building works — drawing out the
complexities of current arrangements. We highlight how policy choices,
intended to create a more equal Wales, have resulted in a system that can
reinforce inequalities experienced by disabled and older people.

Adaptations are not always effectively promoted to all
people who would benefit

24

For a service that provides support to some of the most vulnerable
people in society, effective promotion is crucial in order to ensure that

all those who could benefit from the service are aware of its existence,
the opportunities it provides, how they can use it and ultimately, maintain
their independence. Information on how to access the service needs to
be readily available and be in the right places. It also needs to be easily
understandable. The views of people who received housing adaptations
during 2015-16 highlight the need for delivery organisations to consider
the needs of people who may benefit from the service to ensure
promotional information and application processes are designed to meet
those needs.

Tudalen 63

Housing Adaptations

29



Information provided by delivery organisations is not always easily
accessible or understandable and comes in a variety of formats

2.5 Disabled and older people often find it difficult to access adaptations,
largely due to the complexity of the system as a whole and the various
access routes into services. Whilst some examples of preventative and
planned approaches exist, these are rare. Very few authorities and
housing associations have capitalised on the opportunity to reduce
pressures on officers’ time by publishing effective, accessible online
information, and are therefore not making the most efficient use of their
resources.

2.6 Local authorities, health bodies, housing associations, Care and Repair
and other relevant partners should provide complimentary information
on adaptations to inform service users, their advocates, the wider
public, other professions and agencies of the services that are available.
Information should be in plain English and Welsh, in formats accessible to
those with sensory impairments and in additional languages appropriate to
all communities within the locality. In response to the potential vulnerability
and/or access needs of applicants’ delivery organisations should ensure
that information is as ‘user friendly’ as possible. By ‘user friendly’ we mean
that delivery organisations provide:

+ key information about adaptations and how to access those in a range
of formats including online, hard copy and accessible (large font, audio
and range of relevant languages) versions;

 information to other organisations that may come into contact with
people in need of housing adaptations;

 information to professionals who work with people who may need
housing adaptations;

» assistance with application processes;

+ assessments of need and building suitability at the same time, where
possible, to reduce delays to the process; and

» key timings for the different stages to guide applicants on the likely
period the adaptation will take.

2.7 From our review, we have identified that public information falls short in a
number of areas, and there are opportunities for delivery organisations to
improve how they inform disabled or older people of the services that are
available and how to access them.

Tudalen 64

30 Housing Adaptations



2.8

29

The majority of those surveyed who have recently received an

adaptation stated that they had mostly found out about adaptations from
professionals. Most usually, these are Occupational Therapists (22%) and
social workers (15%). Less than 5% of people find out about adaptations
from delivery organisations — local authorities and housing associations or
from published information. It is concerning that, with an aging population
and the demand for housing adaptations predicted to rise by over 50%
between 2015 and 2035, many organisations are still depending on
professionals to promote the service directly.

The findings of our survey also highlight weaknesses in the quality and
coverage of public information relating to housing adaptations — Exhibit 4
below. We found that whilst delivery organisations’ provide information on
housing adaptations in both Welsh and English, a significant number of
delivery organisations do not provide information in other key accessible
formats. For example, in large fonts for visually impaired users, audio
versions for people with hearing difficulties and other languages. The
findings set out in Exhibit 4 indicate that information about housing
adaptations published by delivery organisations is not always tailored to
ensure services are accessible to potential service users.

Tudalen 65

Housing Adaptations

31



Exhibit 4: the range and format of information on housing adaptations

English

Large Print

Audio Versions

= =

"™
e —
—

Other languages
and formats _
] ] ] ] ] ] ] ] ] J

50 60 70 80 90 100

(@]
—
(@]
N
(@]
w
(@]
N
(@]

Percentage %

@ Councils @® Housing Associations Care and Repair
(Physical Adaptation
Grant Providers only)

Source: Wales Audit Office survey of local authorities, housing associations and Care
and Repair bodies.

2.10 Survey findings are echoed in our fieldwork with delivery organisations.
Some delivery organisations did not provide a comprehensive range of
information on all aspects of their adaptation services in an appropriate
and suitable range of formats and media — audio, Braille and large-print
formats. We also found that some published information was out of date
and did not reflect how delivery organisations provide services. Given
the weaknesses in the quality and accessibility of current information on
housing adaptations, the Welsh Government through its ‘Enable’ review, is
working with delivery organisations to address deficiencies in performance
and information management.

Tudalen 66

32 Housing Adaptations



2.11 Whilst health bodies are well aware of benefits of adaptations on avoidable
admissions and in supporting discharge, respondents to our surveys
noted poor communication, limited knowledge and understanding with
GPs, hospital staff and commissioners as major blocks to making better
use of adaptations. In particular, the quality and range of information and
the sharing of data between the local authority, housing associations,
Care and Repair and health bodies to maximise usage, speed up
decision-making and strategic planning of services are especially
poor. Occupational Therapists who responded to our survey noted
wide variations in the quality and coverage of delivery organisations’
promotional material. For example, whilst the vast majority of Occupational
Therapists (92%) felt that both local authorities and Care and Repair
bodies had clearly set out to service users what they can expect to
receive, only 65% felt that the housing associations they work with had
good-quality and appropriate service-standard information. Ensuring
health bodies are maximising the benefits of adaptations remains an
ongoing challenge for health professionals.

The lack of effective promotion means that there is a risk that not
all people who would benefit from an adaptation are aware of their
availability

2.12 Access to adaptations come from a wide variety of agencies — for
instance, referrals from social workers, housing officers, third-sector
partners, supporting people, staff or building maintenance operatives.
Consequently, those who directly deal with individuals who could benefit
from a housing adaptation need to be aware of how to refer individuals
into services. Whilst we found some examples where collaborative and
integrated approaches are leading to better delivery of adaptations (for
instance, supporting effective discharge from hospitals), these approaches
are the exception rather than the norm. We found little evidence of
delivery organisations focussing on proactive or preventative work to
better meet the needs of disabled and older people, before their individual
circumstances deteriorate and require a crisis intervention.

Tudalen 67

Housing Adaptations

33



2.13 Our survey of councils, housing associations and Care and Repair

34

agencies allows us to analyse how different organisations tell people about
housing adaptations and the options available to them. Exhibit 5 shows
that the majority of local authorities, housing associations and Care and
Repair agencies rely on office-based staff to disseminate information
about housing adaptations, whilst information publicised via social media,
newsletters and in tenant handbooks is generally less well developed.

No housing association provides information to partners such as health,
social workers or third-sector bodies. This is particularly concerning given
that most people who receive an adaptation generally access services
via third-party referrals. Given these gaps in information provision, there
are opportunities for delivery organisations to improve how they promote
access to adaptations.

Tudalen 68

Housing Adaptations



Exhibit 5: the different ways organisations that deliver housing adaptations tell
people about options available to them

Through social media,
Facebook / Twitter

In tenant handbooks

Through partner organisations,
for example, the local health
board, GP, local council or

—
.
Through newsletters
On website
Through office based staff
Through staff who work with
tenants
I

third sector

o
N
o
N
(@]
()
o
(0]
o

Percentage %

Councils ® Care and Repair ® Housing Associations

Source: Wales Audit Office survey of local authorities, housing associations and Care
and Repair bodies

Tudalen 69

Housing Adaptations

35



2.14 Controlling and limiting the promotion of adaptations allows some
organisations to effectively manage demand and maintain control over
expenditure. Whilst we recognise services have finite budgets and are
unlikely to be able to meet the demand from all potential applicants
who may need an adaptation, reducing access to services for disabled
and older people is clearly not acceptable and falls short of the delivery
organisations’ responsibilities to their communities.

There is a considerable variation in the application,
assessment and approval processes that can create delays
in disabled and older people receiving an adaptation

Application processes are not always streamlined or effective

2.15 Many organisations and services are potentially involved in delivering
adaptations. The initial contact or referral from a disabled or older person
may come via social services, local-authority housing management or
maintenance staff, Supporting People officers, private-sector housing or
environmental-health staff as well as those who administer DFGs. Given
the wide number of routes into services, delivery organisations need
to ensure they have robust systems to deal effectively and quickly with
applications. The application system should also be sufficiently wide and
far ranging to encourage access and take-up, and delivery organisations
should offer a variety of media to encourage service users to apply.

2.16 Each delivery organisation has designed their own application process
for people that request a housing adaptation. The systems and processes
used by delivery organisations vary from body to body, despite following
national policy requirements, and often create difficulties for disabled
and older people seeking assistance. From our surveys and fieldwork,
we found that local authorities and housing associations offer a range of
application processes, but not all have processes that consistently and
effectively meet the needs of people who require housing adaptations.

Tudalen 70

36 Housing Adaptations



2.17 Only six local authorities offer online application processes for DFGs.
Sixteen local authorities work with Care and Repair to complete
applications, but only eight work with other third-sector organisations.
Sixteen local authorities allow applications by telephone and 19 local
authorities provide outreach services where officers go to people’s
homes to complete applications. A small number of local authorities also
proactively seek to overcome the complexity of the application process by
appointing ‘case officers’ who work closely with disabled and older people
to guide them through the process at each stage. Disabled and older
people value the support offered by case officers, but often applicants are
required to pay for this service.

2.18 In comparison, just three of the 33 housing associations we surveyed
offer online application processes for housing adaptations, although 13
state they work with third-sector organisations to complete applications,
and 12 specifically with Care and Repair. Less than half of the 33 housing
associations allow applications by telephone or employ officers to visit
disabled or older people in their home to assist in completing adaptation
applications. Overall, 79% of people who received a DFG rated the
application process as excellent or good, compared to 66% of those who
received a PAG.

Occupational Therapists are critical to the delivery of good-quality
adaptations, but assessments and working practices are inefficient
and not always timely

2.19 Adaptations are available to anyone who is assessed as needing one.
Local authorities and landlords rely on the professional judgement of
Occupational Therapists to identify the works that are ‘necessary and
appropriate’ to meet a person’s needs. Occupational Therapists may
assess people for housing-adaptation needs in hospital or other care
settings. Some delivery organisations require several assessments prior
to discharging people to return home or to community-based services.
Repeating assessments can create duplication within the system and
potential confusion for people who may need a housing adaptation.

Our Occupational Therapist survey highlights some of the significant
shortcomings in the processes used by delivery organisations to assess,
manage and deliver adaptations across Wales.

Tudalen 71

Housing Adaptations



2.20 These are set out in detail in Exhibit 6 and highlight some significant gaps
in current working practices. In particular:

2.21

38

limited use of mobile technology and reliance on more labour-intensive
and excessively bureaucratic processes;

narrow use of joint applications and reliance on single agency
approaches, particularly in housing associations, which increases
duplication and adds to the time taken to apply, assess and approve
adaptations;

applicants needing to make multiple applications to different
organisations for broadly the same service completing the same
information with little integration of data or assessment processes;

site visits not being kept to a minimum and approval systems not being
streamlined to speed up delivery; and

adaptations not integrated with adapted-housing registers.

Occupational Therapists also noted delays specifically caused by some
housing associations querying the need for adaptation and often delaying
or refusing permission. Occupational Therapists also noted a growing
concern that the length of time taken by the different delivery organisations
to process applications is rising, often as a result of financial pressures
and reductions in staff numbers. Overall, whilst local-authority assessment
processes often have weaknesses in key areas, Occupational Therapists’
experience is that authorities have established more effective systems and
processes to deliver adaptations than those used by housing associations.

Tudalen 72

Housing Adaptations



Exhibit 6: percentage of Occupational Therapists agreeing that delivery
organisations take the following steps to improve economy, efficiency and
effectiveness when delivering housing adaptations

The percentage refers to the proportion of Occupational Therapists who agree
that the named delivery organisations comply with the efficiency criteria and
shows significant shortcomings in application and assessment processes.

Percentage complying with the application and
assessment standard by delivery organisations as

Criteria assessed by Occupational Therapists
Local Housing Care and
Authorities (%) ASSOC'at'?o?S) Repair (%)
(o]

Adapted housing registers are 43 40 35

integrated with adaptation systems

Applicants only enquire/apply once 50 39 41

to access adaptations

Local initiatives support speedier 55 33 64

delivery of housing adaptations

Mobile and on-line technology is 56 54 50

used during adaptation process

Jointly agreed application form 59 38 53

Systems for approving an 65 30 63

adaptation are streamlined

All applications are processed at a 67 47 64
single intake point

Processes are designed to decide 69 43 81
on applications quickly

Decision points in assessment 71 50 75
process kept to a minimum

Assessment process is client 73 39 76
focussed and allows quick
progress

Tudalen 73

Housing Adaptations 39



Percentage complying with the application and
assessment standard by delivery organisations as

Criteria assessed by Occupational Therapists
Roles of all staff involved in 73 57 68
assessments are clearly defined

Site visits kept to a minimum and 74 65 70
delivered jointly

Approval points in assessment 77 48 75
process kept to a minimum

Enquiries screened at a single 84 56 82
intake point

Jointly agreed enquiry process 86 74 89

Source: Wales Audit Office survey of local authorities, housing associations and Care
and Repair agencies.

2.22

2.23

40

Challenges can be exacerbated where Occupational Therapists work in
local health-board areas that cover a number of local authorities, because
there is often a considerable variation in delivery organisations’ application
and assessment processes and approval systems. Similarly, for health
professionals who work across local-authority boundaries and engage with
a wide range of delivery organisations, there is a challenge in managing
multiple and often very different systems when planning discharge from
hospital or considering options to address the needs of patients.

For example, whilst half of the 12 NHS organisations we surveyed (a mix
of Health Boards and individual hospitals) felt they knew what delivery
bodies expected of them and how referral processes operate, only two felt
they fully understood what adaptation services were available for them to
use and how long it took to assess and approve adaptations. Similarly, just
four organisations acknowledged that they knew the full range of services
that are available and the eligibility criteria for provision of services. We
conclude that overall, the complexity of systems adds to the time taken

to assess people and deliver timely solutions. Occupational Therapists
and health professionals we spoke to believe that their work would benefit
from standardising assessment approaches and forms across delivery
organisations.

Tudalen 74

Housing Adaptations



2.24 Delivery organisations most frequently refer to the demand on
Occupational Therapists as the main reason for delays in adaptations
being processed and delivered in a timely manner. From our surveys,
we found that 95% of local authorities and 86% of housing associations
experience delays in occupational therapy assessments for DFGs and
PAGs. To address these delays, we found that some delivery organisations
are increasing the use of Trusted Assessors'® to reduce demand on
Occupational Therapists. Because a significant proportion of referrals for
adaptations are for minor items, the use of Trusted Assessors can speed
up assessments and decisions and allow Occupational Therapists to
prioritise assessing and specifying adaptations that are more complex.
Despite the work of Trusted Assessors leading to quicker decisions, their
work is not always viewed positively. Occupational Therapists raised
concerns over the impact and quality of referrals, and noted that some
Trusted Assessors feared making decisions because of potential liability
for poor choices if problems arise. Some assessments have also had to
be reviewed and signed off by Occupational Therapists before they are
approved, which can delay timely decision-making.

Equipment demonstration

In early 2015, Cardiff Council opened an Independent Living Centre (ILC). An Occupational

Therapist is based in the centre and is able to provide information and assessments to

people visiting the ILC. The ILC contains a range of housing adaptations so people can see

how those work and can assist their day-to-day lives. Some occupational therapy teams
have widened their resource base by purchasing a number of kit ramps and ‘pod’ shower
rooms for people who require adaptations urgently and for a short period of time.

2.25 Some local authorities use single points of access for social services
including housing adaptations. Once people who may need a housing
adaptation contact the single point of access, their request is passed onto
administration staff and co-ordinated centrally resulting in a well-timed
assessment of the applicants’ personal needs and the suitability of the
property.

10 The Royal College of Occupational Therapists, in response to the pressure on occupational
therapists, recognises that a wider range of professionals can assess low-level adaptations.
Its written guidance Minor Adaptations Without Delay (2006) outlines what adaptations
Trusted Assessors can assess. A large number of local authorities and housing associations
now use this guidance to speed up assessments for low-level adaptations and therefore
release Occupational Therapist capacity to deal Vﬁmua&aaqtétﬁn?gat are more complex.

Housing Adaptations

41



Use of technology

Occupational therapists are using technology to become more efficient. Some Occupational
therapists email their recommendations directly to housing associations and local
authorities, which reduces reliance on and use of paper-based forms and processes. Some
Occupational Therapists use their mobile phone cameras to take photos in properties that
are being considered for adaptation to accurately capture information, which can be provided
electronically to building surveyors and grants officers and help speed up decisions about
adaptations. Occupational therapists are also using technology to engage with potential
recipients of adaptations by showing pictures of the range of options that are available and
the likely impact they can have on the recipient.

Processes for approving adaptations regularly cause delays

2.26 As well as the complexity of Occupational Therapists’ assessment
processes, delays to delivery of DFGs and PAGs can be caused by a
range of other factors. A number of these are inter-related and often
sequential resulting from the timing of approvals and decisions, whilst
others rest with choices and decisions of the applicant. From our survey
of local authorities and housing associations who deliver DFGs and PAGs,
we identified a number of core issues that currently interrupt delivery of
adaptations.

2.27 Just under half of local authorities noted that completing the test of
resources' could take considerable time. Delays are frequently a result of
the amount of detail DFG applicants are required to provide, such as proof
of title and comprehensive financial information. Delivery organisations
acknowledged that the means test is also inequitable in relation to other
funding options and felt that it is debatable whether the means test
represents value for money given the length of time to complete compared
to the level of grant provided. Positively, some local authorities speed up
the test of resources by linking applications to other authority ICT systems
to establish the applicant’s financial standing — for example, council tax
benefit.

11 Whilst DFGs are mandatory, they are subject to a means test and an upper grant limit. The
test of resources for grant applicants is set out in the Housing Renewal Grants Regulations
1996 (SI 1996/2890, as amended). The test largely mirrors the system of calculating
entitlement to Housing Benefit. Grant applicants may receive a full grant or may be required
to make a contribution towards the cost ofthe works.

TGdgen 76

42 Housing Adaptations



2.28 Welsh Government approval processes often delay housing associations
delivering PAGs, particularly for larger works, which require approval prior
to the commencement of work. The approval process involves Welsh
Government officials reviewing the Occupational Therapists’ assessment
of the need for an adaptation and the suitability of the building, all of
which can add many weeks if not months to the process. Eighty-two per
cent of landlords stated that they experienced delays because of the
Welsh Government requiring associations to provide three quotes and
64% delays as a result of the Welsh Government’s approval processes.
However, delays can also be caused by incomplete or poor information
being submitted to Welsh Government for approval. Nonetheless, given
that the bulk of PAGs above £5,000 are approved with little challenge
or change, housing associations consider these processes to be
unnecessarily burdensome, particularly as the system is entirely paper
based and has not been digitised or automated.

2.29 To expedite the timeliness of completion of PAGs, the Welsh Government
has established a fast-track system for relatively minor and standard works
for stair-lifts (£3,500), bathrooms (£6,500) and other access aids (£3,500).
It is possible for an application to cover all three which would give a
total of £13,500. Under this fast track approach, the Welsh Government
retrospectively approves PAG expenditure after the housing association
has organised and completed the adaptation. The Welsh Government
is also reviewing its guidance on PAGs in partnership with a group of
housing-association representatives, and is looking at options to improve
timeliness, including formal guidance about the provision of extensions
and increasing the upper limits for fast-track applications.

2.30 Both local authorities and housing associations also commented on
delays resulting from the time needed to gain relevant permissions from
utility companies (water in particular) and planning authorities where
planning permission is required. These can often result in lengthy delays
but are issues over which delivery organisations have little or no control,
especially where an applicant is responsible for managing delivery of
a DFG. Whilst the onus is normally on an applicant to satisfy planning
requirements (for example, in the completion of forms and submission of
relevant documentation), delivery organisations should provide as much
practical help as required to avoid delays in processing and approving
applications. It is important to ensure that planning approval procedures
do not add unnecessary delays during the process and that delivery
organisations liaise with the relevant local or National Park planning
authority to determine the scope of matters which would typically require
planning permission, or the scope of exceptional circumstances (for
example, when a property lies within a conservation area).

Tudalen 77

Housing Adaptations

43



2.31 As afinal point, decisions taken by applicants or tenants can also result
in significant delays. From our surveys, we found that 95% of local
authorities stated that applicants often request delays to the adaptation
work and 86% of them stated that applicants change their mind and often
do not wish to proceed. Whilst housing associations noted that tenants
often choose to delay or not proceed with an adaptation, only 40% of
landlords experienced these issues. Given the complexity of the system
for assessing, approving and delivering adaptations, it is unsurprising that
applicants often elect not to proceed, particularly homeowners where DFG
processes are especially onerous.

2.32 In response to the length of time taken to assess, approve and deliver
adaptations, some delivery organisations have sought to streamline
their processes to improve efficiency and maximise value for money.
These include a number of local authorities, such as Ceredigion County
Council and Newport City Council, undertaking an initial assessment of
the financial contribution that applicants may need to make for a DFG.
Whilst this initial assessment is not binding, it does provide applicants
with an understanding of the potential cost they may have to cover. Local
authorities using this approach note that identifying the potential cost for
applicants as early as possible in the assessment and approval process
allows the authority to identify more quickly those who do not intend to
progress with their application due to financial cost.

2.33 Some local authorities — Powys County Council, Conwy County Borough
Council, Caerphilly County Borough Council and the County and City of
Swansea Council — also use ‘case officers’ who work with the different
agencies and departments involved in adaptations to ensure that
applications are ‘pulled’ through the system and decisions expedited. The
use of case officers provides applicants with a single point of contact and
ensures that there is oversight of disabled or older persons’ application
and assessment. Case officers are well placed to address system
blockages and speed up decision-making and approvals, especially where
there is limited oversight of the whole adaptation system.

Tudalen 78

44 Housing Adaptations



Delivery organisations take a wide variety of approaches
to the engagement and management of building works and
these are not always efficient or effective

2.34 A central issue in getting building work completed is to ensure that the
processes used to secure contractors and deliver works are fit for purpose.
This is a careful balance requiring delivery organisations to ensure they
deliver works quickly to meet the needs and wishes of the disabled or
older person, whilst ensuring that probity in contractor appointments and
value for money in terms of the cost and quality of building works. Local
authorities and housing associations consequently need to ensure they
have established effective and efficient methods to deliver services.

2.35 Managing contractors and the expediency of procurement processes are
important aspects of ensuring the quality of housing adaptations. Done
badly, they can have a dramatic effect on the timeliness, cost and delivery
of adaptations. The findings of our survey highlight that half of the housing
associations delivering PAGs, and a third of local authorities, experienced
difficulties in securing contractors and roughly 20% of both in appointing
suitably qualified builders to undertake building works.

2.36 Most local authorities, housing associations and Care and Repair agencies
have established appropriate processes to oversee and manage builder
performance, most usually through regular meetings and dialogue
in respect of individual grants. However, few delivery organisations
are working strategically with contractors to streamline and improve
performance. Only two delivery organisations engage with contractors
and builders as members of strategic cross-sector groups, which is a
‘lost learning opportunity’. Similarly, only two organisations have pooled
resources with contractors — for example, joint posts to oversee and co-
ordinate and streamline delivery — and only one has co-located staff with
contractors and builders.

Tudalen 79

Housing Adaptations



2.37 Half of local authorities use approved contractor lists to procure building
works and only work with builders they have approved to undertake
adaptation work. This is proportionally much lower than housing
associations where 27 of the 33 operate approved contractor lists for
adaptations. Other local authorities and housing associations tend to
use one-off tendered contracts, usually inviting tender prices against a
specification using the same criteria for those on approved contractor
lists. In addition, a small number of authorities also operate framework
agreements.?

2.38 Where local authorities plan to establish or review their approved list
of builders, they should open the process to all potential contractors
who meet their published criteria for inclusion. Selection for approved
lists should be comprehensive in coverage and include general and
specialist contractors to provide local authorities with adequate assurance
that the builders they approve to deliver adaptation works are suitably
qualified to undertake this work, covering financial standing, liabilities and
indemnification and past performance to judge quality and timeliness of
works.

2.39 However, we found that the processes for accreditation are often not
comprehensive and do not provide assurance that authorities are
operating effectively. Often accreditation is not based on a formal
assessment. For example, only four local authorities run annual processes
for contractors to apply to become members of approved lists, whilst
the remainder operate ad hoc systems where contractors can tender
or apply for inclusion at any time. Some local authorities use online
services such as Construction Line' to vet key data such as liabilities
and indemnification. However, this is often not undertaken annually or
bi-annually and information is often out of date. Consequently, delivery
organisations often have limited assurance of a contractor’s current
financial standing and suitability to undertake adaptations work.

12 A framework agreement will generally allow a purchaser more flexibility around the goods
or services contracted for under the framework, both in terms of volume and also the detail
of the relevant goods and services. A multi-supplier framework allows the contracting
organisation to select from a number of suppliers for its requirements, helping to ensure that
each purchase represents best value.

13 Construction Line: the national pre-qualification database for assessing contractors

undertaking work in the building and const-iu&tiaréirgﬁtgo

46 Housing Adaptations


https://www.constructionline.co.uk/

2.40 Even without use of online services such as Construction Line, delivery
organisations can lack published standards for approved contractors,
such as regular production and vetting of appropriate insurance and
evidence of financial standing. Compliance with these standards enables
delivery organisations to assure themselves of the appropriateness of
the contractors who undertake adaptations work. These limitations are
reflected in our survey of local authorities and housing associations set
out in Exhibit 7 which shows that the range of criteria used by delivery
organisations to select contractors is not comprehensive. For example,
less than half of local authorities and housing associations require
contractors to have provided their staff with disability awareness training.

Tudalen 81

Housing Adaptations

47



Exhibit 7: the criteria used by local authorities and housing associations to
assess whether a company should be included on the approved contractor list
or to approve a builder who tenders for work

Financial standing checks

Quality of work

Health and Safety and maintenance
of facilities

Customer Care
References
Organisation and support structure

Environmental policies

Subcontracting arrangements

Equality and diversity training
provided to staff

Contract Implementation

Disability awareness training provided
to staff

Emergency Call out

Management Reporting and Performance
Management

Ensuring that rights of workers are upheld
(national minimum wage)

Creation of apprenticeships / training
placements

Protection of property and furnishings
Employment of local people
Safeguarding training and policies

Other
| | | |

0 20 40 60 80
Percentage complying with the standard

@ Local Authorities @ Housing Associations

Source: Wales Audit Office Survey of local authorities and housing associations.
The chart assesses the 22 local authorities’ and 33 housing associations’ criteria for
working with contractors and builders.

Tudalen 82

48 Housing Adaptations

100



2.41 From our survey we found that a small number of local authorities and
housing associations are using framework agreements as an alternative to
tendering. These approaches allow contractors to achieve savings through
economies of scale and some guarantee of the quantity of work they might
receive. The longer-term relationship also allows the contractor to invest
appropriate resources and develop higher standards of workmanship,
and can deliver benefits such as reduced transaction costs; continuous
improvement with long-term relationships that are clearly set out and
underwritten by contract; better value and greater community wealth;
and customer-focused solutions. For example, two local authorities have
established four-year framework agreements whilst other local authorities
and housing associations use Sell2Wales.™

2.42 Some local authorities have trouble with the availability of contractors,
which causes delays in the timeliness of delivery of adaptations. In
particular, mainly rural authorities with limited or no access to major
building contractors noted an over reliance on smaller local building firms
which often have limited capacity to deal with new agency procurement
arrangements. We found that despite these difficulties in securing
builders, authorities were not proactively seeking to widen out their pool
of contractors to improve choice, speed up delivery and drive greater
efficiency. Market testing of contractor rates is often carried out annually
via authority quantity surveyors and benchmarked against standard
construction pricing schedules such as Spons."™ However, we found that
Grant officers are unclear if this delivers the best value for money, and the
lack of supply of contractors can push up rates.

2.43 In a small number of areas, the local authority does not directly manage
contractors but guides applicants to an approved list of contractors and
requires grant applicants to select and manage builders themselves.
Where a grant applicant elects or is required to manage a builder directly,
it is important that the local authority consider whether they wish to provide
applicants with information on local contractors and builders to help them
decide on who to appoint. We found that in some authorities the list of
contractors provided to grant applicants is not always based on a robust
analysis of performance, standing, quality and skills. These are important
weaknesses that need to be strengthened to safeguard applicants,
and authorities should provide guidance on how to vet builders to help
applicants select the right contractor.

14 Sell2Wales is a website procurement portal set up by the Welsh Government to help
businesses win contracts with the public sector across Wales and help the public sector
advertise and manage tender opportunities.

15 Spons provides accurate, detailed and professionally relevant construction price information
for the UK. Its unique Tender Index, updated through the year, provides an ongoing reality
check and adjustment for changing market condm?nlj.dalen 83

Housing Adaptations



2.44 Home-improvement agencies (HIAs) offer practical help with building
works to vulnerable homeowners. The service offered varies but normally
covers help in diagnosing building problems, identifying solutions,
selecting a builder, and ensuring work is effectively delivered. Some HIAs
are independent non-profit organisations whilst others operate in-house
within a local authority with the cost often covered by fees drawn from
the DFG. We found that 17 of the 22 local authorities offer HIA support
and 15 authorities charge the grant applicant for these services. Given
home improvement agency provision is not available across all of Wales,
we have concerns that disabled and older people do not apply for DFGs
because they are unable or unwilling to directly engage and manage
contractors and builders without the support of their local authority.

2.45 Monitoring and evaluating performance on delivery of individual
adaptations is a key part of ensuring builders provide good-quality and
cost-effective services. Delivery organisations need to have appropriate
systems in place to collect sufficient intelligence to judge a contractor’s
performance, actions and behaviours. This should be undertaken
independently of the contractor and used to judge whether the builder is
retained to deliver adaptations work in the future.

2.46 We found that 19 local authorities and 21 housing associations review
the performance of contractors on every adaptation on an ongoing basis;
one authority and five associations review performance quarterly; and
six associations annually. However, two authorities and five housing
associations do not evaluate contractor performance at all. Overall, we
consider that delivery organisations responsible for delivering adaptations
do not always have effective arrangements to monitor, review and evaluate
the performance of builders and contractors.

2.47 Exhibit 8, below, summarises the findings of our survey of local authorities
and housing associations analysing the criteria they use to review
contractor performance. Most delivery organisations focus on customer
feedback, the quality of the building works and speed of delivery. However,
only 11 local authorities consider the cost of the works and 13 the
contractor’s health and safety record and overall performance. In addition,
two local authorities and five housing associations stated that they do
not review a contractor’s performance at all. This highlights that not all
agencies are managing and reviewing contractor performance against a
suitable range of information.

Tudalen 84

50 Housing Adaptations



Exhibit 8: the criteria

used by local authorities and housing associations to

assess the performance of contractors and builders who deliver adaptations

Timeliness of work

Quality of work

Tenant feedback

Cost of work

Health and Safety
record

Customer feedback

Customer care

Other

.

20 40 60 80
Percentage complying with the standard

@ Local Authorities @ Housing Associations

Source: Wales Audit Office Survey of local authorities and housing associations.

Tudalen 85

Housing Adaptations

100

51



Part 3

Public bodies are generally clear
on the benefits of adaptations, but
partnership working is ineffective to
address need

Tudalen 86




3.1 For at least 30 years, successive UK and Welsh government policies have
recognised the importance of supporting frail older people and disabled
people to live independently in their own homes rather than in hospitals
or residential establishments. For most older and disabled people,
addressing their housing needs does not mean specialised new provision
but adaptations to their existing homes.

3.2 In this part of our report, we examine census data and population
projections to gauge the overall level of demand for adaptations in
Wales. We also review public bodies’ policies for adaptations and the
effectiveness of partnership arrangements between local authorities,
housing associations, Care and Repair and health bodies to judge how
well services are meeting current needs and working together to address
predicted increases in demand. Finally, we review current joint working
arrangements to judge whether adaptations are benefitting all those who
need assistance.

Census data and population projections suggest demand
for adaptations will continue to increase

3.3 The rights of disabled and older people to receive help for adaptations
determines that this is a needs-led service. Local authorities have a
statutory duty to review the condition of the housing stock and the need
for housing in their area, and have extensive powers to intervene where
housing conditions are unacceptable and there is unmet housing need.
Local housing authorities also have an obligation under legislation to
make an estimate of the likely need for these services and to develop
plans for delivering them at a level that will meet the needs identified.

3.4 Census data'” highlights that a higher proportion of the Welsh population
(7.8%) consider themselves to be in poor health compared to those in
England (4.2%). Comparatively, people in Wales have poorer health than
all regions in England with the exception of the North East of England. In
Wales, activity limitations are also notably higher: almost 12% reported
they are ‘limited a lot’ and almost 11% are ‘limited a little’. In Wales, the
prevalence of activity limitations is higher than any English region. Wales
also has proportionately more people aged 55 and above than England,
and activity limitations are more common among those above retirement
age.

16 Relevant legislation includes: the Local Government and Housing Act 1989; the Housing
Grants, Construction and Regeneration Act 1996; Regulatory Reform (Housing Assistance)
(England and Wales Order) 2002 and accompanying guidance NAfW Circular 20/02; and the
Disabled Facilities Grants (Maximum Amount and Additional Purposes) (Wales) Order 2008
(Welsh Government 2008a).

17 General Health in England and Wales: 2011 and clgﬂr()j)aﬁoenﬁ/v@.?om.

Housing Adaptations

53



3.5 The proportion of the population in Wales who consider themselves to
be in good health is also falling. Exhibit 9 highlights that between the
Censuses in 2001 and 2011, in 13 local authorities the number of people
who considered that they suffered from poor health increased, most
significantly in Merthyr Tydfil where the rate of deterioration in health was
over 10%.

Tudalen 88

54 Housing Adaptations



Exhibit 9: the percentage change in the number of people who consider
themselves to be suffering from poor health in Wales by local authority between
2001 and 2011

Merthyr Tydfil
Swansea
Rhondda, Cynon, Taff
Neath Port Talbot
Cardiff

Blaenau Gwent
Newport
Caerphilly
Wrexham
Camarthenshire
Torfaen

WALES
Bridgend
Gwynedd

Denbighshire
Pembrokeshire
Flintshire

Ceredigion

The Vale of Glamorgan
Conwy

Isle of Anglesey

Powys

Monmouthshire

42 10 8 -6 -4 2

(@]
N
N
(o))
(0]

Source: Census, 2001 and 2011.

Tudalen 89

Housing Adaptations



3.6 Over the next 20 years we expect to see an increase in the number
of people in Wales who experience mobility problems and difficulties
undertaking daily domestic tasks. In summary, Welsh Government
projections at an all-Wales level show that the number of people who will
struggle with domestic tasks aged over 65 will increase by roughly 34%
rising to 381,500 and those with mobility difficulties will rise by 58% to
178,000 in 2035. Appendix 4 and 5 provide the detailed projection data
from the Welsh Government’s Daffodil’® system at an all-Wales level and
by local-authority area.

3.7 The predicted increase in demand for adaptations identified in Daffodil
projections are echoed by the majority of delivery organisations
responding to our surveys who note that demand for housing adaptations
is growing and they expect this to continue to increase in the future.
Eleven of the 22 local authorities have seen demand rise in the last three
years, and 16 of them anticipate demand will grow in the next three years.
Similarly, 25 of the 33 housing associations have seen a rise in demand
and 27 anticipate further increases in the next three years. All Care and
Repair bodies have seen demand surge and expect it to continue to grow.

Public bodies are mostly clear on the importance of
adaptations in supporting independence, but organisations
continue to plan in silos with limited focus on collaboration
or integration

3.8 Public bodies in Wales recognise the importance of housing adaptations
in changing the home environment to enable or restore independent
living, privacy, self-confidence and self-respect for individuals and their
families. Adaptations also deliver many benefits for local and national
organisations. Exhibit 10 below summarises some of these beneficiaries
and benefits.

18 Daffodil is a web-based system developed by the Institute of Public Care for the Welsh
Government and pulls together in one place the information needed to plan what future care,
support and housing services over the nex4-20 rs for ghildren, adults and older people.

Tudaien g0

56 Housing Adaptations



Exhibit 10: examples of the beneficiaries and benefits of adaptations

Department of Work and
Pensions

Prevention of injuries leading to
short or long-term sickness and
unemployment benefits

Increased likelihood of
employment for disabled or
older people — and for carers
when disabled and older people
become more independent

o

Disabled or older people

Improved dignity, privacy,
independence, health (physical
and mental), Greater levels of

social inclusion

Improved opportunities for
education and employment

Social care providers

Fewer demands on carers —
either reduced hours or reduced
risk of injury to carers

Prevention of admission to
residential care

Benefits and beneficiaries
of adaptations

Family carers

Reduced physical and mental
strain

More freedom and peace of
mind

Health providers
Fewer accidents to treat
Fewer hospital admissions

Reduced costs of drugs and GP
time for depression and physical
illnesses

Other family members
Improved social inclusion
Improved educational chances

Source: Wales Audit Office.

Tudalen 91

Housing Adaptations

57



3.9 For adaptations, having the right strategic goals establishes a clear basis

58

for decision-making about service prioritisation and how and where to
direct resources. Most delivery organisations are clear on how their work
on adaptations positively helps disabled and older people. For example,
through our surveys we found that all local authorities and the vast
majority of housing associations have policies for adaptations, which
highlights the importance adaptations make in maintaining independence.
Similarly, the majority of bodies are also clear on how adaptations support
hospital discharge and contribute to improving wellbeing. However, our
survey findings highlight that there are some opportunities to improve
coverage and focus in some organisations. In particular, improving policies
to better address the needs of carers and avoid or reduce demand and
costs in health and social care services — Exhibit 11.

Tudalen 92

Housing Adaptations



Exhibit 11: local-authority and housing-association views on the purpose and
coverage of their policies for deciding on and delivering adaptations

Reduce demand on health services,
for example GP surgeries

Improve caregivers' wellbeing

Reduce hospital admissions

Avoid or delay other social care costs,
for example nursing or care homes

Improve people's wellbeing

Improve hospital discharge

Maintain independence

0 20 40 60 80 100

Percentage of local authorities and housing associations agreeing with the statement

® Purpose of housing adaptations Councils ® Purpose of housing adaptations Housing
Associations

Source: Wales Audit Office, survey of local authorities and housing associations.

Tudalen 93

Housing Adaptations 59



3.10 For local authorities, the key policy for provision of adaptations is their
Housing Renewal Policy, which should set out the basis and rationale
for housing and renewal activity. From our review of Housing Renewal
Policies, we found that local authorities are generally clear on the
importance and benefits of adaptations and have set appropriate aims
and objectives to support their housing investment activity. For example,
Bridgend County Borough Council has a stated aim to ‘enable older
and disabled people, and people suffering from domestic abuse, where
appropriate, to remain in their own homes and live independently’ and
Caerphilly County Borough Council is focused on ‘enabling vulnerable
persons to remain at home in safety and comfort’.

3.11 Our review, however, also identified some shortcomings in current policies
for adaptations. Housing Renewal policies should go beyond simply
basing priorities on past performance and experience of previous years
in responding to the demand that presents itself through applications for
services. We often found a poorly presented strategic case, and need for
adaptations and information on future needs is often underplayed. Whilst
local authorities and partners hold activity data on past performance in
providing adaptations, they are not sighted as to whether this activity is
meeting all of the need for housing adaptations and public bodies in many
areas do not pool information to better understand future demand.

3.12 There are some good examples of joint working between agencies to
consider the overall demand for adaptations — for example, in Cardiff
through the Accessible Homes Register and in Swansea and Wrexham.
However, these approaches are often the exception. Even where public
bodies work together to better understand demand, data is often not used
to set out how authorities intend to address the needs of disabled and
older people in the medium-to-long term. In terms of needs assessment,
the data most frequently identified and used in strategic planning and
needs mapping for future services, is historic trend and spend information,
but only where it relates to an organisation’s own performance. Agencies
rarely collate sufficiently detailed information and data to provide a
strategic overview of current performance and activity to inform future
need.

Tudalen 94

60 Housing Adaptations



Good Practice — Cardiff Accessible Homes Project

The project has developed a Housing Register specifically for people with physical
impairment who are seeking to move to alternative accommodation. Initial grant funding from
the Welsh Government enabled a partnership of housing, social care, health and voluntary
agencies in Cardiff to be established. The partnership identified the housing needs and
preferences of clients, and developed a database of existing adapted properties across all
housing associations in Cardiff, and a ‘matching’ process to allocate adapted properties.
The outcome for clients is an improvement in the options available to those in unsuitable
accommodation. For landlords, there has been an improvement in letting times and existing
adapted properties are being used more effectively. By identifying existing, suitably adapted
dwellings and matching them with a client in need, the project maximised the use of existing
resources. The project provided a database of the needs of people with physical disabilities,
which informed provision at a strategic level. The Cardiff Accessible Homes project
demonstrates growing focus on value for money through development of integrated systems
in the capital covering the work of all the housing associations and the local authority.

3.13 A small number of respondents to our surveys referenced other data they
relied on to plan services, mainly: census data; social-services referrals;
private-sector stock condition survey; local housing-market assessment
information; and the Welsh Governments Daffodil system. However, no
Council or housing association referenced data held by health bodies — a
reflection of both housing and health organisations not feeling engaged
in strategic discussions on adaptations. Overall, we concluded that public
bodies do not have robust approaches to forecasting future demand.

Partnership arrangements are not sufficiently integrated to maximise
the potential benefits of adaptations

3.14 The assessment for, and provision of, housing adaptations requires
effective joint working between housing organisations, health and social-
care services to ensure the needs of often very vulnerable people can
be met, and their quality of life improved. Effective partnerships allow
delivery organisations to make the best use of their resources to maximise
impact and value for money. To be truly effective, organisations should
therefore seek to align activity and work in partnership. However, given
the wide variation in the approaches of the 68 different agencies delivering
adaptations works, and the decisions of the Welsh Government and UK
legislation on the funding and guidance that underpins activity, the current
system can result in the reinforcement of inequalities for disabled and
older people.

Tudalen 95

Housing Adaptations 61



3.15

3.16

3.17

We surveyed the delivery organisations responsible for delivering
adaptations in Wales — local authorities, housing associations and Care
and Repair bodies — on the scale and range of current partnership

and joint working arrangements. The detailed findings are set out in
Appendices 6, 7 and 8. In summary, we found that few local authorities
have formal partnership forums or cross-sector working groups, and
partnership arrangements are generally underpinned by informal contact.
Joint working between local authorities and Care and Repair is more likely
to take place than with housing associations, the third sector, other local-
authority services or health bodies.

Delivery organisations do not always take a whole resources view of their
adaptations work that considers the availability and use of all monies
within an area. Aligning and pooling budgets enables partners to work
together to consider their budgets and align their activities to deliver
agreed aims and outcomes, while retaining complete accountability and
responsibility for their own resources. Collaboration can lead to better
outcomes for local people and drive better value for money. Given the
constraints on public finances, it is essential that public bodies align
budgets where possible to deliver more efficient and effective services that
better meet citizens’ needs.

For example, we found poor joint working practices between housing
allocation staff and Grants officers to improve use of already adapted
homes. Policies are often property, rather than client focussed, and
rarely make the strategic link to other organisations and the wider needs
of disabled and older people. This is despite the Welsh Government’s
Framework for Action on Independent Living that commits to improving
access to adapted and accessible housing for disabled people. The
Framework identifies the Housing (Wales) Act 2014 and the use of
Accessible Housing Registers as key opportunities to bring about
improvements'®. Too often, matching applicants to adapted homes via
accessible homes registers does not happen. Instead adaptation policies
continue to be focussed on the work of individual organisations, usually
centred on processes for deciding on and managing grant applications,
approvals and delivery or work to a social-housing landlord’s property.

19 Welsh Government, Framework for Action on Independent Living, 2014-15 Outcome
Measures, 2014
— Tudalen 96

62

Housing Adaptations


http://gov.wales/topics/people-and-communities/equality-diversity/rightsequality/disability/framework-for-action/?lang=en
http://gov.wales/topics/people-and-communities/equality-diversity/rightsequality/disability/framework-for-action/?lang=en

3.18

3.19

Few local authorities have comprehensive and integrated Housing
Renewal Policies that link decisions on grant investment with better use
of existing adapted housing. A recent Shelter Cymru report found that
housing associations who have comprehensive approaches to adapted
housing are more likely to integrate funding and make better use of
adapted properties.?® We identified few examples of delivery organisations
taking an holistic view of funding linking DFGs with existing adapted
homes and local spending on PAGs, the Rapid Response Adaptation
Programme and a landlord’s own resources.

Effective relationships can only be achieved through appropriate training,
time spent in working collaboratively and integrating resources, processes
and systems to provide a seamless service to disabled and older people.
We found that because funding is not always joined up or aligned,
resources are spread too widely, which affects delivery organisations’
ability to target funding better to maximise impact. Only seven local
authorities pool funds with Care and Repair, and no pooling of funding
takes place between local authorities and housing associations. Likewise,
co-locating staff to provide a single one-stop-shop service is limited.

Only seven local authorities have combined Occupational Therapy and
housing-adaptation teams to create single point-of-contact arrangements
to improve the accessibility to services. Our survey of Occupational
Therapists bears this out with 67% of respondents noting that they do not
work in an integrated team across health and social care.

20 Welsh Government Social Research 2013, Accessible social housing in Wales: a review
of systems for assessment, recording and matching, (Shelter Cymru website)

21 Social prescribing is a means of enabling primary care services to refer patients with social,
emotional or practical needs to a range of local, non-clinical services, often provided by the
voluntary and community sector. Recognising that people’s health is determined primarily by
a range of social, economic and environmental factors, social prescribing seeks to address
people’s needs in a holistic way. It also aims to support individuals to take greater control of

thei health.
eirown hea Tudalen 97

Housing Adaptations

63


https://sheltercymru.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2015/02/accessible-social-housing-review-systems-assessment-recording1.pdf
https://sheltercymru.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2015/02/accessible-social-housing-review-systems-assessment-recording1.pdf

3.20 There are some areas where greater collaborative working across
professional boundaries is taking place. For instance, GP surgeries
working with Occupational Therapists, leading to improved outcomes
for people in need of housing adaptations. Similarly, we identified some
good examples of closer working with health professionals such as
social prescribing?' with Care and Repair, and some local authorities
are beginning to improve collaborative working through the creation of
integrated housing-adaptation teams.

3.21 Co-locating services can improve both first point of contact arrangements
and accessibility to services, and allows organisations to maximise the
availability of and customer access to adaptations. A small number of local
authorities, including Swansea and Cardiff, have developed integrated
approaches to housing adaptations, drawing together grants, building
surveyors and Occupational Therapists into single teams. However
co-locating services to improve delivery of housing adaptations rarely
happens. Most organisations involved in providing housing adaptations
continue to work in isolation focussing on their individual responsibilities,
rather than working holistically to address people’s housing and health
needs.

Adaptations can help people avoid going to hospital and speed up
patient discharge, but too often these benefits are not being realised

3.22 Whilst the role of adaptations in reducing the risk of falls and other
accidents in the home, and in preventing hospital admissions and
speeding up discharge is growing, the importance of adaptations is not
always reflected in local partnership arrangements between housing,
health and social-care bodies. With the exception of Occupational
Therapists, health professionals noted that the different local-authority and
housing-association systems for administering, approving and delivering
adaptations are difficult to navigate. Because most adaptations are
reactive (following a crisis) rather than preventative (before the crisis) the
engagement and relationship between delivery organisations carrying out
adaptations and health bodies are often less well developed.

Tudalen 98

64 Housing Adaptations



3.23 Whilst the majority of health bodies felt they understood how adaptations
could contribute to hospital discharge and prevent avoidable admissions,
many noted concerns with the timeliness of adaptations. In particular,
health respondents noted issues of concern in respect of timescales and
processes for delivery of adaptations; complexity and inconsistency in the
range of services available within an area; availability and accessibility
of funding; and need to train and inform health professionals to improve
usage and take-up. The findings of our discharge planning survey of
health bodies set out in Exhibit 12 show that almost half of health-body
respondents felt that they were ‘rarely’ or ‘never’ engaged in discussions
on how to make better use of, or improve access to, adaptations.

Exhibit 12: health bodies’ understanding and awareness of housing-adaptation
systems and delivery

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80 90 100

Percentage %
@ Always ® Often @ Sometimes Rarely @ Never @® Don’t know/ No response

Source: Wales Audit Office, Discharge Planning Survey

Tudalen 99

Housing Adaptations 65



3.24 Only half of the 22 local authorities felt that their health board was making
the best use of housing adaptations. Similarly, over half of the housing
associations we surveyed (17 of 33 associations) did not know how
integrated or effective joint-working arrangements are between public
bodies in delivering adaptations. There are some good examples of
effective joint working between health bodies and local authorities to make
the best use of adaptations. Caerphilly County Borough Council, through
its Joint Hospital Discharge Team, is helping to speed up and improve
discharge of patients from hospital. The local authority has published
‘Leaving Hospital’ online guidance, and its work with Aneurin Bevan
University Health Board is improving discharge planning and performance.
We found similar approaches in Cardiff and the Vale of Glamorgan with the
integrated discharge service, which we highlight as good practice.

Integrated Discharge Service — Cardiff and Vale Health Board

A collaborative and integrated approach on housing adaptations by Cardiff and Vale Health
Board, local-authority partners and Care and Repair is leading to a reduction in the number
of delayed transfers of care attributed to housing reasons.

The integrated discharge service uses a stock of adapted homes as step-down
accommodation as an interim solution to help improve the patient flow from hospitals.

The local authority manages this accommodation, but the health board work with the local
authority to identify appropriate referrals into these adapted homes. It is offered as an
alternative to people who are waiting to be discharged from hospital but whose homes are
not yet adapted to meet their needs.

Two local-authority employed housing-support officers are based in the health board and

act as a conduit between the health board and councils on a daily basis, providing practical
in-house expert knowledge of the housing-adaptation system. They are effectively in-house
experts who know the system and weekly meetings are held between these housing-support
officers and health-board staff whereby a list of roughly 200 patients are analysed in order to
determine their care and housing needs once discharged from hospital.

In addition, the health board, Cardiff City and County Council, the Vale of Glamorgan
Council, and Care and Repair operate a shared equipment store, which helps to manage
the demand for adaptations by enabling them to quickly deal with minor works required. This
is seen as vital to the health board as its focus very much moves to preventing the need for
people to be admitted to hospital in the first place.

3.25 Overall, however, our findings reinforce our conclusion that public bodies
continue to have a limited strategic focus on adaptations, concentrating on
organisational specific responses rather than how best collectively to meet
the needs of disabled and older people.

Tudalen 100

66 Housing Adaptations



Part 4

Public bodies have a limited
understanding of the longer-term
wellbeing benefits of housing
adaptations and there remains
significant scope to reform the system
to measure and improve equality and
wellbeing




4.1

4.2

Public bodies need good-quality and wide-ranging performance
information to set their strategic plans for the future. A good range of
performance data will also enable public bodies to judge how well services
are performing and identify where improvement is required. Performance
information should cover both financial and non-financial measures and
allow public bodies to evaluate how successful they are, typically in terms
of making progress towards their long-term goals.

In this final part of the report, we review the current arrangements in place
to oversee the 68 delivery organisations’ performance in undertaking
circa £60 million of annual expenditure on adaptations. We consider

the robustness of these arrangements and the planned changes to the
performance management framework of the Welsh Government’s Enable
review. We also consider service-user satisfaction levels and whether the
current approaches to evaluate performance are sufficiently focussed on
understanding the impact of investment choices on individuals’ wellbeing.

Recipients of adaptations that we surveyed are very
satisfied with their adaptations

4.3 Overall, the people we surveyed who have received housing adaptations

68

provided positive feedback on their experience with roughly three-quarters
of respondents rating application processes as excellent or good. In
addition, 91% of survey respondents are satisfied with the time taken to
deliver their adaptations. Importantly, 89% of recipients of adaptations we
surveyed felt the work undertaken allowed them to undertake everyday
tasks more easily and 85% that the works had improved both their
confidence and independence. Seventy-eight per cent of respondents
also noted that the adaptations they received had reduced the incidence
of accidents or falls in their home and 61% felt they needed less help and
support to live independently. These are all good outcomes highlighting
the positive impact adaptations can make to improve the wellbeing of
vulnerable people, despite some of the delays and system problems noted
above.

Tudalen 102

Housing Adaptations



4.4

Our survey also identified some important variations. Generally,
satisfaction with application processes is higher for DFG recipients than
people who received a PAG. Whilst delivery organisations are generally
good at providing disabled and older people applying for adaptations with
the right contact details, the quality of ongoing support and help provided
to applicants throughout the life of the adaptation is less effective. People
under 55 have a more positive experience of adaptations than other
groups of applicants, especially those aged 75 and over. In addition, 65%
of disabled and older people we surveyed noted that help or support is not
provided by delivery organisations where they were required to contribute
financially to the cost of an adaption, and 76% noted that they were
offered little or no choice on the adaptations that were finally delivered.

Weaknesses in oversight of performance reinforce the
inequalities of the system caused by the different sources of
funding

Performance indicator data is only currently published for Disabled
Facilities Grants provided by local authorities, so it is not possible to
compare performance across all delivery organisations

4.5

4.6

Despite the wide range and different sources of funding for housing
adaptations, there is only a small range of national publicly reported
performance indicators. These cover the work of local authorities in
delivering DFGs and cover average time taken, the number of DFGs
completed by tenure, and the amount spent in the financial year. The
information reported on local authorities’ performance specifically covers
DFG activity for all 22 authorities, but does not include the adaptation
expenditure or activity on council housing for the 11 authorities who retain
social housing. Consequently, the performance indicators only present a
partial picture of expenditure and performance by local government.

There are no nationally-reported performance indicators for housing
associations for their delivery of PAGs, although Welsh Government
collects some data on expenditure and the number of PAGs delivered

in each financial year. Similarly, whilst Welsh Government receives
information on the performance of Care and Repair in respect of the Rapid
Response Adaptation programme, this information is not published.

Tudalen 103

Housing Adaptations

69



4.7

The lack of nationally-reported performance indicators means that it

is not possible to fully evaluate and understand the performance or
effectiveness of individual agencies, or the efficiency and impact of the
‘whole’ adaptation system. Neither the individual delivery organisations
nor the Welsh Government is sighted of the relative performance of the
whole adaptation system. Current performance is only reported for 55% of
annual expenditure on adaptations and 14% of disabled and older people
who receive adaptations from delivery organisations. This makes it difficult
to judge how well organisations are performing and the positive impact of
adaptations on people’s lives.

The National Performance Indicator for Disabled Facilities Grants
shows a reduction in the average length of time taken to complete
adaptations, but the methodology is not robust and the Performance
Indicator needs updating

4.8

4.9

The key national performance indicator for DFGs measures the average
number of days that local authorities take to deliver individual grants.
However, performance measures assessing averages can mask the
scale of local-authority performance and does not measure the impact

or benefits of investment. In 2016-17, the average number of days that
local authorities across Wales took to deliver DFGs was 224 days, an
improvement in performance on the previous year where the average was
241 days.?? Since 2009-10, the average time taken to deliver DFGs has
reduced from around 350 days.

In 2016-17, the average number of days taken to deliver a DFG ranged
from 126 days in Powys to 356 days in Monmouthshire. This means that

a disabled or older person in Monmouthshire waits on average eight
months longer than in Powys. Overall, ten authorities reduced the average
time taken to deliver DFGs compared to the previous year and 12 took
longer on average. However, between 2009-10 and 2016-17 the rate of
improvement for the better performing local authorities has plateaued.
This suggests that there is an optimum level of performance that delivery
organisations can achieve and, consequently, there is limited scope for
improving timeliness beyond the current best-performing local authorities —
Exhibit 13 overleaf.

22 Welsh Government (StatsWales website), HOUS1301: Disabled Facilities Grants,
February 2017
Y Tudalen 104

70

Housing Adaptations


https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Housing/Disabled-Facitilities-Grants/disabledfacilitiesgrants-by-area-granttype

4.10 The Welsh Government'’s review of Independent Living Adaptations? in
2015 identified that the performance indicators focus solely on inputs,
outputs and timeliness but do not cover important issues such as customer
satisfaction and the positive impact of the adaptation on disabled and older
people. A number of local authorities are concerned that some delivery
organisations manipulate how they record data and are consequently not
accurately reporting their performance.

4.11 For example, not recording the true time taken to deliver a DFG from
initial first contact (the ‘start’ date) to completion of the adaptations (the
actual ‘end’ date), and there is potential for ‘gaming’, whereby authorities
could ‘stop the clock’ at different times and different stages to improve
performance. Indeed, the Welsh Government in its 2015 review concluded
that: “The way in which Performance Indicator (PI) information is currently
collected is not consistent across the 22 local authorities in Wales, despite
clear guidance issued by the Welsh Government. It was suggested by
some stakeholders that some local authorities are deliberately ignoring
guidance in order to make delivery times look better.” The issues
surrounding the definition and consistent measurement of performance are
being addressed through the Welsh Government’s ‘Enable’ review.

23 Welsh Government Social Research, A Review of Independent Living Adaptations,
January 2015
y Tudalen 105

Housing Adaptations


http://gov.wales/docs/caecd/research/2015/150123-review-independent-living-adaptions-en.pdf

Exhibit 13: the average number of calendar days taken to deliver a Disabled
Facilities Grant by local authorities 2009-10 to 2015-16

1000 —
800

600 [~

Days taken to deliver the DFG

2009-10 2010 11 2011-12  2012-13  2013-14  2014-15  2015-16  2016-17

=== Poorest performing authority Best performing authority == \Nales average

Source: NSIW0001: National Strategic Indicators (NSI) data collection, Welsh
Government.

The Welsh Government through ‘Enable’ is addressing performance-
reporting weaknesses, but the new system has some gaps

4.12 The Welsh Government, through its ‘Enable’ review, has sought to address
some of these weaknesses through the introduction of a new system for
monitoring and reporting performance in delivering housing adaptations.
The new system, introduced in January 2017, requires local authorities
and housing associations to record the same core set of information in
respect of every DFG and PAG they deliver. Exhibit 14 below sets out the
new performance information established by the Enable review, which
local authorities and housing associations are required to submit to the
Welsh Government.

Tudalen 106

72 Housing Adaptations



Exhibit 14: the performance-reporting standards developed for Disabled
Facilities Grants and Physical Adaptation Grants under the Welsh Government
Enable scheme

The performance-reporting standards developed for Disabled Facilities Grants and
Physical Adaptation Grants under the Welsh Government Enable scheme

All organisations Age of applicant.

Housing tenure.

Date of first contact with the delivery organisation.

Source of referral.

Whether an Occupational Therapist or trained assessor is required.

Date that the need for adaptation was identified (by Occupational
Therapist or trained assessor).

Category of adaptation, (small, medium or large).
Completion date of the adaptation.

Whether the adaptation enabled hospital discharge.
Overall cost of works (including VAT).

Source of funding.

Predicted outcome for person.

Customer overall satisfaction.

Local-authority DFG | Whether a person is required to make a financial contribution.

specific If a contribution is required, the amount of contribution.

Housing-association | Date that the Physical Adaptation Grant is referred to the Welsh
PAG specific Government for approval.

Date of Welsh Government approval of the Physical Adaptation
Grant.

Source: Wales Audit Office review of Welsh Government information

Tudalen 107

Housing Adaptations 73



4.13 We identified some weaknesses with the new Enable framework. Firstly,
whilst Enable is seeking to enhance oversight of local-authority and
housing-association performance and expenditure, coverage has not been
extended to include investment in adaptations to local-authority housing
or LSVT homes. The new approach therefore omits roughly 25% of all
investment and approximately 30% of the disabled and older people who
receive adaptations annually. Whilst the new performance standards
introduced through Enable are a step forward in allowing delivery
organisations to be able to judge the effectiveness of their management
systems, some of the main causes of delays that we have identified
in our review are not included. In particular, data relating to planning
permissions or utility-company approvals; delays created by applicant/
household choices or decisions; equalities data capturing the ethnicity of
the applicant; delays arising from difficulties appointing contractors; and
the time taken and outcome of the suitability of a home for adaptation.
These gaps will limit the usefulness of the data being collated and will not
allow the Welsh Government and delivery organisations to fully evaluate
all aspects of the complex adaptation system.

Performance management focuses too much on individual
organisation inputs and outputs rather than improving
outcomes and the preventative benefits of adaptations

4.14 Historically, the adaptation of buildings is seen as the domain of housing
bodies and, to a lesser extent, social-services authorities. Increasingly,
adaptations are recognised as the responsibility of health, planning,
architectural, education and leisure services amongst others. It is
important therefore that a modern adaptation service embraces and
uses the skills and experience of a wide range of disciplines in delivering
work, but also focuses on understanding not just the efficiency of delivery
systems but the wider benefits of adaptations.

Tudalen 108

74 Housing Adaptations



4.15 In our review, we found that delivery organisations are mostly focussing
their performance management and evaluation on inputs and outputs
associated with delivery of adaptations. Exhibit 15 (overleaf) summarises
the current approaches of local authorities and housing associations for
monitoring and evaluating performance. There continues to be a limited
focus on the wider benefits of adaptations for disabled and older people,
or on health and social-care services, because performance focuses
too much on end-to-end delivery and cost of grants. Current monitoring
focuses too much on the mechanics of delivering adaptations and not
enough on impact, wellbeing and the wider benefits of investment.
Public bodies find it difficult to evaluate performance because of these
weaknesses.

4.16 The Equality Act 2010 (the 2010 Act) states that a landlord or manager of
a property has a duty to make reasonable adjustments and must do this
if a disabled or older person is disadvantaged by something because of
their disability.> The 2010 Act recognises that adaptations are important
services that positively advance equality of opportunity and support
the wellbeing of disabled and older people. Many local authorities and
housing associations have set policy objectives to support people with
disabilities to live independently. Despite highlighting equality as a key
policy objective, we found that few delivery organisations collect and
evaluate a sufficient range of data to demonstrate and ensure fair access
to services. Only seven of the 22 local authorities and 11 of the 33 housing
associations responding to our surveys stated that they collect equalities
information on recipients of housing adaptations. This is a major weakness
in current arrangements.

24 The Equality Act 2010 does not require a landlord to make changes which affect the
structure or which would substantially and permanently alter the home — for instance,
revising the internal layout by removing walls or widening doors. There are some things they
must do, however, to adapt the home for a disabled or older person and if it is reasonable to

do so. Tudalen 109

Housing Adaptations



Exhibit 15: the data collected by local authorities and housing associations to
measure and evaluate their performance in delivering adaptations

End to end time to complete work

Costs

User feedback on contractor performance
Impact on the quality of life for service users
Impact on maintaining independence
Demand for health or care services

Hospital re-admission rates

Length of time for hospital discharges

Other
| | | |

0 20 40 60 80

Percentage complying with the standard

@ Local Authority @® Housing Association

Source: Wales Audit Office Survey of local authorities and housing associations.

Tudalen 110

76 Housing Adaptations

100



417

418

4.19

In Part 3 of this report (Exhibit 10 on page 57) we set out some of the
benefits and beneficiaries of adaptations. For individual families these
include improved dignity, independence, health (physical and mental),
greater levels of social inclusion and improved opportunities for education
and employment for disabled and older people; reduced physical and
mental strain and more freedom and peace of mind for family carers.
Health bodies also highlight that delivery of adaptations contribute to
improving discharge delays and help prevent hospital admissions or
residential care placements through fewer accidents or falls in the home.
Despite many local authorities and housing associations acknowledging
the importance of adaptations in enabling disabled and older people to
live independently and in preventing demand on health and social-care
services, we found little evidence of delivery organisations undertaking
robust evaluation of these wider and longer-term benefits of adaptations.

Various local authorities, housing associations and Care and Repair
agencies undertake post-adaptation satisfaction surveys with disabled and
older people. There is also a wide variation in how feedback from service
users is used and we identified opportunities to use this feedback to both
strengthen understanding and improve delivery. Surveys are usually
undertaken at the point the physical building works have been completed,
which does not allow for a full consideration of the benefits of the work

on disabled and older people. Key outcomes such as independence,
wellbeing, reductions in accidents or falls and greater independence are
most often not captured.

For example, whilst almost all delivery organisations used survey findings
to help judge the quality of building works and contractor performance,
less than half of local authorities and housing associations use the data

to examine performance through scrutiny committees or governance
boards, and just over half to improve joint working. Roughly a half of
housing associations and local authorities use service-user feedback in
discussion with the Welsh Government to identify opportunities to improve
delivery and performance. Finally, six housing associations do not report
and evaluate performance at all. Our analysis shows that at present, using
data to judge performance and support future decision making in respect
of adaptations continues to have many limitations.

Tudalen 111

Housing Adaptations

77



Appendices




Appendix 1: Study Methodology

Review of literature

We have reviewed a wide range of documents and media, including:
*  Welsh Government policy and guidance documents;

» local-authority plans and strategies for Housing Renewal; and

» other relevant research and guidance from Shelter Cymru, WLGA and
research bodies.

National Interviews

We interviewed representative of the Royal College of Occupational Therapy,
Tai Pawb, Public Health Wales, the Welsh Local Government Association, the
Welsh Government and Community Housing Cymru.

Data and statistical analysis

We have collated and analysed a wide range of performance indicator returns
and budget data available online at the Office for National Statistics and
StatsWales.

We analysed spending data for all local authorities, housing associations and
Care and Repair agencies in Wales.

Local-authority and housing-association fieldwork

We visited six local authorities and four housing associations in Wales in 2016-
17. The local authorities selected represented a mix of city, urban, rural and
valley authorities, which are geographically spread across Wales. The four
housing associations selected included three traditional community-based
associations and one LSVT housing association. The fieldwork sites were:

» Caerphilly County Borough Council

+ Cardiff Community Housing Association
» Conwy County Borough Council

* Melin Homes

* North Wales Housing Association

* Newport City Council

* Pembrokeshire County Council

+ Powys County Council

* V2C Housing Association

Tudalen 113

Housing Adaptations

79



During the visits, we interviewed a range of staff. In addition, we reviewed
detailed documentation for Gwynedd County Council, Torfaen County Borough
Council and Wrexham County Borough Council.

Surveys and data collection

We undertook a range of online surveys and we surveyed and collected data
from:

Occupational Therapists working with the Royal College of Occupational
Therapy and received 71 responses;

12 NHS organisations, a mix of health boards and a sample of hospitals,
covering all Health Board areas in Wales;

all 22 local authorities covering management and delivery of adaptations,
including specific information on the 11 authorities which retain their social-
housing stock;

the 33 major housing associations covering management and delivery of
adaptations, including the 22 which are in receipt of Physical Adaptations
Grant monies and the 11 LSVT associations; and

the 13 Care and Repair agencies on delivery of the Rapid Response
Adaptation programme and strategic working to deliver adaptations.

We also commissioned a telephone survey and completed 521 surveys of
disabled and older people who received either a Disabled Facility Grant (DFG)
or Physical Adaptation Grant (PAG) in 2015-16. The sample for the survey
covered all areas of Wales and both DFG and PAG funding.

80

Tudalen 114

Housing Adaptations



Appendix 2: Definition of housing associations

and Care and Repair agencies

Organisation

Remit

Coverage

Housing
Associations

Large Scale
Voluntary
Transfer
(LSVT)

Care and
Repair

To be accepted as a housing association,
organisations must satisfy a number

of conditions including any surpluses

are retained by the organisation to be
applied to social-housing purposes. The
organisation should operate with high
standards of housing, business and
financial management. Board membership
must be voluntary, and non-executive
Directors must not be remunerated. There
should also be Independence from other
organisations, including a limit of 20% on
local-authority ownership or representation
on Boards of Management.

LSVT housing associations are created as
the result of the transfer of ownership of
local-authority stock following agreement
of a majority of tenants in a ballot. The
key features of a LSVT are transferring
tenants are offered benefits such as rent
guarantees, stock investment programmes
and rights as ‘assured tenants’. The new
landlord must be registered with the
Welsh Government, complying with the
requirements for community or traditional
housing associations. Transfers are
funded via a mix of public and private
monies.

Care and Repair is a national charitable
body that seeks to ensure that all older
people have homes that are safe, secure
and appropriate to their needs. Since
2002-03, the Welsh Government has
funded Care and Repair to deliver the
national Rapid Response Adaptations
Programme.

Tudalen 115

Twenty-two housing
associations deliver Physical
Adaptations Grants to their
homes and provide housing
for rent in all local-authority
areas in Wales.

Eleven LSVT housing
associations covering the
local-authority areas of:
Blaenau Gwent; Bridgend;
Ceredigion; Conwy;
Gwynedd; Merthyr Tydfil;
Monmouthshire; Neath Port
Talbot; Newport; Rhondda
Cynon Taf; and Torfaen.

Thirteen Care and Repair
agencies cover the 22 local
authorities in Wales.

Housing Adaptations

81



Appendix 3: The five different public funding
routes for adaptations in Wales

The five different public funding routes for adaptations in Wales

Disabled Facilities Grants

Under the Housing Grants, Construction and Regeneration Act 1996, local authorities
provide Disabled Facilities Grants (DFGs). These are mandatory grants available to help
disabled and older people to remain living independently in their own homes. Owner-
occupiers, landlords as well as local-authority, private-rented and housing-association
tenants can apply for a DFG.

The 1996 Housing Grants, Construction and Regeneration Act set the basis for the provision
of DFGs. The Housing Renewal Grants Regulations 1996 (Wales) set out the criteria used
to test financial resources and the maximum level of grant that local authorities can pay for
an adaptation, which is currently £36,000. Local authorities have discretionary powers to
provide funding for adaptations, repairs and improvements under the Regulatory Reform
(Housing Assistance) (England and Wales) Order 2002. Local authorities can provide
assistance under that Order in the form of a grant, but it is often a loan. Local Authorities
have their own policies on the level of and form of the discretionary assistance they offer
and the conditions a person must meet to qualify. The Welsh Government published
supplementary housing renewal guidance (NAfW 20/02) to accompany the Regulatory
Reform Order. The Welsh Government updated that guidance in 2010.

DFGs are means tested and applicants’ contribution towards the cost of works depends
on their assessed levels of income, savings and outgoings. Local authorities have a duty
to conduct those assessments. The Welsh Government, however, excludes families with
dependent disabled children or young people under 19 from means testing. Before issuing
a DFG a local housing authority must satisfy itself that the works are ‘necessary and
appropriate’ to meet the needs of the disabled or older person, and are ‘reasonable and
practicable’ depending on the age and condition of the property. In reaching a decision,
authorities need to consider whether DFG is:

* needed to provide for a care plan to be implemented which will enable the disabled or
older occupant to remain living in their existing home as independently as possible; and

* meet, as far as possible, the assessed needs of the disabled or older person taking into
account both their medical and physical needs.

Physical Adaptation Grants

The Welsh Government provides Physical Adaptation Grants (PAGs) to housing associations
to adapt homes for their tenants where there is an identified need for assistance. Tenants of
housing associations cannot apply as an individual for funding. Welsh Government officials
approve all PAG funding. Currently, 22 major housing associations receive PAG funding.

Tudalen 116

82 Housing Adaptations



The five different public funding routes for adaptations in Wales

Housing Revenue Account funding of adaptations to local-authority housing

The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) is a ring-fenced account within a local authority’s
General Fund, which means that local authorities have no general discretion to transfer
sums into or out of it. The items to be credited and debited to the HRA are prescribed by
statute. These include expenditure and income relating to property listed in section 74 of
the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 and Schedule 4 to the 1989 Act (as amended)
which specifies the debit and credit items to be recorded in the HRA. Permissible debit
items include expenditure on repairs, maintenance and management, capital expenditure
and rents, rates, taxes and other charges. The cost of adaptations is included as an area
of activity for investment. Whilst tenants can apply for financial assistance to modify their
homes typically, the local-authority landlord provides and funds adaptations for their own
stock.

Large-scale voluntary transfer (LSVT) housing associations

PAGs are not available to the 11 housing associations that were created through transfer
of housing stock from a local authority. LSVT housing associations can either apply to local
authorities for a DFG or use their own funding to provide adaptations in their properties.
Tenants of stock-transfer associations cannot apply as individuals for funding of an
adaptation and are therefore dependent on their landlord agreeing to adapt their home.
The Welsh Government requires LSVT housing associations to set out their anticipated
investment for housing adaptations in the offer document when tenants are balloted

on whether to support stock transfer. If the stock transfer is supported and the housing
stock and tenants transfer from the local authority to a new housing-association landlord,
then the cost of adaptations work has to be funded from the stock-transfer association’s
maintenance budgets rather than via PAGs. However, some of organisations now find that
their anticipated investment is insufficient to meet the rising demand for housing adaptations
from their tenants. LSVT housing associations neither require approval from the Welsh
Government nor do they need to comply with the Welsh Government’s PAG criteria.

Rapid Response Adaptations Programme (RRAP)

The Welsh Government has funded Care and Repair agencies to deliver the Rapid
Response Adaptations Programme (RRAP) since 2002-03. The programme is unique to
Wales. The RRAP allows Care and Repair agencies to carry out minor adaptations such
as handrails, to enable people to return safely to their own homes from hospital and thus
improve hospital discharge. The Welsh Government expects these adaptations to be
completed within 15 working days; however, adaptations can be carried out immediately
in response to a crisis. The RRAP is only available for owner-occupiers and private-rented
tenants. Care and Repair has sought to widen coverage to other tenures but the Welsh
Government has yet to approve this extension.

Source: Wales Audit Office analysis of grants and funding for adaptations.

Tudalen 117

Housing Adaptations 83



Appendix 4: Total projected population aged
65 and over unable to manage at least one
domestic task on their own

%

Local Authority 2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 change
Blaenau Gwent 5,232 5,632 6,162 6,760 7,390  29.20%
Bridgend 11,108 12,548 14,212 16,063 17,861  37.81%
Caerphilly 12,976 14,565 16,441 18,462 20,452  36.55%
Cardiff 20,619 22,551 25,365 28,933 32,677  36.90%
Carmarthenshire 16,966 18,857 21,163 23,681 25,891  34.47%
Ceredigion 7,006 7,780 8,666 9,516 10,181  31.19%
Conwy 12,853 13,951 15,324 16,884 18,324  29.86%
Denbighshire 8,764 9,738 10,862 12,128 13,293  34.07%
Flintshire 12,134 13,912 15,820 17,880 19,796  38.70%
Gwynedd 11,133 11,928 12,918 13,997 14,942  25.49%
Isle of Anglesey 6,977 7,725 8,591 9,412 10,088  30.84%
Merthyr Tydfil 4,285 4,751 5,336 6,026 6,704  36.08%
Monmouthshire 8,778 10,033 11,370 12,909 14,300  38.62%
Neath Port Talbot 11,332 12,321 13,658 15,182 16,532  31.45%
Newport 10,412 11,187 12,316 13,672 15,154  31.29%
Pembrokeshire 11,990 13,381 14,874 16,461 17,798  32.63%
Powys 13,831 15,775 17,931 20,216 22,222  37.76%
Rhondda Cynon 17,468 19,131 21,163 23,388 25,537  31.60%
Taf

Swansea 19,132 20,851 22,954 25,240 27,388  30.14%
Torfaen 7,313 8,094 9,001 10,054 10,994  33.48%

Tudalen 118

84 Housing Adaptations



%

Local Authority 2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 change
Vale of Glamorgan 10,559 11,977 13,684 15,530 17,193 38.59%
Wrexham 10,317 11,734 13,351 15,124 16,862 38.82%
Wales 251,188 278,422 311,163 347,518 381,580 34.17%

Source: Welsh Government, Daffodil projections

Tudalen 119

Housing Adaptations

85



Appendix 5: Projected population aged 65 and
over with mobility problems

%

Local Authority 2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 change
Blaenau Gwent 2,325 2,510 2,759 3,078 3,400 46.24%
Bridgend 4,946 5,622 6,418 7,345 8,281 67.43%
Caerphilly 5,745 6,489 7,363 8,397 9,456 64.60%
Cardiff 9,374 10,283 11,533 13,188 15,076 60.83%
Carmarthenshire 7,642 8,504 9,562 10,865 12,089 58.19%
Ceredigion 3,152 3,515 3,936 4,402 4,806 52.47%
Conwy 5,863 6,378 7,026 7,828 8,624 47.09%
Denbighshire 3,924 4,374 4,906 5,562 6,202 58.05%
Flintshire 5,395 6,227 7,153 8,221 9,291 72.22%
Gwynedd 5,052 5,438 5,894 6,498 7,039 39.33%
Isle of Anglesey 3,136 3,492 3,914 4,363 4,763 51.88%
Merthyr Tydfil 1,910 2,131 2,405 2,736 3,087 61.62%
Monmouthshire 3,959 4,545 5,179 5,972 6,743 70.32%
Neath Port Talbot 5,095 5,531 6,143 6,905 7,647 50.09%
Newport 4,673 5,058 5,588 6,271 7,021 50.25%
Pembrokeshire 5,378 6,053 6,770 7,610 8,398 56.15%
Powys 6,228 7,127 8,144 9,342 10,466 68.05%
Rhondda Cynon 7,803 8,591 9,534 10,692 11,875 52.19%
Taf

Swansea 8,607 9,445 10,427 11,617 12,821 48.96%
Torfaen 3,286 3,653 4,076 4,615 5,131 56.15%
Vale of Glamorgan 4,765 5,409 6,209 7,147 8,048 68.90%

Tudalen 120

86 Housing Adaptations



%

Local Authority 2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 change
Wrexham 4,626 5,272 6,024 6,942 7,871 70.15%
Wales 112,887 125,645 140,963 159,599 178,134 57.80%

Source: Welsh Government, Daffodil projections

Tudalen 121

Housing Adaptations

87



Appendix 6: The views of local-authority

managers on the effectiveness of partnership
arrangements between their local authority
and other organisations delivering housing
adaptations

Local
Authorities

Member of
cross-
sector

group

Regular Informal
meeting  contact

Sharing Collocated
information

staff

Pooled
resources

No
partnership
arrangements

Care and
Repair

Housing
Associations
and/or LSVT
Associations
that do not
manage
housing in
your area

Housing
Associations
and/or LSVT
Associations
that manage
housing in
your area

Local
authorities

Other third
sector
organisations

Users of
housing
adaptations

5

5

10

88 Housing Adaptations

18 15

6 13

14 9

Tudalen 122

15

8

11

1

2

7

1

1

4

18

12



Local
Authorities

Member of
cross-
sector

group

Regular
meeting

Informal

contact information

Sharing Collocated

staff

No
Pooled partnership
resources | arrangements

Your Local
Health Board
— other than
Occupational
Therapy
Services

Your Local
Health Board
— through
Occupational
Therapy
Services

1

4

6 5

11

10

0

3 12

Source: Wales Audit Office survey of local-authority housing managers. We received
responses from all 22 local authorities. Survey respondents could choose more than
one response so totals in rows can add up to more than 22. The final column in red is

actual numbers.

Tudalen 123

Housing Adaptations 89



Appendix 7: The views of housing-association
managers on the effectiveness of partnership
arrangements between their housing
association and other organisations delivering
housing adaptations

Local
Authorities

Member of
cross-
sector

group

Regular Informal

meeting

contact

Sharing Collocated

information

staff

Pooled
resources

No
partnership
arrangements

Care and
Repair

Housing
Associations
and/or LSVT
Associations
that do not
manage
housing in
your area

Housing
Associations
and/or LSVT
Associations
that manage
housing in
your area

Local
authorities

Other third
sector
organisations

Users of
housing
adaptations

3

7

90 Housing Adaptations

6

12

17

20

10

9

19

12

Tudalen 124

0

1

0

2

7

1

12

10

12



Local
Authorities

Member of
cross-
sector

group

Regular
meeting

Informal Sharing Collocated

contact information

staff

No
Pooled partnership
resources | arrangements

Your Local
Health Board
— other than
Occupational
Therapy
Services

Your Local
Health Board
— through
Occupational
Therapy
Services

0

0

6 2

17 9

0

0 14

Source: Wales Audit Office survey of housing associations. We received responses
from all 33 housing associations which provide adaptations. Survey respondents
could choose more than one response so totals can add up to more than 33. The final
column in red is actual numbers.

Tudalen 125

Housing Adaptations 91



Appendix 8: The views of Care and Repair
managers on the effectiveness of partnership
arrangements between their organisation
and other organisations delivering housing
adaptations

Local
Authorities

Member of
cross-
sector

group

Regular Informal

meeting

contact

Sharing Collocated

information

staff

Pooled
resources

No
partnership
arrangements

Care and
Repair

Housing
Associations
and/or LSVT
Associations
that do not
manage
housing in
your area

Housing
Associations
and/or LSVT
Associations
that manage
housing in
your area

Local
authorities

Other third
sector
organisations

Users of
housing
adaptations

5

1

92 Housing Adaptations

11

3

5

8

10

6

Tudalen 126

3

0

2

0

0

1



Local
Authorities

Member of
cross-
sector

group

Regular
meeting

Informal Sharing Collocated

contact information

staff

No
Pooled partnership
resources | arrangements

Your Local
Health Board
— other than
Occupational
Therapy
Services

Your Local
Health Board
— through
Occupational
Therapy
Services

2

8

11

8 7

3

0 0

Source: Wales Audit Office survey of Care and Repair managers. We received
responses from all 13 Care and Repair agencies. Survey respondents could choose
more than one response so row totals can add up to more than 13. The final column in
red is actual numbers.

Tudalen 127

Housing Adaptations 93



Wales Audit Office
24 Cathedral Road
Cardiff CF11 9LJ

Tel: 029 2032 0500
Fax: 029 2032 0600
Textphone: 029 2032 0660

We welcome telephone calls in
Welsh and English.

E-mail: info@audit.wales

Website: www.audit.wales

Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru
24 Heol y Gadeirlan
Caerdydd CF11 9LJ

Ffon: 029 2032 0500
Ffacs: 029 2032 0600
Ffon Testun: 029 2032 0660

Rydym yn croesawu galwadau
ffon yn Gymraeg a Saesneg.

E-bost: post@archwilio.cymru

Gwefan: www.archwilio.cymru



Number: WG35897

Ve

Llywodraeth Cymru
Welsh Government

Welsh Government
Consultation Document

Housing Adaptations Service Standards

Date of issue: 26 September 2018
Action required: Responses by 19 December 2018

Tudalen 129



Overview

How to respond

Further information
and related
documents

Contact details

The Welsh Government is consulting on Service
Standards for Housing Adaptations that support
disabled and older people to live more independently
in their own home.

The aim of the Standards is to ensure greater
consistency on the way adaptations are provided
regardless of a persons tenure or geographic location.

This is a written, electronic consultation. Questions are
summarised in a questionnaire at the end of this
document. Please use this questionnaire to provide
your feedback. Responses can be e-mailed/posted to
the contact details below.

Large print, Braille and alternative language
versions of this document are available on
request.

The consultation documents can be accessed from
the Welsh Government’'s website at:
www.gov.wales/consultations

For further information:

Independent Living Team
Housing Policy

Welsh Government
Merthyr Tydfil Office
Rhydycar

Merthyr Tydfil

CF48 1Uz

email: IndependentLiving@gov.wales

Tudalen 130


http://www.gov.wales/consultations
mailto:IndependentLiving@gov.wales

Contents

L. Al ettt ees e ee s ees s e s RS R R R R R R R R R R S R R SRR R R R R RS R R 5
P2 (= VN 1511 U PPN 5
T Y070 01PN 5
4. Service Standards for the delivery of HOUSING Ad@PLatioNS........cceeeeeesmmeesssmesssssesssssessssssssssns 6
5. MONItoring Of SEIVICE StANUAITS........oeeureereressseessssesssssessssssessssssesssssessssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssess 7
6.  COMPIAINTIS QNGO CONCEIMS.......ievuererueeessssesessseessssesssssessssssssssssssssssssessssss s ss s s s s s s s s ssss s ssssnees 7
Figure 1 Housing Adaptations Service STANUArAS ......reeeessessssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssesssssees 8
Figure 2 — Definitions of different types of HOUSING AdPLAtiIONS ........c.oeeeeemeeesmmeessssessssssssssseeess 10
CoNSUItAtION RESPONSE FOIMN ....couieeeeeermeeesssesessessssssesessssessssssessssssessssssessssssessssssessssssesssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssasssssssnes 11

Tudalen 131



General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR)

The Welsh Government will be data controller for any personal data you provide as
part of your response to the consultation. Welsh Ministers have statutory powers they
will rely on to process this personal data which will enable them to make informed
decisions about how they exercise their public functions. Any response you send us
will be seen in full by Welsh Government staff dealing with the issues which this
consultation is about or planning future consultations. Where the Welsh Government
undertakes further analysis of consultation responses then this work may be
commissioned to be carried out by an accredited third party (e.g. a research
organisation or a consultancy company). Any such work will only be undertaken under
contract. Welsh Government’s standard terms and conditions for such contracts set
out strict requirements for the processing and safekeeping of personal data.

In order to show that the consultation was carried out properly, the Welsh Government
intends to publish a summary of the responses to this document. We may also publish
responses in full. Normally, the name and address (or part of the address) of the
person or organisation who sent the response are published with the response. If you
do not want your name or address published, please tell us this in writing when you
send your response. We will then redact them before publishing.

You should also be aware of our responsibilities under Freedom of Information
legislation. If your details are published as part of the consultation response then these
published reports will be retained indefinitely. Any of your data held otherwise by
Welsh Government will be kept for no more than three years.

Your rights

Under the data protection legislation, you have the right:

to be informed of the personal data holds about you and to access it

to require us to rectify inaccuracies in that data

to (in certain circumstances) object to or restrict processing

for (in certain circumstances) your data to be ‘erased’

to (in certain circumstances) data portability

to lodge a complaint with the Information Commissioner’s Office (ICO) who is our
independent regulator for data protection.

For further details about the The contact details for the
information the Welsh Information Commissioner’s
Government holds and its use, Office are:

or if you want to exercise your Wycliffe House

rights under the GDPR, please Water Lane

see contact details below: Wilmslow

Data Protection Officer: Cheshire

Welsh Government SK9 5AF

Cathays Park

CARDIFF Tel: 01625 545 745 or
CF10 3NQ 0303 1231113

Website: https://ico.org.uk/
e-mail:
Data.ProtectionOfficer@gov.wal

es
Tudalen 132


mailto:Data.ProtectionOfficer@gov.wales
mailto:Data.ProtectionOfficer@gov.wales
https://ico.org.uk/

1. Aim

The Welsh Government recognises the essential role housing adaptations play in
supporting disabled and older people to live safely and independently, improving the
health and wellbeing of the individual supported including their families and reducing
pressures on frontline services such as health and social care. The preventative
work which housing adaptations offer is very much in line with the principles of the
Wellbeing of Future Generations Act, and the approach set out in Prosperity for All
and Healthier Wales.

The provision of support for housing adaptations in Wales is complex and is a
reflection of the multiple partners involved in the care and support arrangements of
disabled and older people.

To provide greater consistency of delivery across Wales the Welsh Government plan
to publish National Service Standards for the delivery of housing adaptations to
support disabled and older people to live independently in their own home. The aim
of the standards is to set out the level of service expected for the delivery and
installation of a housing adaptation that service users, regardless of their geographic
location and tenure, can expect. The Service Standards should ensure service
providers deliver housing adaptations in a more consistent manner and inform
service users on the level of service to expect when they seek support for a housing
adaptation.

2. Key Issues

Recent independent reviews have highlighted the complexity of the different ways in
which housing adaptations are provided. Examples of reports include:

A review of Independent Living Adaptations: Welsh Government (2015) *

Housing Adaptations: Wales Audit Office (2018) 2

Housing and Disabled People: Equalities and Human Rights Commission (2018) 3
Housing Adaptations: Report of the Public Accounts Committee (2018)*

Each report has identified issues of funding complexity and the challenging
arrangements for accessing services across Wales. The multiple funding
programmes in place for providing adaptations in Wales has resulted in service
users receiving different levels of service as a result of their tenure and where they
live.

3. Scope

! https://gov.wales/statistics-and-research/review-independent-living-adaptations/?lang=en
2 hitps://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/housing-adaptations-2018-english.pdf

hidden-crisis.pdf
4 http: //www.assembly.wales/laid%20documents/cr-1d11703/cr-1d11703-e.pdf

Tudalen 133


https://gov.wales/statistics-and-research/review-independent-living-adaptations/?lang=en
https://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/housing-adaptations-2018-english.pdf
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/sites/default/files/housing-and-disabled-people-wales-hidden-crisis.pdf
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/sites/default/files/housing-and-disabled-people-wales-hidden-crisis.pdf
http://www.assembly.wales/laid%20documents/cr-ld11703/cr-ld11703-e.pdf

These standards will be applied to all housing adaptations, and will be relevant to:

Local Authorities

Care and Repair Agencies

Registered Social Landlords

Large Scale Voluntary Transfer (LSVT) organisations
Occupational Therapists

In addition to the above, the Service Standards will be relevant for Healthcare and
Social Service Professionals.

The Welsh Government will keep the standards under review, and may publish
amended standards as appropriate.

Legislation requirements for the delivery of specific types of adaptation overrides any
services standards outlined in this document, and service provider should seek their
own legal advice where needed.

4. Service Standards for the delivery of Housing Adaptations

The Service Standards set the expected levels of service for the installation of a
Housing Adaptation and can be seen at Figure 1.

Setting service levels will help to ensure housing adaptations are delivered in a
consistent manner, regardless of a service users location and tenure, whilst giving
flexibility to service providers to determine the best way to utilise their own resources
to meet the standards.

Due to the complexity of delivering some housing adaptations, especially larger
sized adaptations, the process can result in a number of steps that may involve input
from wider stakeholders such as the planning department, building control teams
and utility companies. These steps have to be taken to ensure that the adaptation
will provide the help and assistance needed for the service user and meets broader
legislative requirements. As a result, the timeframes for delivering a housing
adaptation can vary due to this. The 'Expected Timeframes’ service standard in
Figure 1 has been split to reflect the following key phases that can be involved in
deciding if a Housing Adaptation should be provided:

e The time it takes from a service user making first contact with a relevant
Service Provider (this could be a Local Authority, Care and Repair Agency,
Housing Association or from their health or social services contacts) to being
assessed by a competent person (such as Occupational Therapist or Trusted
Assessor) and,;

e The timescale for an Occupational Therapist (or another suitably competent
person) report/referral/recommendation being provided to the service
provider outlining the adaptation works required.

Tudalen 134



e The date of referral (or decision, recommendation, report) made by the
competent person when the adaptation is confirmed as needed to installation.
This is to ensure that alternative forms of assistance (e.g. re-ablement) are
considered before deciding a housing adaptation is needed.

The Welsh Government expect the service provider to work in collaboration with
Occupational Therapists (or other competent persons who can advise and identify
the required adaptation) as well as the service users to determine the best possible
outcome is achieved, while still reflecting the principles of all work being necessary
and appropriate, reasonable and practicable.

Definitions of the different types of housing adaptations (Small, Medium or Large)
are listed in Figure 2. These are included to provide a guide for service providers to
determine how to record the most appropriate type of adaptation (Small, Medium or
Large). The Welsh Government recognises there may be situations or individual
cases which do not fit within the categories of Figure 2. In these cases, service
providers should use their professional judgement to decide the most appropriate
category to use, based on sound judgement and evidence.

The definitions in Figure 2 also aims to help service users understand the different
types of adaptations and what they can expect in how they are delivered by the
service provider.

5. Monitoring of Service Standards

Performance monitoring data will be submitted to the Welsh Government using
existing data collection methodology for the ENABLE data; national performance
data for each organisation will be published on an annual basis.

6. Complaints and concerns

If a service user is not satisfied with the level of service received, they have the right
to make a complaint. Any complaints should be directed to the Service Provider and
handled in accordance with their organisational complaints procedure.

Tudalen 135



OET usfepnL

Figure 1 Housing Adaptations Service Standards

Service Standard

Level of Service Expected

The purpose of a housing adaptation is to help disabled and/or older people to remain or become more

ﬁfﬁn%zred L independent within their own home. The adaptation provided should be necessary and appropriate, as well as
P reasonable and practicable.
Standard 2: : , . . : .
Equality and Disabled and/or older p_eople can expect th_a? thgy will be treated falrl_y and respectfully. Service providers will
) . ensure they have equality and diversity policies in place to ensure this.
Diversity
Information and communication will be in a format which most effectively meets a service users needs, such
as Welsh and English, and accessible formats including braille, large fonts, audio versions and other
Standard 3: languages. At the start of the process the service user (or their representative) will be informed of the key

Communication

steps to install an adaption, be included in the decision making process, informed of the expected timeframes,
be regularly updated on progress and invited to provide feedback at the end of installation.

Standard 4:
Quality of Service

The work will be completed by a suitably competent person, either an employee of the Service Provider or
someone from their approved contractors list which is regularly monitored by the Service Provider. If a service
user decides to use their own contractor to carry out the work it will be the service users responsibility to deal
with and resolve any issues.

Standard 5:
Quality of
Equipment

Any equipment installed will be compliant with relevant health and safety requirements, technical
specifications and be appropriate for the purpose which they were intended. service user should also be
informed of any warranty information, service charges and maintenance requirements where it is appropriate
to do so.




LET usfepnyL

Standard 6:
Expected
Timeframes

For Small Adaptations:
The solution will usually be installed within 2 weeks from date of first contact with the Service Provider who
have deemed it necessary for the adaptation to be installed.

For Medium Adaptations:

- From first point of contact with the Service Provider, the service user can expect to be assessed within 2
months by a competent person e.g. an Occupational Therapist, or Trusted Assessor.

- Once the adaptation is confirmed as necessary the Occupational Therapist or Trusted Assessor will provide
a report/referral/recommendation to the service provider within 2 weeks of the decision.

- Solution usually installed within 4 months (or in line with legislative requirements) from date of
referral/recommendation from a competent person.

For Large Adaptations:

-From first point of contact with the Service Provider, the service user can expect to be assessed within 2
months by a competent person e.g. an Occupational Therapist.

- Once the adaptation is confirmed as necessary the Occupational Therapist will provide a
report/referral/recommendation to the service provider within 2 weeks of the decision.

- Solution usually installed within 15 months (or in line with legislative requirements) from date of referral from
a competent person, to reflect steps taken in some cases, e.g. planning permission.

Standard 7:
Eligibility Checks

For Small Adaptations:

- Means Test is not required.

- Occupational Therapist assessment not required.
- Trusted Assessor assessment may be required.

For Medium Adaptations:

- Means Test may be required.

- Occupational Therapist Assessment may be required.
- Trusted Assessor assessment will be required.

For Large Adaptations:

- Means Test may be required.

- Occupational Therapist Assessment will be required.

- Trusted Assessor assessment would not be appropriate in these cases.




8ET usepnL

Figure 2 — Definitions of different types of Housing Adaptations

Category

Nature of Work Required

Example of Work

Funding Source

Small Adaptions

adaptations are inexpensive items, which
can be provided very quickly. It would
generally fit into the description of
‘immediate falls prevention’ or ‘urgent for
hospital discharge’ and can be assessed
and installed within days or the same day
if urgent. It can be identified by a number
of health/ social services/ other
appropriately trained staff e.g. RSL staff,
Care and Repair Staff.

* Minor home modification required

* Not a specialised solution

* No building/planning approval required
* Adjustable / Flexible

» Simple & Intuitive

* Minimal maintenance and/or servicing

* Grab rails

« Stair rails

* Small ramps

* Accessible taps

* Key safes

* Mop stick hand rails

* Qutdoor rails

» External / staircase lights

* Additional electrical sockets.

« ENABLE

* RRAP

* RSL Funds

* LA own funds
« Self funded

Medium Adaptations
anything which is not classed as small or
large.

» Major home modification may be required,
but building/planning approval not required.

* Walk in shower

« Stair lifts

» Large ramps

» A combination of adaptations
installed as one job

* ENABLE

* RSL Funds

* LA own funds

* Physical
Adaptation Grants
(PAG)

* Disabled Facility
Grant (DFG)s

* Self funded

Large Adaptations

these are works which will require
specialist assessments and major
adaptations to a property such as
extensions and through floor lifts. An
Occupational Therapists assessment will
be required and planning permission may
be needed.

» Major home modification / structural change
required

* Specialised / Innovative solutions required

* Building / planning approval required

* Fixed / permanent / long term

» Complex / unfamiliar / requires training &
supervision

* Solution requires expertise for installation
and maintenance

* Building an extension to
provide a downstairs bedroom
and/or bathroom

* Through floor lift

« Significant internal structural
modifications e.g. relocate
bathroom or kitchen

* Disabled Facilities
Grant

* Physical
Adaptations Grants
* RSL Funds

* LA own funds

« Self funded

10




Consultation
Response Form Your name:

Organisation (if applicable):

email / telephone number:

Your address:
Housing Adaptation Service Standards
Question 1: Will the proposed service standards improve the way housing adaptations
are delivered in Wales? If not, are there further service standards which should be

included?

Question 2: Are the proposed service standards on the ‘Expected Timeframes’
(Service Standard 6) challenging enough?

Question 3: Are the definitions for a small, medium and/or large adaptation sufficiently
clear? If not, how could they be clarified?

Question 4: Are there any issues relating to impact on the Welsh language, equalities
or children’s rights in relation to this draft guidance that you wish to highlight?

Question 5: Do you have any further comments to add?
Please enter here:

Responses to consultations are likely to be made public, on the internet or in a report. If you
would prefer your response to remain anonymous, please tick here:

11
Tudalen 139



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



Disabled Facilities Grants risk register (v7 January 2019)

Identifying the risk or issue Managing the risk or issue Closing the risk or issue
I i o.: Threat & Risk / Current Residual risk
ssue (i.e.: Threat to . Who is . . Who will | Implement Revised Review Closure | Signed off
ID ( , Consequence | assessment Already in place : Not in place / in progress P level 9
the Project) managing manage date date date date by
Il |L|O | L|O
Management oversight |Potential for non- New manual spreadsheet | Joe Muxlow [Management sampling of case files Niall
of DFG cases and compliance with created to summarise Monthly monitoring of system compliance, Joe
programme needs systems Civica record — case progress and timescales using Muxlow
strengthening Poor case compliance with each slaboat - -
Clear desk instructions for each stage in Joe
management process stage and
i . the nrocess Muxlow
1 leadingtodelays | |, | | , [timescales for each Restructure of wider service to reinstate Neal July 2018 April2019 | M | L | L
Lower value for lonerational manaaer fiinction over the |
money Review findings from customer satisfaction Joe
Lower customer tsurvevs everv S months
satisfaction New IT system with case management .
dashboard functionality to facilitate monthly Niall
manager review of process compliance Waller
New adaptation Lower value for Gather data on costs and | Joe Muxlow |Monitor the costs and timeliness for each Joe
framework may not money timeliness for each contractor Muxlow
9 deliver anticipated Lower customer " contractor Review the implementation of the
benefits — timeliness, | satisfaction M| Y lintroduce new customer framework at quarterly intervals to Niall ML (M
VFM and customer satisfaction survey to establish effectiveness Waller
service include contractor service
Implementation of Lower value for Record officers allocating | Joe Muxlow Operate framework in accordance with
2a adaptations framework |money L L L work. rotation of contractors. Joe L L L
not transparent in Reputational risk Review work allocation quarterly to ensure | Muxlow
:I allocation of work to rotation being used effectively and
—
O |Land charges process | The Council New manual spreadsheet | Joe Muxlow |Management sampling of case files Niall
Q) |inadequate to ensure  |placed at risk of created to summarise New manual spreadsheet to summarise Joe
(D |charges are placed in a |not being repaid Civica record — Civica record — compliance with each Muxlow
3 |timely manner to protect |grant owed toit | M [ M | M |compliance with each + L oot - L{L|t
. New IT system with case management
|— | public investment process stage and . i » Niall
D . dashboard functionality to facilitate monthly
timescales for each . . Waller
o manager review of process compliance
Mismatch between Lack of New programme schedule to be created to Niall
current published policy |transparency of 'set out criteria for each Waller
and practice for top up | decision-making Management sampling of case files on Niall
4 M L M monthlv hasis \Waller L L L
loans and grants and leading to -
i . New manual spreadsheet to summarise Joe
relocation grants criticism and . . .
Civica record — compliance with each Muxlow
challenge . i . N
Systems and paperwork | Legal action Forms reviewed for Joe Muxlow |All systems to be checked and signed off Joe
5 |not GDPR compliant  |against the H | L | m |GDPR compliance thv Information Governance Muxlow: Ll L L
Council and The Civica system needs review as its Niall
B ahilitv to meet GDPR reauirementsis |
Overall DFG timescale |Reputational New manual spreadsheet | Joe Muxlow |Review evidence base generated to Niall
too long to meet damage to summarise Civica identify pinch points in the process and Waller
published targets Customer record — compliance with et D il o
6 frustration M H M |each process stage and Lean review of the overall DFG process ia L M M
timescales for each including the OT elements Waller
Review all cases that fail Learn from high-performing Council areas Joe
" 4OAT s s Muxlow
Lifting equipment Failure to meet New procurement arrangement being put Joe
7 LM L L L L
contract out of date CPRs in_nlace throuah national framewark
Whole systems Lower value for Monthly panel meetings Niall Waller |Need wider dialogue to start with Health Niall
approach to adaptations | money — bring together OTs, DFG ‘Board and with RSI s Waller
not in place in County | opportunities for (private) team, C&R and Develop common systems across
economies of Housing Options providers
8 scale and MMM Niall M| M|M
reduced Waller
administration
Services not
customer




Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 5

Sir y Fflint
"5!&!3!3!3.?@

COMMUNITY & ENTERPRISE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting Wednesday, 13" March 2019
Report Subject Quarter 3 Council Plan 2018/19 Monitoring Report
Cabinet Member Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Housing;

Cabinet Member for Economic Development; and

Cabinet Member for Corporate Management and Assets

Report Author Chief Officer (Housing and Assets); and

Chief Officer (Planning, Environment and Economy)

Type of Report Operational

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Council Plan 2018/19 was adopted by the Council in June 2018. This report
presents a summary of the monitoring of progress for the Quarter 3 (October —
December 2018) position of 2018/19 for the Council Plan priorities ‘Supportive
Council’ and ‘Ambitious Council’ relevant to the Community & Enterprise Overview &
Scrutiny Committee.

Flintshire is a high performing Council as evidenced in previous Council Plan
monitoring reports as well as in the Council’s Annual Performance Reports. This
second monitoring report for the 2018/19 Council Plan is a positive report, with 92%
of activities being assessed as making good progress, and 85% likely to achieve the
desired outcome. In addition, 67% of the performance indicators met or exceeded
target. Risks are also being successfully managed with the maijority being assessed
as moderate (61%) or minor/insignificant (22%).

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 That the Committee consider the Quarter 3 Council Plan 2018/19 Monitoring
Report to monitor under performance and request further information as
appropriate.

Tudalen 143




REPORT DETAILS

1.00 | EXPLAINING THE COUNCIL PLAN 2018/19 MONITORING REPORT
1.01 | The Council Plan monitoring reports give an explanation of the progress being
made toward the delivery of the impacts set out in the 2018/19 Council Plan.
The narrative is supported by performance indicators and / or milestones
which evidence achievement. In addition, there is an assessment of the
strategic risks and the level to which they are being controlled.
1.02 | This is an exception based report and detail therefore focuses on the areas of
under-performance.
1.03 | Monitoring our Activities
Each of the sub-priorities have high level activities which are monitored over
time. ‘Progress’ monitors progress against scheduled activity and has been
categorised as follows: -
e RED: Limited Progress — delay in scheduled activity; not on track
e AMBER: Satisfactory Progress — some delay in scheduled activity, but
broadly on track
e GREEN: Good Progress — activities completed on schedule, on track
A RAG status is also given as an assessment of our level of confidence at this
point in time in achieving the ‘outcome(s)’ for each sub-priority. Outcome has
been categorised as: -
e RED: Low — lower level of confidence in the achievement of the
outcome(s)
e AMBER: Medium — uncertain level of confidence in the achievement of
the outcome(s)
e GREEN: High — full confidence in the achievement of the outcome(s)
1.04 | In summary our overall progress against the high level activities is: -
ACTIVITIES PROGRESS
e We are making good (green) progress in 48 (92%).
e We are making satisfactory (amber) progress in 4 (8%).
ACTIVITIES OUTCOME
e We have a high (green) level of confidence in the outcome
achievement of 44 (85%).
e We have a medium (amber) level of confidence in the outcome
achievement of 8 (15%).
e No activities have a low (red) level of confidence in their outcome
achievement.
1.05 | Monitoring our Performance

Analysis of performance against the Improvement Plan performance
indicators is undertaken using the RAG (Red, Amber Green) status. This is
defined as follows: -

e RED equates to a position of under-performance against target.
e AMBER equates to a mid-position where improvement may have been

Tudalen 144




made but performance has missed the target.
e GREEN equates to a position of positive performance against target.

1.06

Analysis of current levels of performance against period target shows the
following: -

e 29 (67%) had achieved a green RAG status

e 12 (28%) had achieved an amber RAG status

e 2 (5%) had achieved a red RAG status

1.07

The performance indicator (Pl) which show a red RAG status for current
performance against target, relevant to the Community & Enterprise Overview
& Scrutiny Committee is: -

Priority: Supportive Council

Average number of calendar days taken to deliver a DFG

A Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG) is a mandatory grant to help individuals
living with a disability with the cost of adapting their homes to enable them to
continue living at their residence with the maximum amount of independence.
This area of performance has required improvement for a number of years.

As a result a DFG review board has been established which meets monthly to
review progress towards implementing improvements to processes and
controls. One improvement area has been the launch of a new contractor
framework for the delivery of the DFG’s which has started to show a reduction
in the number of days taken to deliver DFGs.

In 2017/18 DFG works were suspended due to budgetary constraints with
outstanding works being completed this year. This has impacted on the
overall performance for the service as these cases were on hold for as long
as 4 months.

Overall performance is affected by these older cases from 2017/18, which is
bringing down the figures when compared with the current year cases that are
being delivered using the improved processes. This is evidenced as follows:
- 5 adaptations delivered in Q3 were 17/18 legacy cases and averaged
397 days
- 3 adaptations delivered from 18/19 claims and using the new approach
averaged 198 days

Once the backlog of legacy cases has been completed during the remainder
of this year, 2019/20 performance should show a marked improvement.

1.08

Monitoring our Risks
Analysis of the current risk levels for the strategic risks identified in the
Council Plan is as follows: -
e 5 (11%) are insignificant (green)
5 (11%) are minor (yellow)
27 (61%) are moderate (amber)
7 (16%) are major (red)

[}
[ ]
[}
e 0 (0%) are severe (black)

Tudalen 145




1.09

The major (red) risk identified for the Community & Enterprise Overview &
Scrutiny Committee is: -

Priority: Supportive Council

Risk: Debt levels will rise if tenants are unable to afford to pay their rent
or council tax.

Work has commenced on the identification of the impacts of Universal Credit
on Council Tenants and their rent accounts. There is a team that works with
tenants at the earliest opportunity on the basis that intervention at early
stages allows support (if appropriate) to be identified earlier giving a more
realistic chance of the rent account coming back under control and out of
arrears.

The Council now has "Trusted Partner" status with the Department for Work
and Pensions and this means that processes and flow of information and
payments is much more streamlined and automated. Notwithstanding this,
there will inevitably always be an element of cash flow arrears on accounts
due to the Universal Credit payments (whether direct to the council or directly
to the tenant) are made in arrears. During 2018/19 focus is on early
identification and intervention to prevent the problem from escalating. Council
Tax Collection remains under pressure.

2.00 | RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01 | There are no specific resource implications for this report.

3.00 | CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 | The Council Plan Priorities are monitored by the appropriate Overview and
Scrutiny Committees according to the priority area of interest.

3.02 | Chief Officers have contributed towards reporting of relevant information.

4.00 | RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 | Progress against the risks identified in the Council Plan is included in the
report at Appendix 1 and 2. Summary information for the risks assessed as
major (red) is covered in paragraphs 1.07 and 1.09 above.

5.00 | APPENDICES

5.01 | Appendix 1 — Council Plan 2018/19 — Year-end Progress Report — Supportive
Council.

5.02 | Appendix 2 — Council Plan 2018/19 — Year-end Progress Report — Ambitious

Council.

Tudalen 146




6.00

LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 | Council Plan 2017/18: http://www.flintshire.qov.uk/en/Resident/Council-
and-Democracy/Improvement-Plan.aspx
Contact Officer:  Ceri Shotton
Telephone: 01352 702305
E-mail: ceri.shotton@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00 | GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01 | Council Plan: the document which sets out the annual priorities of the
Council. It is a requirement of the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009
to set Improvement Objectives and publish a Council Plan.

7.02 | Risks: These are assessed using the improved approach to risk
management endorsed by Audit Committee in June 2015. The new approach,
includes the use of a new and more sophisticated risk assessment matrix
which provides greater opportunities to show changes over time.

7.03 Risk Likelihood and Impact Matrix

Catastrophic Y A
o
o Critical Y A
@
E_ Marginal
Negligible ¥ ¥ A A
Unlikely Low Significant | Very High Extl:T:I':ely
(5%) (30%) (50%) (65%) (80%)
Likelihood & Percentage of risk happening
The new approach to risk assessment was created in response to
recommendations in the Corporate Assessment report from the Wales Audit
Office and Internal Audit.
7.04 | CAMMS - An explanation of the report headings

Actions

Action — Each sub-priority have high level activities attached to them to help
achieve the outcomes of the sub-priority.

Lead Officer — The person responsible for updating the data on the action.
Status — This will either be ‘In progress’ if the action has a start and finish
date or ‘Ongoing’ if it is an action that is longer term than the reporting year.
Start date — When the action started (usually the start of the financial year).
End date — When the action is expected to be completed.

Tudalen 147



http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/Resident/Council-and-Democracy/Improvement-Plan.aspx
http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/Resident/Council-and-Democracy/Improvement-Plan.aspx
http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/Resident/Council-and-Democracy/Improvement-Plan.aspx
mailto:ceri.shotton@flintshire.gov.uk

% complete - The % that the action is complete at the time of the report. This
only applies to actions that are ‘in progress’. An action that is ‘ongoing’ will
not produce a % complete due to the longer-term nature of the action.
Progress RAG — Shows if the action at this point in time is making limited
progress (Red), satisfactory progress (Amber) or good progress (Green).
Outcome RAG — Shows the level of confidence in achieving the outcomes for
each action.

Measures (Key Performance Indicators - KPls)

Pre. Year Period Actual — The period actual at the same point in the previous
year. If the KPI is a new KPI for the year then this will show as ‘no data’.
Period Actual — The data for this quarter.

Period Target — The target for this quarter as set at the beginning of the year.
Perf. RAG — This measures performance for the period against the target. It
is automatically generated according to the data. Red = a position of under
performance against target, Amber = a mid-position where improvement may
have been made but performance has missed the target and Green = a
position of positive performance against the target.

Perf. Indicator Trend — Trend arrows give an impression of the direction the
performance is heading compared to the period of the previous year:

e A ‘downward arrow’ always indicates poorer performance regardless of
whether a KPI figure means that less is better (e.g. the amount of days
to deliver a grant or undertake a review) or if a KPI figure means that
more is better (e.g. number of new jobs in Flintshire).

e Similarly an ‘upward arrow’ always indicates improved performance.

YTD Actual — The data for the year so far including previous quarters.

YTD Target — The target for the year so far including the targets of previous
quarters.

Outcome RAG — The level of confidence of meeting the target by the end of
the year. Low — lower level of confidence in the achievement of the target
(Red), Medium — uncertain level of confidence in the achievement of the
target (Amber) and High - full confidence in the achievement of the target
(Green).

Risks

Risk Title — Gives a description of the risk.

Lead Officer — The person responsible for managing the risk.

Supporting Officer — The person responsible for updating the risk.

Initial Risk Rating — The level of the risk at the start of the financial year
(quarter 1). The risks are identified as follows; insignificant (green), minor
(yellow), moderate (amber), major (red) and severe (black).

Current Risk Rating — The level of the risk at this quarter.

Trend Arrow — This shows if the risk has increased (upward arrow),
decreased (downward arrow) or remained the same between the initial risk
rating and the current risk rating (stable arrow).

Risk Status — This will either show as ‘open’ or ‘closed’. If a risk is open then
it is still a relevant risk, if the risk is closed then it is no longer a relevant risk;
a new risk may be generated where a plan or strategy moves into a new
phase.

Tudalen 148




F\)J interplan®

(\., A CAMMS SOLUTION

Performance Progress Report —
Appendix 1 — Supportive Council

Flintshire County Council

6T usfepnL

Sir y Fflint
Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

Ay

Print Date: 29-Jan-2019

www.cammsgroup.com




1 Supportive Council

Action
ACTION LEAD OFFICER STATUS START DATE END DATE COMPLETE PROGRESS OUTCOME
% RAG RAG
1.1.1.1 Provide new social and affordable homes Melville Evans - Senior Manager In 01-Apr-2017 | 31-Mar-2019 70.00%
- Housing Programmes Progress GREEN GREEN

ACTION PROGRESS COMMENTS:

Work continues to deliver the Strategic Housing and Regeneration Programme. The programme has delivered 153 new Council and affordable homes at the end of Quarter 3. The next
phase of the programme has been approved and will deliver a further 149 new council and affordable homes across the county. Work continues to identify suitable land within the
county for further developments.

_‘_ast Updated: 23-Jan-2019

c
o
Q

ACTION LEAD OFFICER STATUS START DATE END DATE COMPLETE PROGRESS OUTCOME
% RAG RAG

75.00%

J1..1.1.2 Welsh Housing Quality Standard (WHQS)
BOnvestment plan targets achieved

In 31-Mar-2019

Progress

Sean O'Donnell - Contract
Surveyor

01-Apr-2017

nc

GREEN

ACTION PROGRESS COMMENTS:

All WHQS Contracts have progressed into Year 4 (2018/19) of the 6 year Capital Programme with a smooth transition into their new Capital Districts (areas of work). The Capital
Programme has now introduced new work streams which will gradually replace the Internal work streams (kitchens and bathrooms). This will comprise of roofing works, window &
door replacements along with wider community works including car parking and communal footpaths. These new work streams will have an increased impact on communities as they
begin to transform the aesthetics and environment by regenerating and revitalising areas. Currently all WHQS Contracts are on schedule to be completed before 31st March 2019 and
our current expenditure and delivery key performance indicators are also on target.

Last Updated: 23-Jan-2019

WWw.cammsgroup.com N



ACTION LEAD OFFICER STATUS START DATE END DATE COMPLETE PROGRESS OUTCOME
% RAG RAG

1.1.1.3 Address the increasing frequency of Melville Evans - Senior Manager In 12-Jul-2017 31-Mar-2019 75.00%
unauthorised Gypsy and Traveller encampments and - Housing Programmes Progress GREEN
improve the Council's own permanent site

ACTION PROGRESS COMMENTS:

The Flintshire Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Assessment (GTAA) 2018 update was commissioned by Flintshire County Council in the summer of 2018. The GTAA report will be
completed by March 2019. The purpose is to update the Gypsy and Traveller pitch requirements evidence base to inform the preparation of the Local Development Plan. As part of this,
works are underway to identify a suitable location for a transit site within the county to address the unauthorised Gypsy and Traveller encampments. Improvements to the existing
Council owned site have been identified and work undertaken to the utility blocks. Funding options are being investigated with Welsh Government to cover further improvement costs.

GREEN

Last Updated: 29-Jan-2019

ACTION LEAD OFFICER STATUS START DATE END DATE COMPLETE PROGRESS OUTCOME
1.1.2.1 Improve standards within the private rented Jenny Prendergast - Health and In 01-Apr-2017 | 31-Mar-2019 75.00%
Es‘ector Safety Team Leader Progress GREEN GREEN
R CTION PROGRESS COMMENTS:
Ve have proactively undertaken work to ensure that landlords register with Rent Smart Wales and have been working with Rent Smart Wales to tackle those who are resistant to
Dregistering .
I._\
Qlast Updated: 11-Jan-2019
ACTION LEAD OFFICER STATUS START DATE END DATE COMPLETE PROGRESS OUTCOME
% RAG RAG
1.1.2.2 Deliver the Council's housing growth needs Lesley Bassett - Housing In 01-Apr-2017 | 31-Mar-2019 75.00%
Strategy Manager Progress GREEN GREEN

ACTION PROGRESS COMMENTS:

The Welsh Government funding programme, Social Housing Grant (SHG), continues to provide funding for our Housing Association Partners to deliver 262 units. The outcome of the
programme will be the delivery of a mix of social rented properties to meet general housing needs, supported housing and intermediate purchase products. Work is being undertaken
to engage with owners of empty properties to bring 70 units back into use. Planning policy requirements are being negotiated on a site by site basis and continue to deliver affordable
homes and affordable ownership properties on market led residential developments.

Last Updated: 16-Jan-2019

WWw.cammsgroup.com N




ACTION LEAD OFFICER STATUS START DATE END DATE COMPLETE PROGRESS OUTCOME
% RAG RAG

1.1.2.3 Meeting the housing needs of vulnerable groups [Lesley Bassett - Housing In 01-Apr-2017 | 31-Mar-2019 75.00%
Strategy Manager Progress GREEN

GREEN

ACTION PROGRESS COMMENTS:
To date we have rehoused 35 people from vulnerable groups into appropriate housing. We have also implemented a strategic acquisition policy which enables us to acquire units
where they meet a specific need including larger families.

Last Updated: 29-Jan-2019

ACTION LEAD OFFICER STATUS START DATE END DATE COMPLETE PROGRESS OUTCOME

In 31-Mar-2019 75.00%

Progress

.2.1.1 Support Flintshire residents to better manage
eir financial commitments

Jen Griffiths - Benefits Manager 01-Apr-2017

ACTION PROGRESS COMMENTS:

Personal budgeting support is provided to Flintshire residents via the Welfare Reform response team. The team deal with referrals from the Council and from external agencies or
dyerganisations such as Citizens Advice and Job Centres. The team also provide advice and support relating to discretionary housing payments for people who are struggling to meet their
pental payments. Ongoing referrals to other agencies or organisations is sometimes necessary depending on the specialist advice or support the customer may require.

Last Updated: 23-Jan-2019

ACTION LEAD OFFICER STATUS START DATE END DATE COMPLETE PROGRESS OUTCOME
% RAG RAG

In 31-Mar-2019

Progress

1.2.1.2 Working collaboratively to minimise Universal
Credit (UC) Risks

Jen Griffiths - Benefits Manager 01-Apr-2017

ACTION PROGRESS COMMENTS:
Cross organisation and cross sector meeting are held regularly to review progress with actions, raise issues and identify solutions. Where issues are based around the national model,
there is a process in place to escalate, track progress and disseminate solutions or work arounds as and when received.

Last Updated: 29-Jan-2019

WWw.cammsgroup.com N



ACTION LEAD OFFICER STATUS START DATE END DATE COMPLETE PROGRESS OUTCOME

% RAG RAG
1.2.1.3 .Develop skills programmes and delivery Niall Waller - Service Manager - In 01-Apr-2017 | 31-Mar-2019 75.00% @)
mechanisms for North Wales Growth Deal Enterprise and Regeneration Progress GREEN GREEN

ACTION PROGRESS COMMENTS:

The Growth Vision for North Wales emphasises the importance of skills to meet the needs of the economy and facilitate growth. The Regional Skills Partnership (RSP) is tasked with
identifying skills needs and steering learning provision. The RSP has now also been tasked with overseeing the employability work streams of the Growth Vision - the Information and
Advice Gateway and the Employability Pathway. These are currently under development. The Economic Ambition Board has received confirmation of funding from UK and Welsh
Governments in the region of £240m which will include skills capital projects.

Last Updated: 10-Jan-2019

« ACTION LEAD OFFICER STATUS START DATE END DATE COMPLETE PROGRESS OUTCOME
. % RAG RAG
£D1.2.1.4 Develop and deliver programmes to improve Niall Waller - Service Manager - In 01-Apr-2017 | 31-Mar-2019

'jdomestic energy efficiency to reduce Co2 emissions and |Enterprise and Regeneration Progress

I"n?uel poverty

GACTION PROGRESS COMMENTS:

The Council is delivering the Warm Homes Fund programme in partnership with Warm Wales and Care and Repair. The programme will deliver energy efficient heating system to a
minimum of 300 households and energy advice to 3,000 properties. In addition, the Council is delivering a gradual programme of replacing older boilers in its own stock with more
energy efficient models. The Council is currently developing the next phase of gas infill project with Wales and West Utilities to extend the gas main network to properties in
Ffynnongroyw. If approved this will enable householders to access more cost-efficient heating systems. The Council is also working closely with providers for the ECO (Energy Company
Obligation), Nest and Arbed funding programmes. This will maximise benefit to Flintshire from these programmes and to ensure that the programmes, although managed
independently, are delivered coherently in Flintshire and that support is co-ordinated for the benefit of each individual householder.

Last Updated: 23-Jan-2019

WWW.cammsgroup.com ‘ - .



Performance Indicators

Pre. Year Period Period Perf.
KPI Title Period Perf. RAG Indicator YTD Actual YTD Target Outcome RAG
Actual Target
Actual Trend

1P1.1.1.4M04 Increasing the total number No Data 127 148

N/A 127 148
of properties managed by NEW Homes

GREEN

Lead Officer: Melville Evans - Senior Manager - Housing Programmes

Reporting Officer: Denise Naylor - Housing Programmes Support Manager

Progress Comment: Work has began at the development sites at Llys Dewi, Penyffordd and Maes Gwern, Mold . The developments at Nant y Gro, Gronant and Dobshill will begin in
2019. Completion of the developments will add a further 39 new homes to the NEW Homes portfolio. NEW Homes has also acquired 3 new properties at St Mary's Park, Northop Hall.

Last Updated: 29-Jan-2019

Pre. Year Perf.

KPI Title Period Period Period Perf. RAG Indicator YTD Actual YTD Target Outcome RAG

Actual

3P1.2.1.1M01 The percentage of landlords
'and letting agents compliant with the Rent
J¥mart Code of Practice

Lead Officer: Lynne Fensome - Management and Support Manager
Reporting Officer: Jenny Prendergast - Health and Safety Team Leader
Progress Comment: Ongoing proactive and reactive work with landlords is being taken to ensure registration and compliance with Rent Smart Wales .

Last Updated: 29-Jan-2019

Pre. Year Period Period Perf.

KPI Title Period Perf. RAG Indicator YTD Actual YTD Target Outcome RAG
Actual Actual Target

1P1.2.1.2M02 The percentage of tenants 100 100 100
protected from unsuitable living conditions

- 100 100

Lead Officer: Andrew Farrow - Chief Officer - Planning, Environment and Economy
Reporting Officer: Jenny Prendergast - Health and Safety Team Leader
Progress Comment: All complaints about substandard housing conditions were investigated. 155 service requests dealt with.

Last Updated: 11-Jan-2019

WWw.cammsgroup.com H B




Pre. Year Period Period Perf.
KPI Title Period Perf. RAG Indicator YTD Actual YTD Target Outcome RAG
Actual Target
Actual Trend

IP1.2.1.2M02 The percentage of tenants 100 100 100 - 100 100
protected from unsuitable living conditions

GREEN

Lead Officer: Andrew Farrow - Chief Officer - Planning, Environment and Economy
Reporting Officer: Jenny Prendergast - Health and Safety Team Leader
Progress Comment: All complaints about substandard housing conditions were investigated. 155 service requests dealt with.

Last Updated: 11-Jan-2019

Pre. Year Period Period Perf.

KPI Title Period Actual Perf. RAG Indicator YTD Actual YTD Target Outcome RAG

1P1.2.2.3M03 Number of affordable
Jlousing on all applicable applications for
FLsidential development

N/A

ooeT

Lead Officer: Lynne Fensome - Management and Support Manager

Reporting Officer: Daniel McVey - Planning Officer

Progress Comment: Planning officers continue to assess the need for an affordable housing element on all new housing development applications and apply the relevant criteria from
the Councils affordable housing policy. By applying the criteria we can calculate the affordable housing contribution required from the developer.

Last Updated: 23-Jan-2019

WWw.cammsgroup.com H B



Pre. Year Period Period Perf.
KPI Title Period Perf. RAG Indicator YTD Actual YTD Target Outcome RAG

Actual Actual Target Trend

IP1.2.3.1M01 (PAM/015) Average number

of calendar days taken to deliver a DFG AMBER

Lead Officer: Jen Griffiths - Benefits Manager

Reporting Officer: Joseph Muxlow - Regeneration Programme Lead

Progress Comment: A Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG) is a mandatory grant to help individuals living with a disability with the cost of adapting their homes to enable them to continue
living at their residence with the maximum amount of independence. This area of performance has required improvement for a number of years.

As a result a DFG review board has been established which meets monthly to review progress towards implementing improvements to processes and controls. One improvement area
has been the launch of a new contractor framework for the delivery of the DFG’s which has started to show a reduction in the number of days taken to deliver DFGs.

In 2017/18 DFG works were suspended due to budgetary constraints with outstanding works being completed this year. This has impacted on the overall performance for the service
as these cases were on hold for as long as 4 months.

Overall performance is affected by these older cases from 2017/18, which is bringing down the figures when compared with the current year cases that are being delivered using the
improved processes. This is evidenced as follows:

—| - 5 adaptations delivered in Q3 were 17/18 legacy cases and averaged 397 days

E: - 3 adaptations delivered from 18/19 claims and using the new approach averaged 198 days

s&nce the backlog of legacy cases has been completed during the remainder of this year, 2019/20 performance should show a marked improvement.

q

|.

D
D

Last Updated: 29-Jan-2019

a1
@)

Pre. Year Perf.

KPI Title Period Period Period Perf. RAG Indicator YTD Actual YTD Target Outcome RAG

Actual ACEEL Target Trend

‘ 22.15 20

1P1.3.1.1M01 Number of days to process 15.3 20.48 20
new housing benefit claims

Lead Officer: Jen Griffiths - Benefits Manager
Reporting Officer: Suzanne Jones - Team Manager - Benefits and Council Tax Reduction Assessment
Progress Comment: There has been an issue with attendance and vacancies within the service and although there has been some improvement since quarter two, the target of 20

days has not been reached. During the end of the quarter the attendance has improved and training for new employees in on going so an improvement in quarter four into target area
is expected

Last Updated: 29-Jan-2019

WWw.cammsgroup.com N



Pre. Year Period Period Perf.
KPI Title Period Perf. RAG Indicator YTD Actual YTD Target Outcome RAG

Actual Actual Target Trend

IP1.3.1.2M02 Number of days to process
change of circumstances for housing
benefit

Lead Officer: Jen Griffiths - Benefits Manager

Reporting Officer: Suzanne Jones - Team Manager - Benefits and Council Tax Reduction Assessment
Progress Comment: Processing times have improved since quarter two, however the target of 8 days has not been achieved. Towards the end of this quarter the attendance within the

team has improved and training for new employees is on going.

Last Updated: 28-Jan-2019

Pre. Year Period Period T
KPI Title Period Perf. RAG Indicator YTD Actual YTD Target Outcome RAG

Actual Target Trend

' 1716798.88 1125000

Actual

4P1.3.1.3M03 The amount of additional 352257.53 685486.82 375000
ayrcome paid to Flintshire residents as a

mesult of the work undertaken by the

Mouncil (£)

E ad Officer: Neal Cockerton - Chief Officer - Housing and Assets

Reporting Officer: Jen Griffiths - Benefits Manager
Progress Comment: Income gains for Flintshire residents are via a combined effort of Supporting People teams; Citizens Advice Flintshire and Macmillan funded posts in Wrexham

County Borough Council.

Last Updated: 15-Jan-2019

WWw.cammsgroup.com H B



Pre. Year Period Period Perf.
KPI Title Period Perf. RAG Indicator YTD Actual YTD Target Outcome RAG

Actual Actual Target Trend

IP1.3.2.1M01 (PAM/012) Percentage of
households successfully prevented from
becoming homeless

AMBER

Lead Officer: Neal Cockerton - Chief Officer - Housing and Assets

Reporting Officer: Jenni Griffith - Flintshire Connects Manager

Progress Comment: The Housing Solutions Service achieved 70.97% successful outcomes this quarter. The year to date percentage is 78.47%.

Whilst this is below the target set at 89% it is within the variance set. There continue to be significant challenges for homeless prevention. Welfare reform changes and the availability
of suitable properties within the private rented sector has limited the options available for customers. The service is continuing to develop new and innovative working practices to
assist with early intervention and prevention of homelessness.

Last Updated: 29-Jan-2019

1

c
o
<)

Pre. Year Period Period Perf.

KPI Title Period Perf. RAG Indicator YTD Actual YTD Target Outcome RAG

g Actual

1P1.3.2.2M02 The number of people on 111 105 157
Universal Credit (UC) that have received
personal budgeting support

Lead Officer: Jen Griffiths - Benefits Manager
Reporting Officer: Dawn Barnes - Training Officer
Progress Comment: There has been a reduction in people making a new claim for Universal Credit which has led to a reduction in referrals for budgeting support.

Last Updated: 03-Jan-2019

WWw.cammsgroup.com H B



Pre. Year Period Period Perf.
KPI Title Period Perf. RAG Indicator YTD Actual YTD Target Outcome RAG
Actual Target
Actual Trend

1P1.3.2.3M03 The number of people on 701 122 95 ‘ 539 283
Universal Credit (UC) that have received
digital support

Lead Officer: Jen Griffiths - Benefits Manager
Reporting Officer: Dawn Barnes - Training Officer
Progress Comment: There is a continued high demand for access to Assisted Digital Support for Universal Credit customers.

Last Updated: 19-Dec-2018

Pre. Year Period Period Perf.

KPI Title Period Perf. RAG Indicator YTD Actual YTD Target Outcome RAG
Actual Target
Actual Trend

pP1.3.3.1M01 Number of people 179 96 125 ‘ 350 375 ee
2ompleting programmes commissioned by GREEN

Ithe Council which deliver job and training
Qitcomes

Lead Officer: Andrew Farrow - Chief Officer - Planning, Environment and Economy

Reporting Officer: Sharon Jones - Communities For work

Progress Comment: 96 Clients between Communities For Work (CFW) & Communities For Work Plus (CFW+) have registered for the programme,. All have support from a mentor.
End November / December is notoriously a quiet month. We have fewer clients through Job clubs / Drop ins especially December. Also between 20th December and 7th January there
are no job clubs or drop in sessions, so the number of clients enrolling onto the programme and completing a course would be limited.

Last Updated: 29-Jan-2019

WWw.cammsgroup.com H B



Pre. Year Period Period Perf.
KPI Title Period Perf. RAG Indicator YTD Actual YTD Target Outcome RAG

Actual Actual Target Trend

IP1.3.4.1M01 The number of people
receiving advice and support to enable
reductions in tariffs

Lead Officer: Andrew Farrow - Chief Officer - Planning, Environment and Economy
Reporting Officer: Shelley Webber - Energy Project Coordinator
Progress Comment: Provided advice for Warm Homes Fund and Healthy Homes Healthy People (HHHP) clients, started Arbed engagement in Penyffordd

Last Updated: 29-Jan-2019

Pre. Year Perf.

KPI Title Period GG GG Perf. RAG Indicator YTD Actual YTD Target Outcome RAG
Actual Actual Target

R R R R R R B ———————————

{r1.3.4.2M02 The number of private sector 25 107 25 ' 229 75

%h mes receiving efficiency measures
1>

TBead Officer: Andrew Farrow - Chief Officer - Planning, Environment and Economy

pBeporting Officer: Shelley Webber - Energy Project Coordinator

Egrogress Comment: A combination of Warm Homes Fund and Affordable Warmth installs including boilers plus a focus on the supply of lighting upgrades and monitors
Last Updated: 29-Jan-2019

Pre. Year Period Period Perf.
KPI Title Period Perf. RAG Indicator YTD Actual YTD Target Outcome RAG

Actual Actual Target Trend

IP1.3.4.3MO03 The number of Council homes 15 22 25 Jame ' 119 75
receiving energy efficiency measures AMBER

Lead Officer: Andrew Farrow - Chief Officer - Planning, Environment and Ecohomy
Reporting Officer: Shelley Webber - Energy Project Coordinator
Progress Comment: During quarter 3 19 Boilers/Air Source Heat Pump installs for council stock and 3 Loft insulation were carried out.

Last Updated: 29-Jan-2019

WWw.cammsgroup.com H B



RISKS

Strategic Risk

INITIAL RISK CURRENT RISK TREND RISK
LEAD OFFICER SUPPORTING OFFICERS RATING RATING ARROW STATUS
Homelessness will remain a growing area of demand | Jenni Griffith - Flintshire [ Lesley Bassett - Housing Open
due to the current economic climate Connects Manager Strategy Manager G R <=

Potential Effect: Homelessness remains an area of risk. The lack of suitable, settled accommodation for those on welfare benefits has caused delays in being able to achieve positive
outcomes for customers.

Management Controls: The Council has been awarded in year funding to assist with additional measures to develop Landlord incentives within the private rented sector. We have also
been awarded funding to develop a night shelter during the winter months.

Progress Comment: Homelessness remains a risk as a result of a number of factors. The introduction of welfare reforms and Universal Credit has created additional barriers to being
able to successfully discharge duties to customers. The number of people presenting to the authority for help has increased during each quarter. Additional funding has been granted
to develop landlord incentives within the private rented sector and also to consider alternatives to rough sleeping.

Last Updated: 18-Jan-2019

—
-
S
()

TN

Dhhe supply of affordable housing will continue to be Melville Evans - Senior Denise Naylor - Housing Open
Thsufficient to meet community needs Manager - Housing Programmes Support Amber
Programmes Manager

INITIAL RISK CURRENT RISK TREND RISK

LEAD OFFICER SUPPORTING OFFICERS RATING RATING ARROW STATUS

Potential Effect: i) Increase in homelessness

ii) Increased pressure on the Housing Options Team

iii) Increase in people sleeping rough

Management Controls: A Housing Strategy Manager is in post to monitor and manage Section 106 and Social Housing Grant programmes.

Progress Comment: This will always be a risk due to changes in housing demand and a lack of supply both in terms of the quantity and type of affordable homes provided. Over the
past year the Welfare Reform policies have also impacted on the type of affordable housing required due to benefit restrictions. The Council aims to mitigate the risk through:

1. Informing the type and size of all of the new builds (Council and RSLs)

2. Informing the type, tenure and size of affordable housing provision through market led schemes.

Last Updated: 18-Jan-2019

WWw.cammsgroup.com N



INITIAL RISK CURRENT RISK TREND RISK

LEAD OFFICER SUPPORTING OFFICERS RATING RATING ARROW STATUS
Department for Works and Pension’s Welfare Reform | Jenni Griffith - Flintshire | Denise Naylor - Housing Open
Programme, including Universal Credit full service Connects Manager Programmes Support e R <=
implementation which would place increasing Manager, Suzanne Mazzone
demand on the Council for affordable and social - Commissioning Officer
housing

Potential Effect: Increased homelessness
Management Controls: Developing innovative housing schemes that will aim to provide housing at a cost that under 35's can meet. The Common Housing Register recognises

affordability as a housing need and gives priority to those who are suffering financial hardship in terms of housing costs due to the impacts of welfare reforms

Progress Comment: Applicants who are affected by bedroom tax are given urgent priority for rehousing to more affordable accommodation.

The proposed property for the shared housing pilot received full planning permission and work has been undertaken to establish demand. Due to Government changes and the
withdrawal of plans to introduce a shared room rate for under 35s the demand in social housing for shared accommodation has lessened. Applicants contacted expressed a preference
for self contained properties and we were unable to establish demand for the shared housing pilot. This will of course have an effect on the demand for affordable one bedroom

properties.
D

)-'?:ast Updated: 23-Jan-2019

aYhialaYaW]

Tu

2

INITIAL RISK CURRENT RISK TREND RISK
LEAD OFFICER SUPPORTING OFFICERS RATING RATING ARROW STATUS

Reduction of land supply for council housing Melville Evans - Senior Denise Naylor - Housing Closed
construction Manager - Housing Programmes Support s
Programmes Manager

Potential Effect: i) Reduction in number of units delivered
Management Controls: On-going work to maximise the use of Council land and other publically owned land. Privately owned sites are reviewed for their potential use and purchase.

Progress Comment: Potential land for development of housing through the Strategic Housing and Regeneration Programme (SHARP) continues to be identified and considered to
support the target of 500 new social and affordable houses by 2021.

Last Updated: 23-Oct-2018

WWw.cammsgroup.com N



LEAD OFFICER SUPPORTING OFFICERS

INITIAL RISK CURRENT RISK TREND RISK

RATING RATING ARROW STATUS
Capital borrowing limits for council housing Melville Evans - Senior Denise Naylor - Housing Open
Manager - Housing Programmes Support K Amber <=
Programmes Manager

Potential Effect: A reduction in the construction and delivery of Council houses

Management Controls: i) submit application to Welsh Government for increase in borrowing cap relating to specific schemes.

ii) Lobby WG to remove borrowing limits following removal in England

iii) seek increase in borrowing cap with the UK Government through the Growth Deal

Progress Comment: WG announced in November 2018 they would be discontinuing the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Borrowing Cap. The Council is currently reviewing how this
will impact upon its ability to build new Council properties.

Last Updated: 29-Jan-2019

INITIAL RISK CURRENT RISK TREND RISK

LEAD OFFICER  SUPPORTING OFFICERS RATING RATING ARROW STATUS

Niall Waller - Service
Manager - Enterprise
and Regeneration

:ustomer expectations for the timeliness of
padaptations undertaken through Disabled Facilities
@rants (DFGs) may not be met due to competing

d emands on resources

Potential Effect: There will be a reputational risk to the Council if adaptations fail to meet the expectations of customers. This in increased because of the national ranking of
performance by Welsh Government.

Management Controls: i) Monitoring and management of adaptation cases.

ii) Ongoing process review.

iii) Continually seek ways to further increase cost-efficiency

iv) Increase in budget allocation to meet demand

Progress Comment: The performance on DFG timescales has been an area of challenge over time and a management board has been established to improve and monitor progress. The
budget for the programme is currently on track. Improvements in timeliness have been noted with the implementation of a new process.

Last Updated: 29-Jan-2019

WWw.cammsgroup.com N



LEAD OFFICER SUPPORTING OFFICERS

INITIAL RISK CURRENT RISK TREND RISK

RATING RATING ARROW STATUS
Availability of sufficient funding to resource key Niall Waller - Service Melville Evans - Senior Open
priorities Manager - Enterprise Manager - Housing K Ambe <=
and Regeneration Programmes

Potential Effect: Customers will wait longer to receive adaptation work in their homes

Management Controls: Monthly monitoring of adaptations budgets and consideration of the business case for an increased budget allocation.

Progress Comment: All budgets are monitored monthly to ensure there is sufficient availability for funding key priorities. However, as demography and expectations change with
reduced resources the Council is continually reviewing opportunities to meet requirements.

Last Updated: 10-Jan-2019

—

c

{

d RISK INITIAL RISK CURRENT RISK TREND RISK
LEAD E E

TITLE AD OFFICER SUFFORTING OFFICERS RATING RATING ARROW STATUS
;gniversal Credit Full Service roll out - negative impact | Jen Griffiths - Benefits Dawn Barnes - Training
@pon Council services Manager Officer

N

Potential Effect: Potential increased in rent arrears and decrease of Council Tax collection.

Potential increased risk of homelessness and need for accommodation.

Increased demand in existing support services

Management Controls: Welfare Reform is undoubtedly impacting services. Rent Arrears have increased and there is work on-going to identify the reason for this. Focus is now more on
early identification and intervention and we have increased communication across the teams and portfolios to support this work.

Council Tax Collection is under pressure and we are currently reviewing the claims process for Council Tax Reduction to make the process easier and quicker. Although there is no
evidence of links to increased presentations for homelessness, this remains a risk and we will continue to provide early intervention to prevent this and monitor the situation closely.
Progress Comment: Work is now well underway to identify and mitigate the impacts of Universal Credit on Council Tenants and their rent accounts. Work is concentrated around early
intervention which enables support to be provided to those who need it, but a harder line to be taken with those who can pay but choose not to. This provides a more realistic chance
of the rent account coming back under control and out of arrears.

There will inevitably always be an element of cash flow arrears on accounts due to the Universal Credit payments (whether direct to the council or directly to the tenant) are made in
arrears.

During 2018/19 focus is on early identification and intervention to prevent the problem from escalating. Council Tax Collection remains under pressure.

Last Updated: 23-Jan-2019

WWw.cammsgroup.com N



RATING RATING ARROW STATUS
Open

LEAD OFFICER SUPPORTING OFFICERS

INITIAL RISK CURRENT RISK TREND RISK

Demand for advice and support services will not be Jen Griffiths - Benefits
met Manager K Amber <=

Potential Effect: The impact of Welfare Reform on Flintshire households increasing the demand for advice and support to levels beyond what resource can handle in a timely manner.
Management Controls: The Flintshire Advice and Support Gateways are ensuring residents in need of help are referred to an appropriate service provider and maximising effective use
of resources as far as possible.

Progress Comment: The development of the Welfare Response Team has assisted with the implementation of Universal Credit. Referrals to wider support services still remain

high with a significant number of residents presenting with underlying debt issues. Managers across Customer Services, Neighbourhood Housing and Revenues and Benefits are
continuing to work together to develop early intervention strategies.

Last Updated: 18-Jan-2019

INITIAL RISK CURRENT RISK TREND RISK
LEAD OFFICER  SUPPORTING OFFICERS RATING RATING ARROW STATUS

Mebt levels will rise if tenants are unable to afford to Jen Griffiths - Benefits Sheila Martin - Income Open

g y their rent or council tax Manager Team Leader el

(

TPotential Effect: With the introduction of universal credit and reduction in benefits being paid it is anticipated that tenants will struggle to maintain their payments increasing the level
|<"d‘f debts owed to the Council for Rent and Council Tax.

(Ylanagement Controls: Review of procedures is being carried out to try and mitigate the impact, however, a full estimate of impact cannot yet be confirmed.

Progress Comment: Work has commenced on the identification of the impacts of Universal Credit on Council Tenants and their rent accounts. There is a team that works with tenants

at the earliest opportunity on the basis that intervention at early stages allows support (if appropriate) to be identified earlier giving a more realistic chance of the rent account coming
back under control and out of arrears.

The Council now has "Trusted Partner" status with the Department for Work and Pensions which means that processes and flow of information and payments is more streamlined and

automated. Notwithstanding this, there will inevitably always be an element of cash flow arrears on accounts due to Universal Credit payments (whether direct to the council or directly
to the tenant) being made in arrears.

During 2018/19 focus has been on early identification and intervention to prevent the problem from escalating. Council Tax Collection remains under pressure.

Last Updated: 29-Jan-2019

WWw.cammsgroup.com N



LEAD OFFICER SUPPORTING OFFICERS

INITIAL RISK CURRENT RISK TREND RISK
RATING RATING ARROW STATUS

The local economy will suffer if residents have less Jen Griffiths - Benefits Jenni Griffith - Flintshire Open
income to spend Manager Connects Manager ik Amber -

Potential Effect: Local economy will suffer as people can only just afford to spend on essential items
Management Controls: The council is continuing to support residents to access advice and support to enable them to better manage their financial situation.
Progress Comment: Welfare Rights and Supporting People teams worked with residents during the year to explore areas of income maximisation for residents of the County.

Last Updated: 28-Jan-2019

99T usfepnlL

WWW.cammsgroup.com - .



F\)J interplan®

(\., A CAMMS SOLUTION

Performance Progress Report —
Appendix 2 — Ambitious Council

Flintshire County Council

/9T us|fepnL

Sir y Fflint
Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

Ay

Print Date: 29-Jan-2019

www.cammsgroup.com




2 Ambitious Council

Actions

ACTION LEAD OFFICER STATUS START DATE END DATE COMPLETE PROGRESS OUTCOME
% RAG RAG

2.1.1.1 The Regional Economic Growth Deal will be Niall Waller - Service Manager - In 01-Apr-2017 | 31-Mar-2019 75.00%

developed to final approval stages with UK and Welsh |Enterprise and Regeneration Progress GREEN GREEN

Government this year, including agreement of funding
allocations and formal governance arrangements

ACTION PROGRESS COMMENTS:
The detailed proposition document has been developed. The UK and Welsh Governments have announced funding support for the Growth Deal and further work is underway to

identify which areas of work will be included.

H
CClast Updated: 10-Jan-2019
(&
D
D
ACTION LEAD OFFICER STATUS START DATE END DATE COMPLETE PROGRESS OUTCOME
% RAG RAG
2.1.1.2 Guide the development of the Deeside Niall Waller - Service Manager - In 01-Apr-2017 | 31-Mar-2019 75.00%
Enterprise Zone (DEZ) and Northern Gateway mixed use |Enterprise and Regeneration Progress GREEN GREEN

development site. Propose that developments
maximise economic and social value for the County and
that they deliver the commitments made in the
Regional Economic Growth Deal

ACTION PROGRESS COMMENTS:
The Council continues to work closely with the DEZ Board, Welsh Government, the owners of the Northern Gateway development site and potential investors to support and secure

investment proposals.

Last Updated: 10-Jan-2019

WWw.cammsgroup.com N



ACTION LEAD OFFICER STATUS START DATE END DATE COMPLETE PROGRESS OUTCOME
% RAG RAG

2.1.1.3 Develop a long term strategic approach to Lisa McLellan - Asset Manager In 01-Apr-2017 | 31-Mar-2019 30.00%
Council's economic estate/land Progress

ACTION PROGRESS COMMENTS:

The initial report on the Councils Industrial Estate has now been received. Detailed consideration needs to be given to the development of strategies which either release sites for the
generation of capital receipts, invest to generate increased income, and review terms on renewal or the exercising of break clauses. It is of course important to note that these assets

generate a significant revenue income stream for the Council so due care needs to be exercised in any approach. A more detailed approach to each estate is required and will begin to
be undertaken in 2019. From this there will be series of recommendations which will seek to maximise income and minimise liability.

Last Updated: 15-Jan-2019

ACTION LEAD OFFICER STATUS START DATE END DATE COMPLETE PROGRESS OUTCOME

In 31-Mar-2019

Progress

Niall Waller - Service Manager -
Enterprise and Regeneration

[2.1.1.5 Develop a more strategic approach to
generating and supporting town centres in
artnership with Town Councils

PACTION PROGRESS COMMENTS:
-DA new strategic approach to town centres has been developed and will be presented to Cabinet and Scrutiny in March 2019.

01-Apr-2017

6"\'!' LAY YNNIN

Last Updated: 10-Jan-2019

ACTION LEAD OFFICER STATUS START DATE END DATE COMPLETE PROGRESS OUTCOME

% RAG RAG

In 31-Mar-2019

Progress

2.1.1.6 Targeted regeneration investment programme
(TRIP) - developing Flintshire's role and it's local
programme

ACTION PROGRESS COMMENTS:

The Welsh Government Targeted Regeneration Investment programme is a capital programme to invest in regeneration projects. A North Wales Regeneration Plan has been developed
to steer investment and has identified 4 priority settlements for the first tranche of activity based on their levels of deprivation - Rhyl, Colwyn Bay, Wrexham and Bangor. Another 8
towns will also be able to benefit in the early stages of the programme and these include Holywell and Shotton. Although resources for the programme are limited development work is
underway on potential projects for inclusion.

Niall Waller - Service Manager -
Enterprise and Regeneration

01-Apr-2017

Last Updated: 29-Jan-2019

WWw.cammsgroup.com N




ACTION LEAD OFFICER STATUS START DATE END DATE COMPLETE PROGRESS OUTCOME
% RAG RAG

2.1.1.7 Propose that the development of regional and  |Niall Waller - Service Manager - In 01-Apr-2018 | 31-Mar-2019
local transport strategy and initiatives maximise the Enterprise and Regeneration Progress

potential for economic benefits and improves access to

employment and tourism destinations

ACTION PROGRESS COMMENTS:
All current transport proposals under development form part of the wider North Wales Growth Vision which seeks to promote economic growth across the region. In the Flintshire
context transport proposals focus on enabling residents to access employment opportunities to spread the benefits of economic growth.

Last Updated: 10-Jan-2019

Eﬁerformance Indicators
Q

Q
avo KPIs available for this quater

0T U

WWW.cammsgroup.com I‘. .



RISKS

Strategic Risk

INITIAL RISK CURRENT RISK TREND RISK
LEAD OFFICER PPORTIN FFICER
OFFIC SUFFO G OFFICERS RATING RATING ARROW STATUS
Infrastructure investment does not keep pace with Andrew Farrow - Chief Niall Waller - Service Open
needs and business is lost to the economy Officer - Planning, Manager - Enterprise and K Amber <=
Environment and Regeneration
Economy

Potential Effect: Infrastructure is essential to facilitating economic growth in Flintshire. If infrastructure is not improved then investment opportunities will be jeopardised and new
jobs will not be created. Overloaded infrastructure will also increase the likelihood of business investment being lost to better serviced areas.

Management Controls: i) The Council will play a leading role in regional structures promoting economic growth.

ii) The Council will set out a clear plan for local infrastructure to meet regional and local needs.

Progress Comment: The North Wales Growth Deal will include a package of strategic infrastructure investment projects. At the local level the Deeside Plan sets out a strategy for
transport investment to maximise the benefit of economic growth. Welsh Government has already announced major investment in strategic road infrastructure and in public transport
'I!) help deliver this strategy.

D
gast Updated: 10-Jan-2019
D

Nnn

>
=

INITIAL RISK CURRENT RISK TREND RISK
RATING RATING ARROW STATUS

LEAD OFFICER  SUPPORTING OFFICERS

Andrew Farrow - Chief Niall Waller - Service
Officer - Planning, Manager - Enterprise and
Environment and Regeneration

Economy

Support for businesses in Flintshire doesn’t meet their
needs and fails to encourage investment

Potential Effect: Businesses feed back that they highly value the service provided by the Council to help them to navigate wider support and overcome barriers to growth. Business
networking activity delivered by the Council also assist businesses to work and trade together. Reduction of this support may make the County less successful as a location for business.
Management Controls: i) The Council will continue to engage businesses and help them to access support.

ii) The Council will provide opportunities for businesses to network and support one another.

Progress Comment: The business development service in Flintshire remains responsive to business needs. The Council works closely alongside Welsh Government and other agencies
to provide a co-ordinated service.

Last Updated: 10-Jan-2019

WWw.cammsgroup.com N




LEAD OFFICER SUPPORTING OFFICERS INITIAL RISK  CURRENT RISK TREND RISK

RATING RATING ARROW STATUS
The stability of local and sub-regional economies Andrew Farrow - Chief Niall Waller - Service Open
Officer - Planning, Manager - Enterprise and A i =
Environment and Regeneration
Economy

Potential Effect: Instability in the local and regional economies would lead to reduced business investment and significant job losses.

Management Controls: Maintain an intelligence base on potential risks and mitigation measures.

Progress Comment: The Council continues to monitor changes and trends in the UK and regional economies that may have an impact on Flintshire's economy. The main area of
uncertainty, Brexit, remains difficult to predict and quantify whilst the negotiated settlement with the European Union remains unknown.

Last Updated: 10-Jan-2019

INITIAL RISK CURRENT RISK TREND RISK
LEAD E E
AD OFFICER SUPPORTING OFFICERS RATING RATING ARROW STATUS
: he region having a sufficient voice at Welsh Andrew Farrow - Chief Niall Waller - Service Open
I__(;:overnment and UK Government levels to protect its Officer - Planning, Manager - Enterprise and K Tl ‘
~ijterests Environment and Regeneration
) Economy

Potential Effect: Decisions are taken on national and regional economic issues, infrastructure investment or other programmes which do not meet the needs of the Flintshire economy.
Management Controls: Play a major role in the North Wales Economic Ambition Board, Mersey Dee Alliance and the Rail Task Force.

Progress Comment: The Council has a lead role in developing the role and functions of the North Wales Economic Ambition Board and is closely involved in the work of
the Mersey Dee Alliance. The Council also represents the region on the Rail Task Force and supports the All Party Parliamentary Group on transport. The Council is
closely involved in the development of the outline projects for the regional Growth Deal and both the Leader of the Council and Chief Executive play a leading role in

the development of the new Joint Committee for North Wales. Negotiations with UK and Welsh Governments are progressing to plan.

Last Updated: 29-Jan-2019

WWw.cammsgroup.com N



Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 6

Sir y Fflint
"E!Ew!o%h.ire

COMMUNITY & ENTERPRISE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Date of Meeting Wednesday, 13" March 2019
Report Subject Forward Work Programme
Cabinet Member N/A
Report Author Community & Enterprise Overview & Scrutiny Facilitator
Type of Report Operational

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Overview & Scrutiny presents a unique opportunity for Members to determine the
Forward Work programme of the Committee of which they are Members. By
reviewing and prioritising the Forward Work Programme Members are able to
ensure it is Member-led and includes the right issues. A copy of the Forward Work
Programme is attached at Appendix 1 for Members’ consideration which has been
updated following the last meeting.

The Committee is asked to consider, and amend where necessary, the Forward
Work Programme for the Community & Enterprise Overview & Scrutiny
Committee.

RECOMMENDATION

1 That the Committee considers the draft Forward Work Programme and
approve/amend as necessary.

2 That the Facilitator, in consultation with the Chair of the Committee be
authorised to vary the Forward Work Programme between meetings, as
the need arises.

Tudalen 173



REPORT DETAILS

1.00 | EXPLAINING THE FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

1.01 Items feed into a Committee’s Forward Work Programme from a number
of sources. Members can suggest topics for review by Overview &
Scrutiny Committees, members of the public can suggest topics, items can
be referred by the Cabinet for consultation purposes, or by County Council
or Chief Officers. Other possible items are identified from the Cabinet
Work Programme and the Improvement Plan.

1.02 | In identifying topics for future consideration, it is useful for a ‘test of
significance’ to be applied. This can be achieved by asking a range of
questions as follows:

1. Will the review contribute to the Council’s priorities and/or objectives?
2. Is it an area of major change or risk?

3. Are there issues of concern in performance?

4. Is there new Government guidance of legislation?

5. lIs it prompted by the work carried out by Regulators/Internal Audit?

2.00 | RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01 None as a result of this report.

3.00 | CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 | Publication of this report constitutes consultation.

4.00 | RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 | None as a result of this report.

5.00 | APPENDICES

5.01 | Appendix 1 — Current Forward Work Programme

6.00 | LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 | None.

Contact Officer:  Ceri Shotton

Overview & Scrutiny Facilitator
Telephone: 01352 702305
E-mail: ceri.shotton@flintshire.gov.uk

Tudalen 174



mailto:ceri.shotton@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01

Improvement Plan: the document which sets out the annual priorities of
the Council. It is a requirement of the Local Government (Wales) Measure
2009 to set Improvement Objectives and publish an Improvement Plan.

Tudalen 175




Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



COMMUNITY & ENTERPRISE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME Appendix 1
CURRENT FWP
Date of meeting Subject Purpose of Report Scrutiny Focus Report Author SBZ':;T{?:"

Wednesday 15t

Welfare Reform Update

To provide an update on the

Assurance Monitoring

Benefits Manager

May 2019 — Universal Credit Roll | impact of Welfare Reform on
10.00 am Out Flintshire residents
Digital Connectivity To update Committee Members | Information sharing Service Manager —
Development on the development of digital Enterprise and
infrastructure in North Wales Regeneration
and in Flintshire
c Specialist Housing To consider how the Council will | Consultation Customer Support
8‘ meet the needs of applicants Manager
D with specialist needs through
= specialist housing
=
~ New Homes Board To receive an update on the Assurance/Monitoring | Housing Strategy
work of the New Homes Board Manager
Wednesday 26th Quarter 4/Year-end To enable Members to fulfil their | Assurance Monitoring | Overview & Scrutiny
June 2019 Council Plan 2018/19 role in relation to performance Facilitator
10.00 am Monitoring Report monitoring

Homeless Local Action
Plan Update

To provide an update on
progress being made in relation
to the Homeless Local Action
Plan

Assurance Monitoring

Chief Officer (Housing
and Assets)




COMMUNITY & ENTERPRISE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

Appendix 1

Update on Housing
Rent Income

Modular Homes

To provide an update on current
Rent Arrears

To receive a report on the
concept and options available in
using modular homes to
increase the supply of Council
properties.

Assurance Monitoring

Information sharing

Revenues Manager

Housing Strategy
Manager

ItenlsI to be scheduled to a date

c

o @date on private sector housing renewal strategy
o pdate report on stairwell at Castle Heights Flint — as suggested during the 20t September meeting
e Stnart Metres — as suggested during the 16t October meeting.
o d@rrent borrowing conditions and interest rates — as suggested during the 11t September County Council meeting

co




COMMUNITY & ENTERPRISE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME Appendix 1
REGULAR ITEMS
Responsible / Contact
Month Item Purpose of Report Officer
Quarterly / Performance Reporting To consider performance outturns for improvement targets Chief Officer (Housing and
Annual against directorate indicators. Assets)
Chief Officer (Planning,
Environment and Economy)
Six monthly | Welfare Reform Update — To update Members on the impact of Welfare Reform and the | Benefits Manager
including Universal Credit cost to the Council.
SiEh\onthly Update on North East Wales To update Members on the work of the North East Wales Service Manager — Housing
o Homes & Property Management Homes & Property Management Programmes
D
Anpually — WHQS Capital Programme — To provide an update on progress of the Welsh Housing | Chief Officer (Housing and
September Delivery review update Quality Standards (WHQS), that the Council is delivering | Assets)
B‘ through its Capital Investment Programme. Report to include
information around the use of local labour and number of
apprentices and school leavers.
Quarterly Update on Housing Rent Income | To provide an update on rent collection and current arrear | Revenues Manager

levels




Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



	Rhaglen
	3 Cofnodion
	4 Adroddiad Diweddariad yn dilyn Adroddiad Archwilio Mewnol Grant Cyfleusterau Anabl 2017
	Appendix 1 – Internal Audit Report May 2018
	Appendix 2 – Audit Action Plan
	Appendix 3 – Wales Audit Office Housing Adaptations Report February 2018
	Contents

	Appendix 4 – Welsh Government Housing Adaptations Service Standards February 2018
	Appendix 5 - DFG risk register February 2019

	5 Adroddiad Monitro Chwarter 3 Cynllun y Cyngor ar gyfer 2018/19
	Appendix 1 – Council Plan 2018/19 – Year-end Progress Report – Supportive Council
	Appendix 1 – Council Plan 2018/19 – Year-end Progress Report – Ambitious Council

	6 Rhaglen Gwaith i'r Dyfodol
	Appendix 1 - Current Forward Work Programme




